
  

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

TOWN OF SIDNEY 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, July 8, 2019  
Council Chambers   

7:00 p.m. 
 

** This meeting will be videotaped and posted on the Town’s website. ** 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

A G E N D A  
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PERIOD (maximum 20 minutes) / 

INTRODUCTIONS / PRESENTATIONS / PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PERIOD 
 

 B. SPECIAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPPORTUNITY  
 

  i.  2018 Annual Report                                               (see Report - item 11a) 

 
 C. PRESENTATIONS 
 

  i. 2020 Sidney Calendars  
   - presentation by Bob McLure, Sidney Sister Cities Association. 
 
  ii. Victoria Urban Reconciliation Dialogue  
   - presentation by Tanya Clarmont, VURD. 
  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

a. Regular Council Meeting – June 24, 2019        
 

4. BUSINESS NOT COMPLETED AT A PREVIOUS REGULAR MEETING 
5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES (for information only) 
6. DELEGATIONS 
7. PETITIONS  
 
8. MAYOR’S REPORT 
  
9. COUNCILLORS’ REPORTS 

 

 a. Councillor C. Rintoul - Panorama Recreation & Memorial Park Society  
 

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

11. STAFF REPORTS 
 
 a. 2018 Annual Report  
  Report dated June 21, 2019. 
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 b. Proposed Regional Concept of Operation for Emergencies  
   Report dated July 2, 2019.   
 
 c. Removal of Pad Mounted Transformer on Town Parking Lot (9821 Third Street)  
  Report dated July 3, 2019. 
 
 d. Galaran Road Sidewalk Project  
  Report dated July 2, 2019.  
 
 e. Public Pathway - Eighth Street to Bevan Avenue  
  Report dated July 2, 2019. 
 
12. OTHER REPORTS 

 
13. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
 a. Request for Letter of Support - Proposal for Multi-Use Trail Development 
  Letter from the Nature Trails Society, dated June 21, 2019.  
 

14. BYLAWS / DEVELOPMENT PERMITS / VARIANCES / SUBDIVISION 
 
 a. Bylaw No. 2174 - Zoning, Amendment No. 38 
  (To allow the retail sale of recreational cannabis).  
  Report dated July 3, 2019.  
    
 b. Bylaw No. 2175 - Cannabis & Liquor Licensing Fee  
  (To establish fees for cannabis and liquor license applications).  
 
 c. Development Permit Application No. DP100789 and Development Variance 

Permit Application No DV100283 (2355 Orchard Avenue)  
  (To relax maximum lot coverage in order to construct a small lot, single-family 

dwelling).  
   (No written submissions received as of Wednesday, July 3, 2019.) 
 

 d. Development Variance Permit Application No. DV100284 (10326 Menagh Place) 
  (To relax setback requirements to allow accessory structure in the rear yard). 

(No written submissions received as of Wednesday, July 3, 2019.) 
 
15. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Community Resiliency Investment Program - Wildfire Prevention Initiative  
(Notice of Motion from Councillor S. Duncan – Council Meeting of June 24, 2019). 

 
  Recommendation:  

WHEREAS on February 25, 2019 Council considered an invitation from the 
District of Highlands to all municipalities within the Capital Regional District 
(CRD), and the CRD, join in a co-application for grant funding for the Community 
Resiliency Investment program’s Strategic Wildfire Prevention Initiative, and 
decided to consider further feedback from Fire Chief Brett Mikkelsen on whether 
it was useful for Sidney to be one of the municipalities to support the application, 
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WHEREAS in an email dated February 26, 2019 to Councillor Sara Duncan 
(included in Council agenda package of April 23, 2019) Chief Mikkelsen 
suggested that Sídney could support if North Saanich saw value in the 
application, 
 
WHEREAS on February 4, 2019, the North Saanich Council had passed a 
motion to support the Strategic Wildlife Prevention Initiative and join in the co-
application. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council direct staff to write a letter to the 
Capital Regional District and all member local governments indicating Council's 
interest in participating in a co-application submitted by the CRD on behalf of its 
members to UBCM's Community Resiliency Investment Program for the 
development of a regional vegetation management strategy. 

 
16.  CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION  
 
 1. Letter from B. Head, requesting improvement be made to the pathway between 

the Town’s Public Works Yard and Iroquois Park, dated May 5, 2019.  Reply 
dated June 19, 2019.  

 2. Letter from Saanich Peninsula Folk & Fiddle Festival Society, expressing 
appreciation for the Town’s support with the festival, dated June 7, 2019.  

 3.  Letter from School District No. 62, expressing support for the Victoria Family 
Court Youth Justice Committee, dated June 13, 2019.  

 4. Letter from MP Elizabeth May, requesting support from the Minister of 
Infrastructure & Communities for repairs to Beacon Wharf and improved 
transportation between the ferry terminal and the airport, dated June 14, 2019.  

 5. Letter from UBCM, advising that the Town’s resolution - Restoring Sustainable 
Provincial Library Funding Levels - will be presented for consideration at the 
2019 Convention, dated June 18, 2019.  

 6. Letter K. Strand, expressing support for a ban on single-use plastic bags, 
received on June 19, 2019.  

 7. Letter from District of Houston, regarding provincial funding support for libraries, 
dated June 19, 2019.  

 8. Letter from CRD, providing a copy of the 2018 Arts & Culture Progress Report, 
dated June 20, 2019.  

 9. Letter from District of North Saanich, regarding their declaration of a climate 
emergency, dated June 20, 2019.  

 10. Letter from CRD, regarding an amendment to the 2018 Regional Growth 
Strategy, dated June 21, 2019.  

 11. Email from N. Ryder, regarding problems with exposures to Electromagnetic 
Radiation, dated June 24, 2019.  

 12. Letter from District of Sicamous, regarding provincial funding support for 
libraries, dated June 26, 2019.  

 13. Letter from City of White Rock, requesting a proposed vacancy tax, dated           
June 26, 2019. 

  
17. NOTICES OF MOTION  
18. MOTION TO GO “IN-CAMERA” (CLOSED MEETING)  
 
  

19. ADJOURNMENT 
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~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~ 

 
Rules for Governing the Public Participation Period at 

Regular Council Meetings 
 
1. A maximum of 20 minutes (approximately 3 minutes for each speaker) is allocated prior 

to Regular Council Meetings. 
 
2. Presentations will be brief and to the point.  
 
3. Those wishing to address Council will be asked to specify their name and address for 

identification and the topic involved before being granted permission to speak. 
 
4. Issues must relate strictly to municipal matters of community concerns.  Individuals may 

speak to an agenda item or pose a question to Council. 
 
5. Questions shall be on topics which will not normally be dealt with by municipal staff as a 

matter of routine. 
 
6. Questions shall be addressed through the Chair and if the questions can be answered 

either by the Chair or through the Chair, Council will endeavour to do so.  Otherwise, the 
questions will be referred to staff. 

 
 

~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~ 
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Vrcronrn URBAN RrcoNCtLtATtoN Drnloe ur

Background

On March 29,2018, fourteen individuals from urban lndigenous organizations, government, and
community gathered at the Victoria Native Friendship Centre to engage in a dialogue about
reconciliation in the Victoria area. Participants at this initial gathering represented diverse lndigenous
and non-lndigenous ancestry and came from community and all levels of non-lndigenous governments
This group now forms the Victoria Urban Reconciliation Dialogue (VURD) Steering Committee.

The Victoria Urban Reconciliation Dialogue ("The Dialogue") is an opportunity to identify concrete
actions focused on reconciliation in the Victoria area, which encompasses an lndigenous population of
over L7,000 people including those of First Nations, Métis and lnuit decent.

Committee is to promote a

collaborative approach to
reconciliation in the Victoria area

with a focus on the urban
lndigenous community.

Steering Committee for their
shared work are truth, justice,

education, decolonization,
sustainability and inclusivity.

The Victoria Urban Reconciliation Dialogue (VURD) Steering Committee wants to reflect a grassroots

approach where the ultimate accountability is to the urban lndigenous community of the Victoria area,
and their allies. The Steering Committee will gather community partners to explore common interests in

reconciliation through an Advisory Panel first, and then with the community at large.

Purpose of the Presentation
We are looking to encourage Mayor and Council to participate in VURD by asking you to identify a

person/people that we can begin building a relationship with and including in conversations about the
ongoing efforts and activities of VURD.

The Victorio Urban Reconciliotion Diologue wishes to ocknowledge the traditionolterritories of allthe
Nations of the South lsland on whose lond we live, we leorn, and we do our work.
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Association with the Victoria Native Friendship Centre
The Victoria Native Friendship Centre (VNFC) act's as host of the VURD tnitiative, handling the logistics
and maintaining the records of the Committee and implementing the directions of the Steering
Committee. The VNFC is the role model for lndigenous process' in meetings and champions the
influence of lndigenous worldview in the design and approaches to all work mandated by the
Committee.

Pa rtner Acknowledgment
The Victoria Urban Reconciliation Dialogue would like to recognize the partners identified below as
members of the Steering Committee, and gratefully acknowledges the funding support provided in
partnership by lndigenous Services Canada and the provincial Ministry of lndigenous Relations and
Reconciliation.
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l*l
Additional lnformation
For additional information on VURD, please visit our website at https://www.thedialoeuevictoria.cal
Questions can be directed to our email thedialosue@vnfc.ca

The Victorio Urban Reconciliation Diologue wishes to ocknowledge the traditional territories of atlthe
Notions of the South lslond on whose lond we live, we learn, ond we do our work.



TOWN OF SIDNEY

MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Monday, June24,2019

CouncilChambers
7:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Mayor C. McNeil-Smith
Councillors: S. Duncan, B. Fallot, S. Garnett, T. O'Keeffe, C. Rintouland P. Wainwright

Staff: R. Humble, Chief Administrative Officer
J. Clary, Director of Engineering
B. Mikkelsen, Fire Chief
A. Verhagen, Senior Manager of Current Planning
C. Newcomb, Senior Manager of Long Range Planning
B. DeMaere, Manager of Engineering
M. van der Linden, Manager of Special Projects
T. Restell, Manager of Finance
S. Nelson, Corporate Officer

The Mayor respectfully acknowledged that this evening's meeting is being held on the traditional territory
of the WSANEC people.

1 CALL TO ORDER / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PERIOD
INTRODUCTIONS / PRESENTAT¡ONS / PUBLIC HEARINGS

(maximum 20 minutes) I

The Mayor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

A. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PERIOD

1 J. Gifford, 10448 Allbay Road - regarding the Town's new Urban Forest
Strategy, advised (as a member of Sidney Community Association's Habitat &
Environment Committee) provided input at each stage of the process and is really
pleased with the outcome, as well as to the commitment Council is expressing;
advised citizens (upon receipt of 65 responses to their survey) conveyed their
desire to get involved with the preservation of trees and are willing to volunteer
their time to pull ivy, water boulevard trees, etc.; stated was disappointed at the
"no net loss" goal; and indicated that a significant number of citizens support a
robust implementation plan and would be monitoring the process.

Public Participation Period closed at 7:04 p.m.

B. PRESENTATION

i. Tree Appreciation day
(see Correspondence - item 13a)

Lynda Comer, as a member of Sidney Community Association's Habitat & Environment
Committee, expressed the important value of trees tô our environment (i.e. regulates global
warming, provides privacy, give us food, medicine, shelter, etc.) and without trees the world would
be uninhabitable. She requested the Town consider organizing and hosting an annual Tree
Appreciation Day in Sidney in the month of November (similar to other neighboring municipalities -
Central Saanich, Victoria, Saanich, Oak Bay, etc.). She advised the event would bring the
community together, engage volunteers to plant trees and bring awareness to the role of trees in a
healthy community. Ms. Comber was pleased to note that establishing an annual Arbor Day
celebration is identified as a short{erm action item in the Town's new Urban Forest Strategy.
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2. APPROVALOFAGENDA

2019.27.313 Moved by Councillor S. Garnett, seconded by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, that the agenda be
approved with the amendment that item 7a - Request for Ban on Single-Use Plastic Bags
be moved to after item 3a.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

3. ADOPT¡ON OF MINUTES

a. Regular Council Meeting - June 10,2019

2019.27.314 Moved by Councillor C. Rintoul, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot, that Minutes of the
Regular Council Meeting of June 10,2019, be adopted as presented.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

7 PETITIONS

a. Request for Ban on Single-Use Plastic Bags

Margot Arndt, a 9-year old student from Deep Cove Elementary School, gave a presentation on
banning the use of shopping bags in Sidney noting that: bags harm the environment and sea life
(as they are mistaken for food); Canada is the Sth largest producer of plastic bags; and that not
using plastic shopping bags is an easy change everyone can do. She noted that, with the recent
announcement by the federal government and other local municipalities already moving towards
implementing such a ban, she would like to see Sidney do the same. Margot advised recycling is
not the answer, but rather that we need to reduce the use of plastics. She was pleased to inform
Council of the following petitions:

. Deep Cove Elementary School Petition - 161
(including suruey of local Sidney buslnesses - 50 out of 57)

. Sidney Elementary School Petition - 14
o On-Line chanqe.orq Petition - 332

and submitted the petitions from the two local schools to Council for consideration.

The Mayor noted that this matter was presented to the CRD Board a couple of years ago, and did
not proceed, however stated it is an appropriate time to bring this back to the CRD and to have all
l3 municipalities consider following the same bylaw regulations. The Mayor also advised of the
pending legal challenge with respect to the City of Victoria's bylaw banning the use of single-use
plastic bags and that it would be beneficial to await the outcome of that litigation prior to moving
this fonvard.

2019.27.315 Moved by Councillor C. Rintoul, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot, that the request to ban
the use of single-plastic bags in Sidney be referred to staff for a report to provide an
update on other municipalities' initiatives and the pending legal challenges facing this
matter.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

4. BUSINESS NOT COMPLETED AT A PREVIOUS REGULAR MEETING

a. Request for Street Vending License - Sale of Watercolor Paintings
(Resolution - Council Meeting on June 10, 2019)

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor C. Rintoul, that the Donna
McNeely's request for a Business License, to set up a mobile stand for the retail sales of
smallwatercolour paintings at Beacon Park, be denied.

OPPOSED: Councillors: B. Fallot & T. O'Keeffe
MOTION CARRIED 5:2

2019.27.316
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5. BUSINESS ARIS¡NG FROM MINUTES (for information only)

a. Council ln-Camera Meeting - June 10,2019
i. Appointments to the New Economic Advisory Committee

1. that staff advertise for members to serve on the new Economic Advisory
Committee (EAC);

2. that staff contact the nominating organizations requesting a member to
serve on the new EAC;

3. that the new members to the EAC be appointed for a term to end in
December 2021; and

4. that staff contact the 2018 applicants advising them of Council's decision.

DELEGATIONS

PETITIONS

Request for Ban on Single-Use Plastic Bags

(ltem already dealt with after item 3a).

8. MAYOR'S REPORT

The Mayor announced the passing of retired Sidney Fire Chíef Mel Baldwin (who began his career
with the Fire Department in 1951, spanning a 46 career until he retired in 1997) and extended
sincere condolences to the Baldwin family.

The Mayor reported on the following events/meetings: 1. June 12 - CRD Board - presentation of
the CRD's 2018 Annual Report and noted the wide range of services provided by the CRD;
2. June 15 - the Peninsula & Area Agricultural Farm Tour - provided an overview of the tour of
agricultural facilities noting the diversity of farming, the reliance of foreign workers and the
challenges they are facing; 3. June 20 - Opening Ceremony of Chief Dan George Exhibit at
Sidney Museum - noted it was a moving ceremony celebrating activist and author Chief George
on National lndigenous Day; 4. June 20 - Official Opening Ceremony of Sidney's Community
Safety Building - noting it as the largest infrastructure project in the Town's history; 5. June 22 -
presentation by Habitat for Humanity - session for applicants interested in qualifying to be an
owner of one of the new townhomes being built on Lochside Drive in North Saanich; and 6. June
23 - Sidney Community Associations' AGM - celebrated 4th-year anniversary and their Hewitt
Helming Community Award was presented to Jocelyn Gifford.

2019.27.317 Moved by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, seconded by Councillor C. Rintoul, that staff be directed
to contact Habitat for Humanity for a presentation, sometime in the early Fall, to discuss
potential opportunities for projects that might be available in Sidney.

MOTION CARR¡ED UNANIMOUSLY

The Mayor advised of the various events being held during the annual Canada/Sidney Days
festivities, from July 29 to July 1, and encouraged everyone to come out to enjoy the events.

9. COUNC¡LLORS'REPORTS

a. Councillor S. Garnett - as the Council Liaison to the RCMP Community Consultative
Committed advised of the upcoming Community Policing Open House to be held on
June 30 (from 11:00am - 3:00pm at the Mary Winspear Centre) providing a variety of
information on public safety.

Gouncillor S. Duncan - advised of her attendance at the Regional Water Supply
Commission on June 14 and the tour of the disinfection facility, noting the amount of
equipment/technology that is involved in maintaining the facility and the necessary
emergency measures that are in place. She advised of the concerns associated with wild
fires and the potential threat of a shutdown to the water system, noting the importance of
fire suppression. Furthermore, she encouraged Council to consider particlpating in the

a.

b
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co-application for the UBCM Community Resiliency lnvestment Program - Strategic
Wildfire Prevention lnitiative (providing up to $100,000 for every municipality that joins =
$1.5 million for a 3-year research program in how to best fire proof our forests) and was
prepared to make the following motion:

That Council direct staff to write a letter to the Capital Regional District and all member
local governments indicating Council's interest in participating in a co-application
submitted by the CRD on behalf of its members to UBCM's Community Resiliency
lnvestment Program for the development of a regional vegetation management strategy.

IO. COMM¡TTEE REPORTS

a. Committee of the Whole Meeting - June 17,2019

2019.27.318 Moved by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot, that Minutes of the
Committee of the Whole Meeting of June 17,2019, be received for information.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

2019.27.319

Min utes contain recom mendation(s) regarding :

R.l Urban Forest Strategy
Moved by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot:
1. That the Urban Forest Strategy report by Barefoot Planning, dated

June 1 1,2019, be received; and
2. That staff analyze the action items from the Strategy and bring forward

potential projects for consideration as part of annual fall strategic
planning and subsequent budget process.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

R.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DV100284 (10326 Menagh Pl)
(To relax setback requirements to allow accessory structure in the rear yard).

Councillor S. Duncan left the meeting room at 8:04 p.m., citing a potent¡al conflict of interest as she /iyes
across the street from the applicant.

2019.27.320 Moved by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, seconded by Councillor P. Wainwright, that
owners and tenants in occupation of property within 75m (246ft) of
10326 Menagh Place be notified regarding Development Variance Permit
Application No. DV100284 and that any written correspondence received be
fon¡varded to Council at the time of consideration of approval of the variance.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Councillor S. Duncan returned to the meeting at 8:09 p.m

11. STAFF REPORTS

Sidney Housing Needs Assessment Project

2019.27.321 Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded Councillor S. Garnett, that the consulting
contract for the Sidney Housing Needs Assessment Project be awarded to Urban
Matters CCC.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

b. Request for Removal of Protected Tree - 2027 Melville Drive

Moved by Councillor B. Fallot, seconded by Councillor S. Garnett, that the request for the
removal of a "Tree of Heaven" tree located in the rear yard of 2027 Melville Drive be
denied.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

4

a

2019.27.322
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c. Signage Proposal for ArtSea Gallery (Building at Tulista Park)

2019.27.323

2019.27.324

2019.27.325

2019.27.326

Moved by Councíllor S. Garnett, seconded by Councillor C. Rintoul, that ArtSea
Community Arts Council be authorized to install 2 Fascia Signs, 1 Temporary Sign, I
Low-mount Free Standing Sign, I Window Sign, and I Sandwich Board Sign on the
property located at 9565 Fifth Street, subject to the following condition:
1. That Artsea Community Arts Council contact the Parks Department to inspect the

Low-Mount Free Standing Sign installed in the garden bed to ensure the health
and long-term well-being of the adjacent ornamental conifer will not be affected
by the placement or installation of the sign.

OPPOSED: Councillor T. O'Keeffe
MOTION CARRIED 6:1

d. Fire Engine Squad I Replacement

Moved by Councillor C. Rintoul, seconded by Councillor S. Duncan, that the replacement
of Fire Engine Squad 1, for an amount not exceeding $200,000 CDN, be advanced in the
Financial Plan for a year, to 2019.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

e. Shaw Centre Energy Supply Agreement Renewal

Moved by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, seconded by Councillor S. Duncan, that the Energy
Supply Agreement with Sidney Pier Geothermal Utility Corp., for the supply of energy to a
Town-owned facility (Shaw Centre for the Salish Sea), be renewed for an additional
5-year term (201 9-2024).

MOTION GARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

f. 2018 Statement of Financial lnformation

Moved by Councillor B. Fallot, seconded by Councillor P. Wainwright, that the Statement
of Financial lnformation for the Town of Sidney for the year ended December 31, 2018 be
approved.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

g. Torque Masters Gar Show Event

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor S. Duncan, that the Torque
Masters Car Club be authorized to close the following streets and public parking lots:. Beacon Avenue (from Fifth St to First St);. Beacon Avenue (from First St to Beacon Wharf);. Forrrth Street (Sidney Ave to Bevan Ave);. Third Street (Sidney Ave to Bevan Ave);. Second Street (Beacon Ave to Bevan Ave, if needed).. Lot C (Fourth St at Sidney Ave); and. Lot F (Third St at Bevan Ave),
from 5:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Sunday, August 11,2019 to accommodate vehicles for
their Car Show event, subject to the following conditions:
a. That the Club provide the Town with proof of $5,000,000 minimum liability

insurance indemnifying the Town of any liability;
b. That certified traffic control persons be utilized where identified by the Town;
c. That the event be undertaken in compliance with all Town bylaws;
d. That the center of each closed street and intersections remain clear of any

obstructions to allow emergency vehicles immediate access;
e. That the Club provide and maintain temporary toilet facilities (with hand washing

amenities) for the duration of the event. The number and locations of these
facilities to be approved by the Town,
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f That the Club provide all Emergency Services (including BC ambulance) with
written notification of the event and meet with them four weeks prior to the event
to address any concerns;
That the Club provide BC Transit with written notification of the event;
That the Club arrange a written agreement with the PCS, addressing key
coordination issues, scheduling and procedures for ending the Car Show as to
not disrupt PCS's concert event.
That the Club send out notices to all businesses/residents fronting on streets to
be closed advising of the event and that access to their properties will be
maintained if so required and provide them with a contact number should there
be any concerns/questions (at least 4 weeks prior to the event); and,
That the Town provide sponsorship for the event in the amount of $1,000 in in-
kind services, and the Club reimburse the Town for all costs above this amount.

g
h

t.

j

2019.27.327

2019.27.328

Moved by Councillor C. Rintoul, seconded by Councillor P. Wainwright, that the above
motion be amended by deleting "in the amount of $1,000 in in-kind services" and
replacing it with "in the amount not to exceed $2,000 in in-kind services" in item j.

OPPOSED: Mayor C. McNeil-Smith & Gouncillors: S. Duncan, B. Fallot,
S. Garnett & T. O'Keeffe

MOTION DEFEATED 5:2

The question was called on the original motion as follows:

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor S. Duncan, that the Torque
Masters Car Club be authorized to close the following streets and public parking lots:. Beacon Avenue (from Fifth St to First St);

Beacon Avenue (from First St to Beacon Wharf);
Fourth Street (Sidney Ave to Bevan Ave);
Third Street (Sidney Ave to Bevan Ave);
Second Street (Beacon Ave to Bevan Ave, if needed)
Lot C (Fourth St at Sidney Ave); and
Lot F (Third St at Bevan Ave),

from 5:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Sunday, August 11,2019 to accommodate vehicles for
their Car Show event, subject to the following conditions:
1. That the Club provide the Town with proof of $5,000,000 minimum liability

insurance indemnifying the Town of any liability;
2. That certified traffic control persons be utilized where identified by the Town;
3. That the event be undertaken in compliance with all Town bylaws;
4. That the center of each closed street and intersections remain clear of any

obstructions to allow emergency vehicles immediate access;
5. That the Club provide and maintain temporary toilet facilities (with hand washing

amenities) for the duration of the event. The number and locations of these
facilities to be approved by the Town;

6. That the Club provide all Emergency Services (including BC ambulance) with
written notification of the event and meet with them four weeks prior to the event
to address any concerns;

7. That the Club provide BC Transit with written notification of the event;
8. That the Club arrange a written agreement with the PCS, addressing key

coordination issues, scheduling and procedures for ending the Car Show as to
not disrupt PCS's concert event.

9. That the Club send out notices to all businesseslresidents fronting on streets to
be closed advising of the event and that access to their properties will be
maintained if so required and provide them with a contact number should there
be any concerns/questions (at least 4 weeks prior to the event); and,

10. That the Town provide sponsorship for the event in the amount of $1,000 in in-
kind services, and the Club reimburse the Town for all costs above this amount.

MOTION CARRIED UNAN¡MOUSLY
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2019.27.329

h. Monthly Building Permit Report - May 2019

Moved by Councillor S. Garnett, seconded by Councillor C. Rintoul, that the Monthly
Building Permit Report for May 2019 be received for information.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Moved by Councillor B. Fallot, seconded by Councillor S. Garnett, that the following
correspondence be received for information:
Emailfrom B. Case, regarding BC hydro EVcharging stations, dated May28,2019. Reply
dated June 10,2019.
Letter from E-Com 911, regarding new strategic plans for E-Comm and PRlMECorp,
dated May 31,2019.
Letter from MP Elizabeth May, regarding clean-up of Reay Creek, dated June 5,2019.
Email from C. Gorley, regarding a ban on single-use plastic bags, dated June 6,2019.
Reply dated June 14,2019.
Email from Offíce of the Premier, regarding the Town's letter requesting funding for the
Victoria Sexual Assault Centre, dated June 10,2019.
Email from N. Tyndall, regarding a ban on single-use plastic bags, dated June 12,2019.
Reply dated June 17, 2019.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

12.

13.

OTHER REPORTS

CORRESPONDENCE

a. Request for Tree Appreciation Day

2019.27.330 Moved by Councillor B. Fallot, seconded by Councillor T. O'Keeffe, that the letter from
Lynda Comer dated April 2019 be received and that the request for the Town to hold an
official Tree Appreciation Day annually in the month of November be referred to strategic
planning.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

b. Request for Funding - Traditional First Nations War Canoe Races

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot, that the letter from
Geronimo Canoe Club, dated June 7, 2019, be received and that financial support in the
amount of $250 for the Water Festival War Canoe Races be approved.

2019.27.331 Moved by Councillor S. Garnett, seconded by Councillor C. Rintoul, that the above motion
be amended by deleting "$250' and replacing it with "$500'.

OPPOSED: Councillor B. Fallot
MOTION CARRIED 6:l

2019.27.332

The question was called on the amended motion as follows:

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot, that the letter from
Geronimo Canoe Club, dated June 7, 2019, be received and that financial support in the
amount of $500 for Water Festival War Canoe Races be approved.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

14. BYLAWS / DEVELOPMENT PERMITS / VARIANCES / SUBDIVISION
15. NEW BUSINESS

16. CORRESPONDENCEFORINFORMATION

2019.27.333

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

b.



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Mo ndav. June 24 2019 Paoe 8

17. NOTTCES OF MOTTON

a. Community Resiliency Investment Program

Further to item 9b, Councillor S. Duncan provided notice of the following motion to be considered
at the next regular Council meeting:

"That Council direct staff to write a letter to the Capital Regional District and all member
local governments indicating Council's interest in participating in a co-application
submitted by the CRD on behalf of its members to UBCM's Community Resiliency
lnvestment Program for the development of a regional vegetation management strategy."

18. MOTTON TO GO "|N-CAMERA" (CLOSED MEETTNG)

2019.27.334 Moved by Councillor S. Garnett, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot, that it is in the opinion
of Council that the public interest requires that persons other than members of Council
and Officers be excluded from the meeting to consider confidential matters relating to
personal issue, pursuant to section 90.1 (a) of the Community Charter and that Council
continue the meeting in closed session.

MOT¡ON CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

I9. ADJOURNMENT

2019.27.335 Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor C. Rintoul, that the meeting
be adjourned at 9:18 p.m.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER
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2OI8 ANNUAL REPORT

FILE NO.: 0650-20

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

PURPOSE:

To present the Town's 2018 Annual Report for public inspection and Council's consideration.

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to the Community Charter, the Annual Report was prepared and made available for public
inspection on Friday, June 21 , 2019. Advertisements were placed in the newspaper advising that
Council will be considering the report at the July 8, 2019, Council meeting and accepting submissions
and questions from the public.

The Annual Report includes
audited annual Financial Statements for year ended December 31,2018;
2018 tax exemptions provided by Council;
departmental reports respecting municipal services and operations;
progress report on 2018 municipal objectives and initiatives for 2019; and
progress report on priorities contained within the Town's Strategic Plan.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Town of Sidney 2018 Annual Report be approved as presented

Respectfully submitted: I concur, I concur,

á¿Nelson Andrew Hicik Randy Humble
Chief Adm inistrative Officerorporate Officer Director of Corporate Services
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR

COUNCIL PORTFOLIO

Mayor Cliff McNeil-Smith
Ball Facility Liaison Committee

Capital Regional District Board

First Nations Liaison

Greater Victoria Labour Relations

Municipal Insurance Association of BC 

Peninsula Recreation Commission 

Saanich Peninsula Water Commission 
and Wastewater Commission

South Island Prosperity Project

On behalf of Sidney Council and the Town of Sidney, I am pleased to present 
the Annual Report for 2018.

The Annual Report is a requirement under the Provincial Community Charter, and it 
provides a summary of the accomplishments by Council and Town staff in providing 
local government services.

This report is based on the outcomes from the 2015-2018 Strategic Plan that was 
developed and updated annually by the previous Council.  I want to thank the 
previous Mayor and Council for their work and service to the community during 
their four-year term.  I also want to thank the entire Town staff team who provide a 
remarkably wide range of quality services in our community.

The new Council began its four-year term in early November.  The continued growth 
in our region presents unique opportunities and responsibilities for Sidney Council.
As we embark on a new term, I would like to look ahead to the priorities the new 
Council has set, with input from senior Town staff, in the 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 
– community wellbeing & livability, community infrastructure, economic vibrancy, 
environmental stewardship, community engagement and organizational excellence. 

We have a tremendous energy, enthusiasm and community spirit in Sidney that has 
led to many achievements in the past and will bring many more in the future.   
I am honored to serve as your Mayor and work with Council, Town staff, residents, 
businesses	and	non-profit	organizations	to	foster	a	balanced	and	prosperous	future	
for our community.

 

Mayor Cliff McNeil-Smith
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COUNCIL PORTFOLIOS
Councillor Terri O’Keeffe
Peninsula Celebrations Society

Peninsula Chamber of Commerce

Memorial Park Society - Joint Finance 
Steering Committee

New Marine Centre Society (Shaw 
Centre for the Salish Sea)

Victoria Airport Authority - Noise 
Management Committee

Councillor Barbara Fallot
ArtSea Community Arts Council

CRD Regional Housing Trust Fund 
Commission

Sidney Community Association

Sister Cities Association

Vancouver Island Regional Library

Victoria Family Court & Youth Justice 
Committee

Councillor Scott Garnett
Ball Facility Liaison Committee

RCMP - Police Community Consultative 
Committee

School	District	No.	63

Society of Saanich Peninsula Museums

Councillor Chad Rintoul
Capital Region Emergency Services 
Telecommunications

Memorial Park Society

Memorial Park Society - Joint Finance 
Steering Committee

Peninsula Recreation Commission

Sidney Business Improvement Area 
Society

Victoria Airport Authority Consultative 
Committee

Councillor Sara Duncan
Beacon Community Services

CRD Regional Water Supply 
Commission

CRD Climate Action Inter-Municipal Task 
Force

Peninsula Emergency Measures 
Executive Committee (PEMO)

SHOAL Centre

Councillor Peter Wainwright
Advisory Planning Commission

Emergency Planning Committee

Economic Development Committee

Saanich Peninsula Water Commission 
and Wastewater Commission

Memorial Park Society - Joint Finance 
Steering Committee

(Left to right) Councillor Terri O’Keeffe, Councillor Barbara Fallot, Councillor Scott Garnett, Mayor Cliff McNeil-Smith, Councillor 
Chad Rintoul, Councillor Sara Duncan, and Councillor Peter Wainwright

SIDNEY COUNCIL 2018-2022
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
As	the	Chief	Administrative	Officer	of	the	Town,	I	am	impressed	and	
proud of the abundance of great work that is being presented in this  
2018 Annual Report.

It is my job, and that of Town staff, to support and carry out the work associated with 
Council’s Strategic Plan. 2018 was a busy and ambitious year for the Town, partly 
due to an ongoing strong housing and construction market, as well as the robust and 
focused priorities established by Council for our community. 

Throughout this past year, I have continually been impressed by the diligence and 
passion that is regularly displayed by Town staff for their work. Each member of our 
team has contributed to achieve the positive results set out in this Annual Report. 

Sidney has strived to be an employer of choice, to create a work environment that is 
positive, cooperative and offers opportunity to its employees. As a result, we are the 
beneficiaries	of	a	well-run,	efficient	town	and	a	workforce	that	can	be	proud	of	what	
they have accomplished.

We look forward to continuing to serve the citizens of Sidney and to support Sidney 
Council in their efforts to make the Town a leader in good governance and service 
delivery and recognized for being trustworthy, connected to the community, visionary, 
innovative, and resilient. 

Randy Humble  
Chief	Administrative	Officer
May 14, 2019
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER
As	Chief	Financial	Officer	for	the	Town,	I	am	pleased	to	present	the	Town	of	
Sidney’s	audited	financial	statements	for	the	year	ending	December	31,	2018.	
The	financial	statements	are	the	responsibility	of	the	Town’s	management.	
The	statements	have	been	prepared	in	compliance	with	Section	167	of	the	
Community Charter, and in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles approved by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB). The 
financial	statements	have	been	audited	by	KPMG	LLP,	who	have	expressed	
their opinion that the statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the 
financial	position	of	the	Town	as	at	December	31,	2018.	The	Town	maintains	
a system of internal accounting controls designed to safeguard the assets of 
the	Town	and	provide	reliable	financial	information.

For	most	people,	financial	statements	are	hard	to	read,	and	they	don’t	provide	the	concise	and	relevant	information	that	the	
average reader is looking for. We are continually striving to make them simpler, but national accounting standards require us to 
present	our	financial	results	in	a	specific	manner	and	format.	To	assist	the	average	reader	in	better	understanding	our	financial	
statements,	a	Management	Discussion	and	Analysis	report	has	been	included	to	support	the	financial	statements.	

Executive Summary of Financial Results

The Town continues to have reasonable levels of debt and reserves, and remains committed to renewing its infrastructure. It is 
important to note that any debt held by the Town is for the purposes of capital construction, and bears no relation to the type of debt 
associated	with	senior	governments.	Senior	governments	incur	deficits	and	debt	to	finance	their	operations	as	a	whole.	Sidney	is	
only allowed to incur debt for capital purposes, and must maintain an operating surplus; the Town’s consolidated operating surplus 
now	stands	at	$3,768,497,	with	an	additional	$1,057,179	expected	to	be	returned	to	surplus	once	the	proceeds	from	the	sale	of	
the	old	fire	hall	site	are	received.		Even	with	the	borrowing	for	the	new	Community	Safety	Building,	the	Town	will	be	well	below	
authorized debt limits. 

As	detailed	in	the	2018	Financial	Statements,	the	Town’s	financial	results	were	mainly	in	line	with	budgeted	expectations.		Due	to	
the	borrowing	for	the	Community	Safety	Building	and	the	timing	of	the	sale	of	the	old	fire	hall	property,	the	Town	temporarily	moved	
into	a	net	debt	position,	meaning	that	our	liabilities	slightly	exceeded	our	financial	assets.	However,	our	capital	assets	balance	
increased	by	$9,256,673;	this	investment	in	our	assets	led	to	a	decrease	in	our	reserve	balances	of	$1,397,869.		The	longer-term	
outlook	for	our	reserves	requires	careful	planning	to	ensure	services	and	infrastructure	renewal	remain	financially	sustainable.

While	Sidney	continues	to	be	well	managed	financially,	improvements	are	always	possible;	staff	and	Council	are	constantly	looking	
to	enhance	our	financial	and	asset	management	planning	processes	to	ensure	the	Town’s	long-term	financial	sustainability.	Facing	
new	challenges	each	day,	the	Town	is	evolving	to	find	innovative	ways	of	providing	the	highest	possible	level	of	service,	while	
controlling costs. I would like to acknowledge Town Council, senior management, and staff in all departments for their commitment 
to innovation, continuous improvement and service to the community.

 
Andrew Hicik  
Director of Corporate Services 
May 14, 2019
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SIDNEY AT A GLANCE
The	Town	of	Sidney	is	located	26 kilometres	north	of	Victoria,	the	capital	
city of British Columbia, and is one of 13 municipalities and three electoral 
areas that comprise the Capital Regional District (CRD). Sidney is situated 
on the Saanich Peninsula, which extends north from Victoria. The Town of 
Sidney’s south, west, and north boundaries are shared with the District of 
North Saanich. To the east, Sidney overlooks Haro Strait, the Southern Gulf 
Islands, and the Northern San Juan Islands (USA).

Sidney lies within an area that has become one of the world’s premier places to live, 
work and visit. Endowed with a temperate climate, rich ecology, stunning landscapes, 
and proud histories, Sidney is a livable, vibrant community, that practices exemplary 
environmental stewardship, and encompasses a prosperous and sustainable 
economy.

Sidney’s geographic area is only 5.02 square kilometres (1.94 square miles), which 
explains	Sidney’s	high	population	density	(2,290.7	people	per	square	kilometre).	Data	
from Statistics Canada indicates that Sidney’s population grew by 4.4% between 2011 
and	2016*.

Regionally, the Town of Sidney is a key transit hub and offers a variety of 
transportation options. The Sidney International Ferry Terminal (Sidney/Anacortes 
ferry route), operated by Washington State Ferries, offers a valuable service which is 
enjoyed by residents and visitors from all over the world. Sidney is also minutes away 
from the Victoria International Airport and the Swartz Bay Ferry Terminal (BC Ferries), 
which connect Southern Vancouver Island to the BC Mainland and beyond.

The Town of Sidney’s small geographic area provides for a dense mix of businesses, 
housing, employment, services, and recreation in close proximity to each other. In 
addition, Sidney is pedestrian and cyclist friendly, transit focused, safe, and socially 
diverse. Sidney’s employment sector is generally made up of industrial, retail and 
healthcare services. Our climate is one of the mildest in Canada, with moderate 
rainfall and only occasional snowfall in the winter.

*Source:	Census	2016
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Chief Administrative Officer - Randy Humble

Director of Development Services, Engineering, Parks & Works - Tim Tanton

Director of Corporate Services - Andrew Hicik

Fire Chief - Brett Mikkelsen

Municipal Auditors - KPMG

Municipal Solicitors - Young, Anderson

Municipal Bankers - TD Canada Trust
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The Administration Department, under the leadership 
of	the	Chief	Administrative	Officer,	is	responsible	for	
overseeing all municipal operations. The Department 
is responsible for corporate administration under the 
Community Charter and the Local Government Act, 
providing legislative and administrative support to 
Mayor and Council, for public communications and 
human resources for the organization. 

Key	functions	include:

ADMINISTRATION

•	 Organizing all meetings of Council, including 
preparation of agendas and minutes;

•	 Administering the review and update of the Town’s 
Annual Strategic Planning process;

•	 Providing support services to Council appointed 
Committees / Commissions / Boards;

•	 Processing and coordinating all business relating to 
Town Council;

•	 Providing advice with respect to Council procedures, 
policies and functions;

•	 Coordinating internal and external communications (i.e. 
Town’s website, intranet, social media, print publications 
and media releases);

•	 Safekeeping of minutes of Council and Committees, 
bylaws,	and	other	official	documents	on	behalf	of	the	
Town;

•	 Administering	oaths	and	taking	affirmations,	affidavits	
and declarations required to be taken under the 
Community Charter or any other Act relating to 
municipalities;

•	 Administering the corporate records management 
program;

•	 Processing requests for access to information under the 
Freedom of Information & Protection of Privacy Act;

•	 Administering leases/agreements for Town operations 
and facilities;

•	 Coordinating human resources services for the 
organization;

•	 Conducting local government and school trustee 
elections.

2018 Highlights
•	 Continued to assist with construction of the new Community 

Safety Building and Employee Parking Lot;

•	 Began process for disposition of existing Fire Hall/Parking lot 
lands;

•	 Continued negotiations for divesture of Port Sidney Marina 
Breakwater;

•	 Completed collective bargaining process for new contract for 
Union employees;

•	 Completed the majority of the upgrades to the Council 
Chambers;

•	 Completed the 2018 Local Elections and began the Town’s 
orientation program with the new Council;

•	 Completed an organizational review and implemented 
management	staffing	changes	in	Development	Services	and	
Engineering.

2019 Initiatives
•	 Update the Annual Strategic Plan with the new Council; 

•	 Assist with the completion of the construction of the new 
Community Safety Building and Employee Parking Lot;

•	 Complete the disposition of the existing Fire Hall / Parking lot 
lands;

•	 Update the Town’s Substance Use Policy to include new 
cannabis regulations;

•	 Continue with negotiations for divesture of Port Sidney 
Marina Breakwater;

•	 Continue building meaningful public engagement and 
communication initiatives;

•	 Assist	with	the	comprehensive	review	of	the	Official	
Community Plan;

•	 Review and update of the Business Continuity Plan;

•	 Undertake hiring process for the new Director of Engineering;

•	 Continue strengthening relationships with First Nations 
neighbors;

•	 Examine Council appointments and review citizen 
appointment process;

•	 Review the terms of reference of the Economic Development 
Commission.
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Regular/Special
Council Meetings26

18 Council In Camera 
(closed) Meetings

Committee of the 
Whole Meetings10

COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES MEETINGS

Advisory Planning Commission13
Audit & Finance4
Board of Variance0
Economic Development Commission13
Ports & Waterfront 
Infrastructure Committee0

BYLAWS
& POLICIES

New Bylaws5
Amended Bylaws11
Repealed Bylaws2

Amended Policies22

Job Postings15

Retirements3

COUNCIL MEETINGS

MEETINGS

New Policies0

FOIPP
REQUESTS

Freedom of Information 
and Protection of 
Privacy Requests

7
HUMAN

RESOURCES

MUNICIPAL
ELECTION

Ballots Cast4,692

108 Mail Ballots 
Processed

48% Voter 
Turnout

ADMINISTRATION AT A GLANCE 2018
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As a service department, Corporate Services’ main focus is on assisting the public, and helping other departments 
accomplish their goals and tasks. Whether our interaction with the public is through telephone, at the front counter, or 
through the information on our website, we strive to provide excellent, timely and friendly customer service. Corporate 
Services	includes	the	following	functional	areas:	

•	 Finance;

•	 Driver Services;

•	 Information Technology;

•	 Risk Management (jointly with Engineering & Works); and

•	 Human Resources (jointly with Administration).

Finance 

From a corporate perspective, the department strategy is 
to	support	the	administrative	and	financial	needs	of	the	
Municipality, thereby enhancing the quality of service to 
the public. Our objective is to provide timely and accurate 
financial	information	to	facilitate	the	decision-making	needs	
of Council, senior management, and external stakeholders, 
and to provide analysis and business advice to the various 
municipal departments. Responsibility and authority for 
financial	operations	is	derived	from	legislation	mandated	by	the	
British Columbia Community Charter, Local Government Act, 
Provincial and Federal Statutes, and Municipal bylaws. 

Driver Services 

The Driver Services section of Corporate Services provides 
local services for residents of the Peninsula and beyond. 
As	appointed	agents,	staff	at	the	9884	Third	Street	office	
provide a wide variety of driver licencing and ICBC Autoplan
services, products and information. Since February 2013, the 
department has also been issuing the joint Driver’s Licence/BC 
Services Card.

Information Services 

Information Services provides technical leadership, solutions, 
service and support for all the Town’s integrated hardware, 
software, GIS, EOC, wireless and VoIP telephone systems at 
five	locations;	the	Town	Hall,	Driver	Services,	Fire	Department,	
Public Works, and Parks.

Risk Management 

Risk	Management	ensures	that	the	financial	stability	of	the	
Town is protected against the effects of accidental loss, by 
developing and maintaining information related to losses, 
claims, insurance premiums and other risk-related costs. 
Accordingly, Corporate Services works closely with operational 
departments to ensure the Town’s risks are minimized.

Human Resources 

Human Resources is responsible for the attraction, selection, 
training, assessment and retention of employees, while also 
overseeing organizational leadership and culture, and ensuring 
compliance with employment and labour laws.

CORPORATE SERVICES



15Sidney by the Sea | Annual Report 2018 | Departments - Corporate Services

2018 Highlights 

While most of the work of the Corporate Services Division 
involves routine processing and annual, ongoing tasks, we still 
find	time	each	year	to	fit	in	some	special	projects.	Some	of	our	
non-routine	accomplishments	over	the	past	year	include:

•	 Ongoing cost monitoring for the construction of the new 
Community Safety Building; 

•	 Assisted with the completion of sale process for the 
existing	fire	hall	property,	to	help	finance	the	new	
Community Safety Building;

•	 Initiated construction of the downtown employee parking 
lot;

•	 Completed negotiations for a new Fire Dispatch service;

•	 Completed renewal of several Town agreements with 
community partners such as Beacon Community 
Services (SHOAL Centre); ArtSea Community Arts 
Council (for arts facility at Tulista Park); and the District of 
North Saanich and Province of BC (RCMP premises);

•	 Initiated a review of the Town’s Utility Fees structure;

•	 Updated the Town’s Utility Connection Fees bylaw;

•	 Prepared	for	thorough	financial	orientation	of	new	Council	
members;

•	 Received Canadian Award for Financial Reporting for the 
Town’s	Annual	Report	for	fifth	consecutive	year;	

•	 Driver Services earned a Broker Customer Experience 
Award,	along	with	the	associated	financial	reward	to	the	
Town, for a seventh consecutive year; 

•	 Completed security audit of Town’s computer systems.

Over the next two years, we will be focusing 
on the following objectives: 

•	 Continue the enhancement of asset and work 
management software, adding more functionality each 
year;

•	 Collaborate with Engineering & Works on enhanced 
Asset Management practices; 

•	 Review funding levels and capacity for long term 
infrastructure replacement; 

•	 Continue	enhancements	to	financial	reporting	to	make	
financial	information	more	accessible	to	the	public;	

•	 Continually	review	the	Town’s	financial	policies	and	
practices	for	maximum	efficiency;	

•	 Refine	the	Town’s	taxation	policies;	

•	 Complete review of the Town’s Utility Fees structure; 

•	 Complete the cost accounting for construction of the new 
Community Safety Building; 

•	 Complete sub-lease transfer and extension related to 
Port Sidney Marina, to enhance economic impact of key 
waterfront asset; 

•	 Work with Washington State Ferries on response to 
pending changes to border pre-clearance regulations; 

•	 Follow	up	on	financial	planning	required	following	
completion	of	three	key	Town	projects:	Downtown	
Waterfront Vision, West Sidney Local Area Plan, and 
Downtown Streetscape & Urban Design Standards; 

•	 Work with Engineering to review and update the Town’s 
Development Cost Charges; 

•	 Continue enhancements to Town’s GIS capabilities, 
including implementation of Community Map for 
developer and public use; 

•	 Continue	to	identify	efficiencies	in	the	Town’s	computer	
network infrastructure;

•	 Support network changes and hardware relocation 
associated with move to post-disaster Community Safety 
Building;

•	 Support ongoing improvements to the Business section 
of the Town website;

•	 Assist with improvements to the Town’s Business 
Continuity Plan;

•	 Review the Town’s Risk Management policies.

•	 2018	municipal	taxes	per	average	residence:	
$120/month	(2017:	$116/month)	

•	 Total	municipal	taxes	collected	in	2018:	
$11.35	million	(2017:	$10.98	million)	

•	 Total	municipal	expenditures	in	2018:	
$20.5	million	(2017:	$19.6	million)
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The Development Services Department provides service in the areas of 
municipal planning, building permits and inspections, business licensing, 
and bylaw enforcement. The Department is committed to the delivery of 
a broad range of high quality services to residents, businesses, and the 
development	community	by	responding	to	all	inquiries	quickly,	efficiently,	and	
accurately. Department staff have an open door policy and welcome face-
to-face meetings to further communicate the goals, policies, and guidelines 
contained	within	the	Official	Community	Plan	(OCP),	Zoning	Bylaw,	BC	
Building Code, and other applicable bylaws and policies.

Building Permits and Inspections 

Building Permits and Inspections is responsible for monitoring building construction 
by ensuring compliance with the BC Building, Plumbing and Fire Codes. To promote 
health,	life-safety	and	fire	prevention	throughout	the	community,	Building	Inspection	
personnel work closely with property owners, developers, other agencies, and 
the Fire Department. Functions include plan review, issuance of permits for new 
construction and renovations, and inspection of premises for code compliance prior to 
the issuance of occupancy. Staff also work with developers to implement Construction 
Management	Plans	to	facilitate	project	efficiency	and	public	safety	while	minimizing	
disruption	to	the	surrounding	neighbourhood.	Building	Officials	are	available	to	assist	
the public with a broad range of queries at the counter and on the phone. In 2018, 
241	permits	were	issued	by	Building	Officials,	with	a	combined	total	construction	
value	of	$39,718,907.

Planning 

Planning combines the functions of current planning, long-range policy planning, 
and	project	management.	Administration	of	the	Zoning	Bylaw	through	land	use	
development review serves to implement the OCP, ensuring an integrated approach 
to community growth and sustainability in Sidney.

Business Licences 

Businesses operating within the Town of Sidney, including home occupations, are 
required to hold a valid Business Licence, as per Business Licence Bylaw No. 2119. 
In	2018,	the	Town	issued	757	Business	Licences,	including	54	to	new	businesses,	for	
a total revenue of $83,425.

APPROVED

Multi-family - New 72
Two-family - New 12
Single-family - New 22
Single-family to two-family 
(adding a legal suite) 5

Total new units 111

2018 New Dwelling  
Units Constructed

APPROVED

Building permits issued 
(with construction value) 101

Plumbing permits 102
Demolition permits 10
Fire dept & solid fuel 
permits 28

Total permits issued 241

Total construction value $39,718,907

2018 Permits Issued

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
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2018 Highlights - Planning and Building 
Applications

With the continuation of a strong real estate market throughout 
2018, much of the Development Services department’s time 
continued to be spent reviewing and processing the high 
volume of development applications for new residential and 
commercial development in the Town. The following are some 
of the major development proposals approved by Council in 
2018:

Star Cinema Redevelopment: Zoning	Amendment,	
Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 
applications	for	a	6	storey	mixed	use	building	with	45	dwelling	
units	over	a	7,250	square	foot	cinema	to	replace	the	existing	
Star	Cinema	and	3,865	square	feet	of	ground	floor	commercial	
space in two units.

2420-2432 Beacon Avenue and 9812-9816 Fourth Street:
Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 
applications for a 5 storey mixed use building with 35 dwelling 
units	over	4,850	square	feet	of	ground	floor	commercial	space.

2348 Beacon Avenue: Development Permit and Development 
Variance Permit applications for a four storey mixed use 
commercial/residential	development	with	ground	floor	
commercial space and 11 residential dwelling units.

2413 Orchard Avenue & 9647 Fifth Street: Development
Permit	and	Development	Variance	Permit	applications	for	a	6	
unit townhouse complex.

9762 Third Street & 9763 Fourth Street: Development Permit 
and Development Variance Permit applications for a 5 storey 
mixed	use	building	with	27	multi-family	dwelling	units	and	two	
live/work units.

9965 and 9981 Fourth Street: Development Permit application 
for a 4 storey multi-family building with 31 dwelling units. 

Sidney Fire Hall Redevelopment: Development Permit and 
Development	Variance	Permit	applications	for	a	6	storey	mixed	
use building with 85 dwelling units and 22,000 square feet of 
commercial	(retail	and	office)	space	on	the	current	Sidney	Fire	
Hall site.

10106-10108 Resthaven Drive: Development Permit 
and Development Variance Permit applications to permit 
the construction of a two storey multi-family residential 
development with eight residential townhouse dwelling units.

10490 Resthaven Drive: Development Permit and 
Development Variance Permit applications to permit 
the construction of a two storey multi-family residential 
development with eight residential townhouse dwelling units.

2019 Initiatives

•	 Housing Needs Report

•	 Initiation of a comprehensive review of Sidney’s 
Official	Community	Plan

•	 West Sidney Local Area Plan implementation

•	 Multi-Family Parking Standards Study and 
updates to the Off-Street Parking and Loading 
Bylaw

2018 Highlights - Department Projects 

The	following	initiatives	were	completed	in	2018:	

Short Term Rental Bylaw: This project involved the 
development	of	a	Zoning	Amendment	Bylaw	to	regulate	
short-term rentals (STR) within the town. The past decade 
has seen substantial growth in the STR market, along with the 
companies that service this market, such as Airbnb and other 
online platforms. Following Council’s direction, staff brought 
forward a bylaw to regulate STRs within the Town of Sidney. 
After a period of public outreach and a public hearing, Council 
adopted the bylaw on September 24, 2018.

West Sidney Local Area Plan - Village Master Plan:
Following the conclusion of the West Side Local Area Plan, 
the Town contracted with Barefoot Planning to undertake a 
more detailed process for the “Mixed Use Village” component 
of the plan. This involves an analysis of the appropriate 
building heights, setbacks and other spatial elements of new 
development in the area, as well as a plan for the improvement 
of streets, trails and parks in the study area.

Utility Box Beautification Project: In 2018, the Town of 
Sidney	funded	the	beautification	of	6	BC	Hydro	transformers	
with	graffiti-resistant	vinyl	wrap	to	enhance	the	look	of	Sidney’s	
streets.	The	beautification	effort	has	prioritized	the	wrapping	
of utility boxes located in Downtown Sidney as well as several 
pump station locations around town. In addition to assisting 
beautification	efforts,	the	program	seeks	to	promote	and	
celebrate established and emerging artists from the Saanich 
Peninsula.

Other 2018 Department Initiatives: Development Services 
staff also provided planning assistance and support on a 
number of other inter-departmental projects, including the 
Parks Master Plan, concept plans for Rathdown, Brethour and 
Resthaven Parks, and an Urban Forest Strategy.
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The Engineering Division provides technical expertise 
with respect to road design, water systems, sanitary sewer 
and	storm	sewer	systems,	traffic	and	parking	management,	
asset	management,	the	procurement	of	fleet	vehicles	and	of	
specialized services such as asphalt paving and video camera 
pipe inspection. The Engineering Division also administers 
contracts for the collection of garbage, kitchen organics, and 
yard waste. In addition to this, the Engineering Division seeks 
out and makes applications for grant funding on numerous 
proposals. In cases where in-house expertise is not available, 
Engineering is responsible for the procurement of professional 
services through a proposal process.

The Public Works Division is responsible for the maintenance 
and	repair	of	all	roads,	traffic	signals,	streetlights,	street	signs,	
sidewalks, bus shelters, storm drainage, wastewater collection 
(including pump stations), water mains, service connections 
and	meters,	fire	hydrants,	and	water	main	valves.	Public	Works	
also	maintains	the	municipal	vehicle	fleet,	municipal	buildings,	
and roadside litter collection. 

The Parks Division is responsible for the upgrade and 
maintenance of all 28 Town parks, including the Rotary Park 
“Field of Dreams,” located in North Saanich on airport lands, 
through a cost sharing agreement with the District of North 
Saanich.	The	Parks	Division	also	maintains	17	beach	access	
points,	as	well	as	administering	the	downtown	beautification	
and banner programs, and annual Christmas light displays 
throughout the Town.

Bylaw Enforcement is responsible for day-to-day bylaw 
enforcement activities. This includes enforcement action, 
ongoing consultation, and coordination with other departments 
in	the	review	and	modification	of	bylaws	as	required.

2018 Highlights

•	 Completed Parks Master Plan; 

•	 Installed sand volleyball court at Tulista Park; 

•	 Replaced Ardwell Avenue storm and sanitary sewers; 

•	 Replaced Epco Drive storm sewer and water main;

•	 Completed Engineering and Fishery Studies for Reay 
Creek Dam;

•	 Improved safety of Henry Avenue Crosswalk;

•	 Completed upgrades to Boulder Park;

•	 Repaved Resthaven Drive (Henry to Mills), Second 
Street (Bevan to Sidney), and Wesbrook Drive;

•	 Completed White Birch water main loop construction;

•	 Completed Public Works Yard Solar Project. 

2019 Initiatives
•	 Ferry Terminal Dock Metal Painting;

•	 Upgrade	bike	path	on	west	side	of	Hwy	17;

•	 Complete design for Harbour Pump Station replacement;

•	 Complete construction of the Downtown Employee 
Parking Lot south of Mary Winspear Centre;

•	 Beacon Wharf Repairs;

•	 Patricia Place Storm and Sanitary Sewer Replacement;

•	 Third Street at Sidney Avenue Underground Wiring 
Project;

•	 McDonald Park Road Sidewalk, Henry to Mills;

•	 McDonald Park Road Improvements, Mills to Pat Bay;

•	 Epco Drive Paving;

•	 Seventh Street Paving, Beacon to Bevan;

•	 Bessredge Paving, south of James White Blvd;

•	 Water meter replacement program;

•	 Water main replacement, Vallis Place;

•	 Sewer Lift Station condition assessment.

The Engineering, Public Works, and Parks Department 
is responsible for all municipal infrastructure, including 
roads, sidewalks, water mains, sanitary sewers, storm 
drains,	street	and	traffic	lights,	solid	waste	collection,	
parks upgrades and maintenance, street trees, and all 
municipal buildings and facilities.  

ENGINEERING, PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS
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The	Sidney	Volunteer	Fire	Department	provides	fire	suppression,	rescue,	first	responder	emergency	medical	care,	
and	specialized	marina	firefighting	services	to	the	residents	and	businesses	of	the	Town	of	Sidney.	Supplementing	our	
established emergency response capabilities is an ever increasing emphasis on risk reduction initiatives in the form of 
public	education,	fire	&	life	safety	inspections,	and	enforcement	of	Town	of	Sidney	bylaws	and	BC	Fire	Code	regulations.	
This	full	spectrum	of	services	is	provided	utilizing	a	composite	model	of	seven	career	and	thirty-five	volunteer	firefighters.	In	
addition	to	fire	&	rescue	specific	services,	the	Sidney	Volunteer	Fire	Department	is	responsible	for	emergency	management	
and preparedness in Sidney in conjunction with the Peninsula Emergency Measures Organization (PEMO). 

FIRE SERVICES

Training
The Sidney Fire Department trained 
on	Thursday	nights	for	a	total	of	4,065	
hours and additionally put in 1,544 hours 
of extra training, courses and public 
engagements	for	a	total	of	5,609	training	
hours in 2018.  Our members continued 
to work towards and accomplish 
impressive	certification	and	education	
goals.

An exercise involving multiple agencies 
was a 2018 training highlight. In May, 
Sidney Fire partnered with Seastar 
Chemicals to facilitate a large scale 
event simulating a delivery truck spill of a 
mixed load of product. Sidney Fire, North 
Saanich Fire, CRD Hazmat, BCEHS, 
RCMP and Seastar Chemicals staff all 
participated	in	this	beneficial	exercise.

The Acquired Structure Program was 
beneficial	for	training	again	in	2018.	
Crews used structures slated for 
demolition for practical evaluations and 
ran scenarios to practice pumping, hose  
advancement, ventilation, roof access  

and incident command. Two multi story 
buildings were used by members of 
the department to grow and build our 
high-rise response, including practice of 
forcible entry, incident command, vertical 
standpipe, rapid attack of high rise hose 
lines and alternate water supplies.  

In October the Sidney Fire Department 
welcomed eight new recruits to the 
department.  The members went through 
orientation and were enrolled in the 
Exterior Program working towards their 
NFPA	1001	certification	which	will	take	
approximately 18 months. 

Senior Fire Safety Presentations
Fire Prevention staff initiated a program 
to deliver Fire Safety and Emergency 
Preparedness presentations to all stratas 
in Sidney. This program came into place 
in	the	end	of	2017	and	continued	to	be	
successful in 2018. Staff were able to 
deliver 13 public presentations, spending 
almost 19 hours informing residents and 
the business community.

Emergency Planning for Senior 
Care Home Facilities
The Fire Department formed the 
Assisted, Extended, and Nursing 
Home Working Group, consisting of the 
directors of senior care home facilities 
that are deemed a “higher risk” in an 
emergency due to the age and mobility 
of their residents, to work together to 
eliminate risks and develop working 
relationships in the event that mutual aid 
is necessary between the residences. In 
September this group executed a mock 
evacuation that involved transporting 
residents from one facility to another. BC 
Transit, Sidney Fire, PEMO ESS, PEMO 
SAR and Sidney RCMP participated 
in this valuable exercise. This working 
group continues to meet regularly and 
improve upon action items, such as 
consistent “Grab and Go” bags for each 
facility.

2018 Highlights
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Wild�re and Provincial 
Deployment 
The Sidney Fire Department was tasked 
by	the	Office	of	the	Fire	Commissioner	
to	attend	the	Wildfire	Emergency	in	
the province. The Fire Department 
sent two crews, consisting of 4 Sidney 
and	4	North	Saanich	firefighters,	who	
rotated with Engine 1 and Rescue 1.
The Fire Departments cycled through 
firefighters	for	12	days	before	they	were	
returned in Engine 1.  Crews worked 
and	travelled	to	many	different	fires	in	
northern British Columbia. Additionally, in 
2018, three members of our department 
were deployed to assist with emergency 
management operations in the province. 
Costs for these deployments were 
revovered from the Province.

Emergency Noti�cation System
In the event of an emergency, a tested 
and proven crisis communication and 
emergency	mass	notification	system	is	
critical to help ensure Sidney residents 
and stakeholders’ safety and well being. 
Subscribers to the Town of Sidney 
Emergency	Mass	Notification	System	
will	be	notified	of	a	potential	threat	to	
their safety and well being (such as 
severe	weather,	fire,	tsunami,	hazardous	
materials release, or other dangerous 
situations) on the communication 
device(s) of their choice. More than 
3900 residents and stakeholders are 
registered, nearly 33% of the community 
in less than two years of the program 
being live. In 2018, the Town of Sidney, 
the District of Central Saanich and 
the District of North Saanich merged 
Emergency	Notification	Systems,	to	
form Saanich Peninsula Alert (SPA). 
The merger provides additional safety 
to residents, as all three municipalities 
can now disseminate information to the 
region.

Fire Prevention Inspections
Complementing the rapid growth of new 
construction projects, which require a 
significant	investment	of	time	to	review,	
additional	emphasis	was	placed	on	fire	
safety planning for these construction 
and demolition sites. All inspectable 
properties in the Town were inspected 
and re-inspected at the frequency 
mandated by the BC Fire Services Act.

Business Continuity
Alongside individual personal 
preparedness, business continuity 
planning is crucial to ensuring the 
community as a whole not only survives 
an emergency, but also recovers and 
is	healthy	afterwards.	In	2016,	the	Fire	
Department developed a business 
continuity guide and template and began 
to present and distribute the information 
to businesses and organizations. In 
2018,	117	templates	for	business	
continuity were delivered. The goal is to 
introduce, educate, and assist all Sidney 
businesses to create and maintain 
business continuity plans. Sidney Fire 
inspection personnel will review and audit 
business continuity plans as part of the 
annual	or	biannual	fire	and	life	safety	
inspection process.

Surrey Fire Dispatch Transition
Following	notification	that	costs	for	Fire	
Dispatch Services (provided by Saanich 
Fire	Dispatch	since	2007)	would	be	
increasing dramatically, Sidney and four 
other municipalities issued a request 
for proposals for an alternative service 
provider. The City of Surrey was the 
winning	proponent,	and	staff	for	the	five	
municipalities worked with Surrey on 
the details of a transition. The Town can 
expect	to	see	significant	savings	over	
five	years	by	contracting	with	Surrey	for	
Dispatch services.

AGLG Auditors Report
The Fire Department continues to 
work towards implementing the 13 
recommendations from the Auditor 
General Emergency Management Audit, 
including:

•	 Considering a shared Emergency 
Program Coordinator arrangement 
with PEMO to maximize emergency 
management resources (2025); 

•	 Developing recommended 
evacuation routes informed by 
reception centre locations and more 
specific	guidance	based	on	specific	
hazards and scenarios (Q4 2018); 

•	 Developing	a	list	of	financial	
assistance programs available to 
local governments to assist with 
emergency management (Q2, 2018); 

•	 Ensuring	that	debriefings	are	held	
after each exercise (Q4, 2018); 

•	 Updating our emergency response 
and recovery plan by incorporating 
business continuity, mutual aid 
agreements and a list of services 
and resources available from 
Emergency Management BC (Q1, 
2019);

•	 Ensuring alignment with the Sidney 
RCMP detachment’s recovery 
strategies (Q3, 2018);

•	 Updating the names and contact 
numbers included in our business 
continuity plan at least semi-annually 
or more frequently as needed (Q2, 
2018).
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Policing services are provided to the municipalities of Sidney and North 
Saanich by the RCMP-GRC through a Federal/Provincial/Municipal contract. 
A detachment centrally located at 9895 Fourth Street in Sidney provides 
diverse policing services to the surrounding Northern Saanich Peninsula 
and	First	Nation	communities	as	well	as	the	Willis	Point	region	and	fifty-
two islands and coastal waters extending to the USA boundary. Within the 
detachment boundaries, policing services are also provided to the Victoria 
International Airport, and the Swartz Bay and Anacortes ferry terminals.

Detachment Resources

Sidney/North	Saanich	Detachment	is	comprised	of	thirty-two	police	officers	and	nine	civilian	support	staff.	Uniform	officers	are	
divided into four Watches providing a twenty-four hour, seven day a week on-duty response to emergencies and calls for service.  
Specialized	units	within	the	detachment	are	organized	into	a	four	officer	Major	Crime	Unit,	two	officer	Traffic	Unit,	one	Community	
Policing	officer	and	two	First	Nations	Policing	officers.	On	average,	the	detachment	responds	to	7000	calls	for	service	annually,	
many involving extensive investigation.

A management team is responsible for administration, planning, budget and operations for the detachment. Business hours for 
inquiries,	assistance	and	service	is	Monday	to	Friday	from	8:30	am	–	4:15	pm.

Strategic Policing Priorities

Detachment policing priorities are established through consultation with key partners within the community and in alignment with 
regional,	provincial	and	national	public	safety	initiatives.	In	2018,	annual	policing	priorities	for	traffic	enforcement,	property	crime	
reduction,	organized	crime,	Community	and	First	Nation	policing	were	implemented.		Specific	objectives	for	each	priority	were	
developed to focus policing efforts. Impaired and distracted driving enforcement is given priority to enhance road safety and help in 
the	prevention	of	motor	vehicle	incidents.		Drug	trafficking	enforcement	is	aimed	at	the	intervention	of	prolific	offenders	who	repeat	
crimes that support their substance abuse addictions.

A	quarterly	policing	report	provides	details	on	crime	trends	and	statistical	comparison	over	a	five	year	period.	The	Detachment	
Commander provides a review of these reports to Mayor and Council with details on how the detachment is managing crime and 
meeting	the	objectives	of	the	policing	priorities.	Under	the	leadership	of	the	Detachment	Commander,	officers	participate	in	crime	
prevention, investigation and proactive policing objectives while working closely with volunteers and policing partners to reduce 
crime and harm in the community.

POLICE SERVICES



22 Departments - Police Services | Annual Report 2018 | Sidney by the Sea

Community Policing & Volunteer Programs

The detachment is complemented by a number of dedicated 
volunteers who donate many hours of their time each month 
to help make Sidney a safe and desirable community to live 
and work.  Programs which citizens can volunteer to enhance 
policing services in the community include Victim Services, 
Restorative Justice, Citizens on Patrol, Speed Watch and the 
Auxiliary Constable Program. A Community Consultative Group 
comprised of dedicated volunteers from both Sidney and North 
Saanich act as an advisory committee to the Detachment. 
The	Community	Policing	officer	and	Auxiliary	Constables	
are actively involved in the delivery of crime prevention and 
education programs to help prevent community members from 
becoming victims of theft and fraud crimes. The Detachment 
currently has six Auxiliary Constables, some of whom are bike 
trained and may be observed in the community on foot or bike 
patrol.	During	the	past	year	the	Community	Policing	officer,	
Media Liaison and Auxiliary Constables have assisted in the 
delivery of programs which enhance safety and the prevention 
of crime. 

The Block Watch program has been expanded to include new 
neighbourhoods. The Auxiliary Constable Coordinator forwards 
safety alerts, tips, and recent crime incidents to Block Watch 
Captains who utilize email to distribute the information to 
neighbouring residents. 

A new initiative to build a partnership in prevention of theft from 
vehicle crimes provides “All Valuables Removed” stickers to 
vehicle	owners.	This	initiative	serves	a	dual	purpose:	to	remind	
vehicle owners and to extinguish a theft opportunity from 
offenders. The stickers can be obtained at the Detachment, 
Motor Vehicle Branch and Save-On Foods. 

An enhanced police engagement initiative was implemented by 
the Detachment to identify multiple locations to be given priority 
for	regular	police	patrols.	These	locations	were	identified	as	
public spaces where a policing presence provides enhanced 
safety to the community where they enjoy parks, walking trails, 
recreation and the waterfront.

Each summer both locals and tourists frequent the popular 
Sidney Street Market on Thursday evenings from June to the 
end	of	August.	The	Community	Policing	officer,	assisted	by	
Auxiliary Constables, participate in the market, where they 
greet the community and offer crime prevention advice and 
information on safety programs for adults and children. Stop by 
the	RCMP	booth	to	meet	our	Community	Policing	officer.

“Coffee with a Cop” provides an informal opportunity to meet 
local	officers	and	to	share	concerns	or	provide	feedback	
regarding	policing	services.	Our	community	is	growing,	traffic	is	
increasing, more pedestrians and cyclists are on our roadways 
and following motor vehicle regulations has never been more 
important. Please join us for a conversation at our next “Coffee
with a Cop”.

Our	Community	Policing	officer	visits	our	local	schools	to	
establish a connection with local youth and provide some sound 
safety awareness and education. Messaging to the youth 
continues to include instruction from the Drug Awareness and 
Resistance	Program	to	positively	influence	the	choices	of	our	
youth.

Crime Rates/Crime Prevention

Both Sidney and North Saanich enjoy a relatively low crime rate 
in comparison to many other communities in British Columbia. 
The support of the community in preventing and reporting 
criminal activity has been instrumental in solving criminal 
offences quickly, contributing to safe streets and safe homes. 
To continue this trend, the RCMP-GRC encourage community 
members to take measures to protect themselves from crime, 
not leaving valuables in vehicles, securing their homes and 
immediately reporting suspicious activity. 

Sidney/North Saanich RCMP participating in Tim Hortons Camp Day.
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STRATEGIC PLAN - 2018 PROGRESS REPORT
Annual Planning Framework

Sidney’s	annual	planning	framework	is	comprised	of	three	separate	but	complementary	planning	processes:

•	 Strategic planning - occurs in September/October

•	 Business planning/establishing Departmental Work Plans - occurs October - December

•	 Financial planning - occurs throughout the year, culminating in January/February with budget deliberations.

These processes result in a set of integrated plans that support the overall vision and mission of the Town, and align activities and 
resources to achieve the strategic goals and annual business priorities set by Council. 

The Strategic Plan is the highest-level statement of the Town’s aspirations for the future, and is updated every year by Council. It 
articulates the vision, mission, values and broad strategic priorities and goals. Progress of the plan is monitored through an annual 
review of key performance indicators. 

The Business Plan translates the high level strategic goals into Departmental Work Plan priorities. The priorities and associated 
objectives and measures are established annually by staff. 

Lastly, the Financial Plan provides the resourcing strategy to support the strategic and business plans. Updated annually, it is a 
five-year	plan	that	includes	both	operating	and	capital	components.	

Each	year’s	Annual	Report	reflects	upon	the	previous	year,	and	evaluates	whether	the	Town	successfully	accomplished	the	goals	
and strategic direction set out in the annual planning framework.

Resilient Economy Balanced Demographic Quality Living Environment

This	strategic	plan	was	reviewed	again	in	the	autumn	of	2017	and	updated	as	necessary	to	reflect	additional	and	modified	
priorities. Section 98 of the Community Charter outlines municipal progress reporting requirements. The following report provides 
feedback on the progress we made throughout the year ended 2018 toward the established objectives set by Council in 2015 and 
reviewed	in	2017.

2018 Strategic Plan Progress Report

Strategic	planning	is	an	important	step	for	the	Town	of	Sidney	to	set	priorities,	allocate	limited	financial	and	staff	resources,	guide	
the work of staff, and communicate to citizens. In November of 2015, Town of Sidney Council undertook a comprehensive strategic 
planning session with a goal to develop key strategies for Council’s term. The outcome of Council’s efforts was a three-year 
strategic	plan	that	focused	on	three	overarching	goals:
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RESILIENT ECONOMY

Port Sidney Marina Lease Extension & Breakwater 
Divestiture

•	 Lease extension (50 years) process is well underway with 
the Province – we are anticipating approval of lease  
mid-2019

•	 Breakwater divestiture has been approved, subject to 
approval of the lease with the province

•	 Staff to negotiate with owner of Port Sidney Marina 
regarding	sub-lease	and	any	proposed	modifications	to	the	
marina

Downtown Employee Parking

•	 Continued planning work and began construction of a 
new surface parking lot to the south of the Mary Winspear 
Centre

•	 Completion and opening of parking lot expected in the 
spring of 2019

Significant Development Proposals

•	 Continued	to	provide	sufficient	resources	to	review	and	
process	significant	development	proposals

Downtown Waterfront Vision Plan

•	 Plan completed; work continues on establishing design 
options, community consultation opportunities, detailed 
engineering studies, and funding opportunities

•	 Beacon	Wharf	identified	as	a	priority

•	 Beacon Wharf Condition Assessment completed

•	 Remaining Beacon Wharf studies will be completed, which 
will assist in establishing options for future redevelopment

BALANCED DEMOGRAPHIC

Development of Attainable Workforce Housing

•	 Continued application of Town’s Bonus Density Amenity 
policy, where two thirds of funds collected go into an 
Affordable Housing Reserve

•	 Construction continues on the Aranza project on Fourth 
Street, in which 50% of units will be below market rentals

•	 Continued exploration of affordable housing opportunities 
with development community, housing societies and other 
levels of government

Market & Promote the Community for Families and Youth

•	 Completed construction of a Beach Volleyball Court

•	 Continued support of a large variety of events and 
celebrations in Sidney throughout the year, including 
the BC Boat Show, Standup Paddleboarding National 
Championships, Sidney Days & Canada Day, 2018 World 
Rowing Coastal Championships, and more

Parks Master Plan

•	 The Parks Master Plan sets out a vision to guide the future 
of	Sidney’s	28	public	parks	and	17	beach	accesses;	the	
plan was approved by Council on January 22, 2018

•	 Work continues on development of long term capital plan 
for improvements

•	 Completed park improvements in Boulder Park

•	 Started detailed planning and consultation processes 
for Rathdown Park, Brethour Park, and Resthaven Park 
Concept Plans

•	 Started detailed planning and consultation process for an 
Urban Forest Strategy
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RESILIENT ECONOMY

West Sidney Local Area Plan

•	 Continued	work	on	developing	Zoning	and	OCP	policies	
and	Development	Permit	Area	Guidelines	that	reflect	
the West Sidney Local Area Plan (adopted by Council in 
October,	2017)

•	 Started work on a Village Master Plan for the area, which 
is to be used as a blueprint for creating the Village’s 
critical social and green infrastructure.

Urban Forest Management Strategy

•	 Contracted consultant in June, 2018 to develop an Urban 
Forest Strategy (UFS) to help guide the long term health 
and distribution of trees in Sidney

•	 Worked with consultant through the fall of 2018 to review 
current policies, assess existing urban forest, and conduct 
initial staff engagement activities

•	 Worked with consultant to conduct initial public 
engagement activities – a Public Open House was held 
in October, 2018 and an online survey ran throughout the 
month of October

•	 Final round of public engagement planned for early 2019

Implementation of Provincial Flood Hazard Management 
Guidelines

•	 Adopted	interim	Flood	Construction	Level	Policy:
Any property grade less than 5.0 metres geodetic 
elevation requires a professional engineer to determine 
an	appropriate	flood-proofing	elevation	prior	to	any	
construction

Community Safety Building (CSB)

•	 Construction continued on Town’s new seismically sound 
Community Safety Building

•	 Long-term lease agreement with BC Emergency Health 
Services for the co-location of an ambulance station at the 
new CSB was approved

•	 Fire Department to be operational out of new building in 
May, 2019

•	 BC Ambulance to be operational out of new building in 
June, 2019

Downtown Public Realm Design Standards

•	 The Downtown Streetscape and Urban Design Standards, 
which are intended to guide the design of redevelopment 
of private properties, public lands and rights-of-way, and 
urban infrastructure in downtown Sidney, were accepted 
by Council in January, 2018

•	 Staff have worked to evaluate components of the plan that 
can be incorporated into Town bylaws as well as proposed 
new developments in the downtown

Reay Creek Remediation

•	 Continued work with Transport Canada to explore 
remediation options

•	 Commissioned and received two studies (Reay Creek 
Fish and Fish Habitat Assessment and Reay Creek Dam 
– Preliminary Geotechnical Options Assessment) that will 
help guide remediation efforts

QUALITY LIVING ENVIRONMENT

New Beach Volleyball Court during 
construction

New Downtown Employee Parking 
Lot nearing completion

Beacon Wharf Condition Assessment 
completed

Boulder Park Improvements

Community Safety Building nearing 
completion

Public Open House for the Urban 
Forest Strategy
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2019-2022 STRATEGIC PLAN
The Town of Sidney develops a new Strategic Plan every four years to coincide with the election cycle of a new Council. The 
Town’s 2019-2022 Strategic Plan was developed by Council in early 2019 and was endorsed at the February 25, 2019 Council 
Meeting.	The	plan	identifies	a	vision	statement,	a	mission	statement,	and	six	overarching	goals	for	the	Town	of	Sidney	for	the	
years	2019-2022.	In	the	fall	of	each	year,	the	currency	of	the	Plan	is	reviewed	by	Council	and,	if	necessary,	modifications	to	priority	
actions are made.

Town of Sidney Vision Statement 
“The Town of Sidney is a leader in good governance and service delivery and is recognized for being trustworthy, connected to the 
community, visionary, innovative, resilient and an employer of choice.”

Town of Sidney Mission Statement
“The Town of Sidney provides good governance, services, and stewardship of public assets, and fosters the social, economic and 
environmental well-being of the community for current and future generations.”

Council	identified	the	following	overarching	goals	as	strategic	focus	areas.	Pages	27	and	28	outline	some	of	the	ways	in	which	we	
will work towards accomplishing these goals throughout 2019-2022.

Complete Community
The Town will strive to be a complete 
community with a mix of amenities 
and a quality living environment. 

Environmental Stewardship
The Town will be stewards of our 
environment.

Economic Vibrancy
The Town will continue to adapt and 
prosper as a diverse commercial 
centre for business and employment.

Community Engagement
The Town will strive to engage 
the public in its decision-making 
processes.

Organizational Excellence
The Town of Sidney will remain a 
leading organization in the provision 
of governance and quality services.

Community Infrastructure 
The Town will be a leader in the 
management of its assets.
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Affordable Housing 
The Town will continue to look for opportunities to collaborate with partners 
eg. Capital Regional District, Provincial and Federal Governments, housing societies and developers

Comprehensive review and update of the Official Community Plan
To	include:	Housing	needs	assessment,	Urban	Forest	Strategy,	Transportation	strategy	(multi	modal	
transportation hub, parking and reduce vehicle use), Parks Master Plan, West Sidney Local Area 
Plan, Downtown Local Area Plan, Downtown Waterfront Vision, Downtown Streetscape and Urban 
Design Standards, and Environmentally Sensitive Area Development Permit Guidelines

Advocate for increased access to health care with the Provincial Government and Registered 
Health Organizations

Review Parking and Loading Bylaw to address the following requirements:
- Parking requirements for multi-family residences 
- Payment in lieu – amount and limits 
- Allocation of parking spaces within mixed use buildings (i.e. residents, visitors, employees, patrons)

COMPLETE COMMUNITY

ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

Environment Protection:

Work with Transport Canada on the completion of Reay Creek Pond remediation

Tsehum Harbour Concerns

Prepare a State of the Environment Report

Update the Climate Action Plan
Key	elements	should	include:
- Green House Gas Emissions reduction strategy 
- Adaptation planning (eg. Sea level rise)

ECONOMIC VIBRANCY

Review Town’s role and resources currently dedicated to fostering economic vibrancy

Currently Underway

2019 Initiative

2019 Initiative

2020 Initiative

The Town will strive to be a complete community with a mix of amenities and a quality 
living environment. 

The Town will be stewards of our environment.

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

2022 Initiative

2021 Initiative

The Town will continue to adapt and prosper as a diverse commercial centre for 
business and employment.

Currently Underway
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ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Taxation policy review

Succession planning

Council & Committees:
- Examine Council appointments to clarify role and value 
- Review citizen appointments, looking at roles and responsibilities

Review and update of Development Cost Charge Bylaw

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE

Completion of Port Sidney Marina lease extension

Beacon Wharf assessment and exploration of options

Ferry Terminal Cross Border Pre-Clearance Planning

Maintenance on Bevan Fishing Pier

Facilities Asset Management Plan

Review Options for library services

The Town of Sidney will remain a leading organization in the provision of governance 
and quality services.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Build meaningful public engagement into all key Town initiatives
Updating	the	Official	Community	Plan	will	provide	a	key	engagement	opportunity

Strengthen relationships with First Nations neighbours
Understand what is being done now and what steps can be taken

Collaboration with neighbouring municipalities

The Town will strive to engage the public in its decision-making processes.

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

2019 Initiative

2021 Initiative

The Town will be a leader in the management of its assets.

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

Currently Underway

2020 Initiative

2021 Initiative

2022 Initiative
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FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
The	financial	statements	are	the	responsibility	of	the	Town’s	management	and	have	been	prepared	in	compliance	
with	the	Community	Charter	and	generally	accepted	accounting	principles.	The	annual	financial	statements	are	
composed of two primary statements – the Statement of Financial Position (page 40) and the Statement of Operations 
and Accumulated Surplus (page 41). These primary statements are supplemented by 2 additional statements and 
extensive	notes	and	tables	that	serve	to	better	explain	the	Town’s	financial	results	and	nature of	operations.	The	notes	
are	an	integral	part	of	the	financial	statements,	as	they	provide	additional	details	on	the	consolidated	numbers	found	
on the two primary statements. The statements and supporting notes are discussed in more detail below.  

Statement of Financial Position 

The Statement of Financial Position	outlines	the	Town’s	financial	health	by	providing	a	snapshot	of	the	total	Assets,	Liabilities,	
and Accumulated Surplus as at December 31, 2018.  Financial Assets include cash, as well as items that can or will be converted 
to cash within a short timeframe, such as investments and receivables.  Financial Assets represent amounts that can be used to 
satisfy	Liabilities	and	finance	future	services.		

A	new	category	of	Financial	Asset	was	included	in	the	Town’s	statements	for	2018:		Assets	Held	for	Sale.		This	represents	the	net	
book	value	of	the	old	Fire	Hall	site	and	adjacent	parking	lot.		This	equated	to	$1,040,775,	which	was	moved	to	the	Financial	Assets	
section	from	Non-financial	Assets	due	to	the	impending	sale	of	these	properties	to	partially	finance	the	new	Community	Safety	
Building (CSB).

Liabilities is the next section in the Statement of Financial Position, and represents cash and services owing by the Town to third 
parties.  The large increase to Accounts Payable relates to the major capital projects being undertaken by the Town, and the 
associated billings.  The largest contributing factor for the increase in Deferred Revenue and Deposits was the volume of deposits 
held for offsite services related to developments.

The Town’s largest liability is its debt, totaling $12.5 million, which was entirely issued through the Municipal Finance Authority.  It is 
important	to	note	that	any	debt	held	by	the	Town	must	be	for	capital	purposes.		The	net	increase	to	debt	was	$6.7	million	in	2018;	
responsible	for	this	was	$7	million	of	CSB	interim	financing,	offset	by	the	retirement	of	$300,000	of	existing	debt.		The	average	
interest	rate	of	outstanding	debt	is	3.44%,	with	rates	of	individual	debt	issues	ranging	from	2.4%	to	4.65%.		The	Town’s	debt	liability	
will	decrease	in	2019,	as	some	of	the	interim	financing	will	be	repaid	when	the	other	funding	sources	for	the	CSB	–	primarily	the	
proceeds	from	the	sale	of	the	existing	fire	hall	site	–	are	applied.		

Next on the Statement of Financial Position is Net Financial Assets / (Net Debt), which is the difference between the Town’s 
financial	assets	and	its	liabilities.		Due	to	the	borrowing	accumulated	for	the	CSB,	and	the	timing	of	the	associated	property	sale,	
the Town slipped into a Net Debt position at the end of 2018.  Net Debt indicates that we currently have more future obligations 
than	we	have	financial	assets	to	satisfy	those	debts,	meaning	that	future	revenues	are	required	to	offset	past	commitments.		

A Net Debt position is fairly common for local governments, as they undertake investments in capital assets that require future 
revenues to repay.  There is no “right” level for Net Financial Assets / (Net Debt); it depends largely on the growth plans and 
infrastructure health of each local government.  The two most common reasons for reduction in Net Financial Assets or growth in 
Net	Debt	are	investment	in	capital	assets	(i.e.	turning	financial	assets	into	non-financial	assets)	or	incurring	debt.		
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  Tangible Capital Assets
  Surplus from Operations
  Capital Reserves
  Other Reserves & Restricted Cash

$83,989,322

$3,768,497

$6,267,900 $1,416,409

Accumulated Surplus

It is important to clarify that the Accumulated Surplus has been building over many years; since it is comprised of both Financial 
and	Non-financial	Assets,	it	does	not	represent	an	available	pool	of	funding.		Net Financial Assets / (Net Debt) represents the 
amount available to satisfy financial obligations and Non-financial Assets represents the amount available to meet future service

obligations.

Statement of Operations & Accumulated Surplus 

The Statement of Operations & Accumulated Surplus presents the operational results by comparing revenues and expenses for the 
operating year, with the net difference being the “Annual Surplus”.  The Annual Surplus essentially represents the increase in the 
Town’s	ability	to	fund	future	services.		Total	revenues	of	$22,005,724	were	slightly	lower	than	2017,	mostly	due	to	a	return	to	more	
traditional	levels	of	developer-contributed	assets	turned	over	to	the	Town,	following	a	one-year	anomaly	in	2017;	a	modest	increase	
in municipal property taxes is primarily responsible for the remaining difference.  Total expenses of $20,495,518 were higher than 
2017,	with	increases	in	policing	costs	being	the	main	factor.

The 2018 Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus	indicates	an	Annual	Surplus	of	$1,510,206,	which	is	broken	down	into	
the	following	components:	

Net investment in Capital Assets $			3,531,596
Net decrease in Reserves & Restricted Cash (1,397,869)
Net decrease in Surplus from Operations (623,521)
Annual Surplus $			1,510,206

The Annual Surplus	figure	should	not	be	considered	as	pure	financial	gain	for	the	Town,	nor	an	indication	that	we	are	collecting	
too much in taxes and fees.  It is important to acknowledge that much of the money being collected as tax revenue is earmarked 
for capital asset additions, for transfer to reserves for future use, or for repayment of debt.  None of these legitimate and traditional 
uses of funds qualify as expenses	for	purposes	of	financial	reporting;	therefore,	they	are	not	reflected	in	the	Annual Surplus
amount,	which	may,	as	a	result,	appear	to	be	inflated.	The	Surplus from Operations	figure,	which	is	the	smallest	component	of	the	
Annual Surplus, provides the most accurate indication of true operating results; the rest of the Annual Surplus has either been used 
to acquire capital, or set aside for future use.

Non-financial	Assets	is	the	next	section	of	the	Statement of Financial Position.  This 
category is made up almost entirely of the net value of tangible capital assets (TCA), 
but also of smaller amounts for inventories of supplies and prepaid expenses, all 
of which are held for the provision of future services. The TCA amount represents 
the remaining value (cost less depreciation) of past investment in infrastructure, 
buildings, facilities, structures, vehicles, equipment and other long lasting items that 
provide services to residents over the useful lives of the assets.  Inventories and 
prepaid expenses are assets that will likely be consumed as part of operations in the 
upcoming	year,	but	cannot	be	easily	converted	to	cash	to	meet	financial	obligations.	

The “bottom line” on the Statement of Financial Position is the Accumulated Surplus, 
which	is	the	total	of	Net	Financial	Assets	/	(Net	Debt)	and	Non-financial	Assets;	
this amount represents the sum of all economic resources available to the Town to 
meet	future	financial	and	service	obligations.		The	Accumulated	Surplus	balance
of	$95,442,128	is	broken	down	into	various	components	in	Note	7	(page	52)	of	the	
statements (as illustrated in the above pie chart), and is discussed in more detail in 
the following section.
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Please note that the net decrease in Surplus from Operations	is	a	factor	of	timing,	not	of	financial	operations	for	the	year.		An	
amount	of	$764,359	was	temporarily	borrowed	from	Surplus	(total	2-year	accumulation:	$1,057,179)	as	funding	for	the	CSB;	this	
amount	will	be	repaid	when	the	other	funding	sources	for	this	large	capital	project	are	realized.		The	actual	operating	deficit	for	
2018 was $35,200.

The Annual Surplus is the net difference between the Town’s actual revenues and its expenses for the year, and is independent 
of any variance from the budget for the year.  A budget column is included in the Statement of Operations & Accumulated Surplus
to provide the reader with an indication of operating plans for the year and demonstrate public accountability; however, variances 
from	budget	are	not	discussed	in	the	financial	statements.		

A	comparison	of	budget	to	actuals	would	indicate	that	the	Town	realized	an	Annual	Surplus	$1,611,314	higher	than	what	was	
expected	(budgeted).		$777,011	of	this	variance	is	due	to	higher	than	budgeted	revenues	(developer-constructed	assets	provided	
to the Town, and gains on disposal of assets being the largest contributors) while $834,303 resulted from savings on the expense 
side.  The biggest factor in expense savings was that almost $500,000 in work completed by Town forces on behalf of third parties 
(related to development) was capitalized, not expensed.

Net Decrease in Reserves 

In	the	breakdown	of	the	Annual	Surplus	on	the	previous	page,	another	contributing	factor	is	the	net	decrease	of	$1,397,869	in	the	
Town’s	reserves.		Reserves	are	funds	set	aside	to	finance	works	(usually	capital)	in	future	years.			

There	are	two	classes	of	reserves.		The	more	formal	of	these	is	indicated	in	Note	7	as	“Reserve funds set aside for specific 
purposes by Council.” These are known as Statutory Reserves, in that they are created by bylaw, as allowed under provincial 
legislation.  The establishing bylaws set out the purposes of the funds, and these purposes cannot be changed without a bylaw 
amendment.  In other words, the funds must be used for the purposes for which the reserves were established.

The second subset of reserves is labeled “Reserves set aside by Council.”  While less formal, these funds are also usually 
earmarked	for	specific	purposes,	but	it	is	possible	to	redirect	these	funds	for	other	uses	through	the	annual	budget	process.		
However,	as	most	of	the	balance	in	this	second	subset	of	reserves	is	made	up	of	funds	carried	forward	for	completion	of	specific	
projects or initiatives, redirection is generally not recommended, unless it has been established that the funds are no longer 
required for their original purpose.

Statutory Reserves decreased by roughly $1.2 million, as more funds were transferred out for capital funding than were transferred 
into these reserves during the year.  Most notably, there was $2.4 million worth of capital projects funded from the Infrastructure 
Reserve, with only $1.5 million of budgeted transfers into the reserve, a net decrease of roughly $900,000.  Also of note, the Gas 
Tax	Reserve	realized	a	net	decrease	of	$780,000,	after	transfers	in	of	$586,000	and	transfers	out	of	$1.37	million.		These	net	
outflows	were	expected	as	part	of	the	financial	plan;	this	represents	the	cyclical	nature	of	reserve	balances,	whereby	Town	capital	
spending	patterns	have	a	significant	impact.		

The	Town’s	total	Statutory	Reserves	at	year	end	amounted	to	$6,267,900.		Of	this	total,	44%	is	made	up	of	reserves	to	replace	
Town vehicles, equipment and the ferry terminal, while a further 22% represents the Town’s Infrastructure Replacement reserves.  
The primary purpose of maintaining these reserves is to set money aside in a systematic, evenly-distributed manner for the 
eventual	replacement	of	existing	Town	assets	when	they	reach	the	end	of	their	useful	lives;	this	practice	helps	to	ensure	financial	
sustainability.		An	additional	17%	of	the	total	Statutory	Reserve	balance	represents	Federal	Gas	Tax	funds	being	held	for	future	
eligible use.
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The chart below shows the Town’s total Statutory Reserve balances over the last seven years, and projected balances for the next 
five	years.		It	illustrates	the	cyclical	nature	of	the	reserve	balances,	based	on	the	timing	of	expenditures	for	which	the	reserves	
were created.

Based	on	the	current	5	year	financial	plan,	the	trend	is	for	a	diminishing	reserve	balance.		This	is	due	to	the	projected	use	of	
accumulated Gas Tax funds, as well as regular replacement of the Town’s infrastructure.  The ideal level of reserves depends on 
the Town’s future needs and wants, and decisions around how to fund them.  

Having	a	net	reserve	surplus	or	deficit	in	any	given	year	is	strictly	a	reflection	of	the	Town’s	plans	and	spending	patterns,	and	must	
be considered in conjunction with those plans for a full understanding of the impact.  For example, in years where the Town is 
putting aside money for a future purchase, there will be a reserve surplus.  When those funds are actually used, an annual reserve 
deficit	may	occur.		All	of	these	events	would	fit	within	the	Town’s	overall	financial	planning,	despite	the	different	year-by-year	
financial	impacts.		While	renewal	of	Town	infrastructure	is	a	positive	direction,	the	diminishing	balance	projections	for	reserves	is	a	
trend that needs to be addressed through long term asset management strategies, which are in progress. The amount of annual 
funding transferred into the Town’s reserves may have to be increased.

Increase in Restricted Cash

This	small	balance	(increase	of	$1,727)	represents	the	amount	of	cash	the	Town	has	paid	into	a	sinking	fund	as	security	against	its	
long term debt.  When the debt is fully repaid, the restriction is removed, and the funds are returned to the Town for other purposes.  
Generally, they are put into a reserve.

Net Investment in Capital Assets

A	large	contributing	factor	to	the	Annual	Surplus	is	an	increase	of	$3,531,596	in	net investment in capital assets. This increase 
in value means that the Town added more in TCA than it consumed.  TCA are consumed through amortization (also known 
as depreciation); the cost of the asset is divided by its useful life, and expensed annually over that lifespan.  This method of 
accounting spreads the value of the asset over its ability to provide services to residents.
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The net investment in capital assets	is	primarily	made	up	of	$12,791,087	in	net	acquisitions,	reduced	by	$2,493,639	in	
amortization,	as	well	as	a	$6,765,852	increase	in	debt.		The	most	significant	capital	additions	during	the	year	were	the	construction	
of the Community Safety Building (CSB) and the Downtown Employee Parking Lot, as well as several Town infrastructure 
replacement projects.  The CSB is the largest capital project ever undertaken by the Town, and is largely responsible for the 
dramatic increase in acquisition of TCA.

The chart below shows the Town’s TCA additions and amortization over the past 8 years.  It demonstrates that in most years, there 
is a positive net investment in capital.  2013 was an exception, as the Town consumed more than it added, but this is not something 
to	be	concerned	with,	as	it	simply	reflects	the	Towns	financial	and	asset	management	plans	for	that	particular	year;	only	a	longer-
term pattern in this direction may indicate a cause for some concern. 

Generally, it is good to have a positive net investment in capital each year, as this would indicate that you are renewing your 
assets more quickly than you are consuming them.  The simple act of renewal would likely lead to a net increase in TCA, as the 
assets you are renewing are in current dollars, while the assets you are consuming are at historical (and therefore lower) costs.
However,	that	is	a	bit	of	a	simplification,	and	the	sufficiency	of	asset	renewal	must	be	considered	in	the	full	context	of	the	Town’s	
asset	management	plans.		These	plans	are	continually	being	developed	and	refined	as	we	move	forward	with	the	Town’s	asset	
management strategy.

Net Change in Surplus from Operations

The net change in surplus from operations is perhaps the most important contributing factor to the Annual Surplus.  The Surplus 
(or	Deficit)	from	Operations	provides	the	best	indication	of	the	most	recent	year’s	operating	results.		The	previously	discussed	
contributing	factors	to	the	Annual	Surplus,	which	may	result	in	a	surplus	or	deficit	in	any	given	year	depending	on	the	Town’s	
financial	or	asset	management	plans,	are	not	true	indicators	of	the	current	year’s	operating	performance.		The	Surplus	(or	Deficit)	
from Operations in a given year represents the true increase (or decrease) in the Town’s “disposable income” for future spending.  
2018	operations	realized	a	deficit	of	$35,206.		In	addition,	an	amount	of	$764,359	was	used	at	year-end	as	temporary	funding	for	
expenditures related to the Community Safety Building; even though this appropriation will be repaid to surplus when the Town 
completes	the	sale	of	its	fire	hall	lands,	this	temporary	funding	resulted	in	a	net	reduction	in	Surplus	from	Operations	of	$623,521	
on	our	financial	statements.	
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The	table	below	shows	the	breakdown	of	the	most	current	year’s	net	decrease	in	Surplus	from	Operations:

General Operating Fund $		162,051	
Garbage Utility (10,496)
Water Utility (134,834)
Sewer Utility (51,927)
Total	Deficit	from	Operations (35,206)
Use of Surplus (774,359)
Reserve funds transferred to Surplus 186,044

Net Decrease in Accumulated Surplus from Operations ($		623,521)

The largest contributors to the net surplus in the General Operating fund were better than expected permitting revenues due 
to development activity, and investments realizing higher than expected returns.  The 2018 Financial Plan included a budgeted 
transfer of $305,300 from surplus to fund general operating expenses; however, as expected, the resulting year’s operations 
achieved a surplus, and the transfer was not required to balance the budget. 

The	Garbage	Utility,	which	operates	on	a	cost	recovery	basis,	realized	a	small	deficit	of	$10,496,	which	was	expected	as	part	of	
a	plan	to	ensure	garbage	collection	rates	for	residents	and	businesses	remain	unchanged	for	the	duration	of	the	Town’s	five-year	
garbage collection contract. The contract includes cost increases to the Town in each year; rates were set to produce budgeted 
surpluses	in	the	first	couple	of	years,	which	offset	expected	deficits	in	the	latter	years.			

Each year, water revenues and expenses are budgeted using trends from previous years, and levels of available surplus funding.
In	some	years	we	realize	surpluses,	and	in	other	years,	deficits;	this	almost	always	depends	on	the	volume	of	water	consumption	
in	any	given	year.		The	Water	Utility	realized	a	deficit	of	$134,834	in	2018,	as	compared	to	a	deficit	of	$74,901	in	2017.		The	2018	
deficit	was	very	close	to	budgeted	expectations.	The	accumulated	surplus	balance	(from	prior	years’	operations)	of	the	Water	
Utility is not as healthy as it had been for many years; this accumulated surplus had been used in recent years to ensure user rates 
remained unchanged, even in light of regular increases in bulk water costs. The Town had been reluctant to increase water rates 
until	a	thorough	review	of	the	utility	rate	structure	could	be	completed;	however,	the	growing	deficits	of	the	past	few	years	made	it	
necessary	to	institute	minor	increases	to	both	the	parcel	tax	and	water	user	fee	for	2019	–	the	first	increase	in	many	years	for	both	
components of the water revenue structure.

The	Sewer	Utility	also	incurred	a	deficit	in	2018,	though	much	smaller	than	Water,	at	$51,927.		The	Sewer	Utility	budget	is	also	
based on trends from previous years, but in some years actual results deviate from those trends.  Over the previous several years, 
the Sewer Utility had realized budgeted surpluses, which allowed the accumulated balance to grow to acceptable policy levels.
The Sewer Utility is also subject to the above-indicated review of the rate structure.

The Town has a policy to determine the adequate level of Accumulated Surpluses from Operations.  This policy ensures that we 
maintain	sufficient	funds	for	the	following	purposes:

•	 To provide an adequate reserve for major disasters or contingencies;

•	 To provide adequate working capital to reduce or eliminate the need for temporary borrowing throughout the year;

•	 Revenue	stabilization:	available	funds	to	cover	any	revenue	shortfalls	and	to	prevent	tax	revenue	fluctuations	by	funding	non-
recurring expenditure items.
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Director of Corporate Services 
May 14, 2019

The chart below illustrates the Town’s Accumulated Surplus from Operations balances over the past 14 years, and the contribution 
from each	of	the	Town’s	significant	operational	areas.		When	the	2018	net	decrease	in	Surplus from Operations is combined with 
surpluses from prior years, the year ending Accumulated Surplus from Operations	balance	falls	temporarily	(until	the	CSB	financing	
is	repaid)	to	$3,768,497,	with	all	operational	areas	maintaining	surplus	levels	that	meet	or	exceed	policy	requirements.		

Notes to Financial Statements 

As	indicated	previously,	the	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	the	financial	statements.		Firstly,	they	explain	the	nature	of	the	
organization,	and	its	significant	accounting	policies.		The	individual	notes	also	provide	additional	details	to	support	the	numbers	on	
the two primary statements.  Reference is made on the statements to a note number; users wishing to gain a better understanding 
of	Town	financial	results	should	be	referencing	these	notes	as	they	read	through	the	statements.		

The Segmented Information note (Note 12, page 55) further assists readers of the statements in understanding the types of 
revenues	and	expenses	attributable	to	specific	Town	functions	for	the	unique	services	performed	by	each.			

The notes also serve to identify potential commitments and liabilities not captured in the statements themselves. These exclusions 
can	be	for	various	reasons,	but	generally	they	represent	events	that	do	not	fit	the	accounting	definition	of	a	liability,	or	cannot	be	
reliably measured.  Disclosing these items in the notes (Note 14) provides readers with some additional information to assist in 
their	interpretation	of	the	Town’s	financial	position,	and	any	potential	risks.		Users	may	then	make	their	own	decision	as	to	the	level	
of risk implicit with each item disclosed. A new note (Note 13) on contractual rights to future revenues has been added for the 2018 
statements.

Financial Summary

The	Financial	Statements	are	a	primary	way	for	the	Town	to	communicate	financial	information.	It	is	our	goal	to	make	them	
accessible	and	informative	to	the	reader.		The	2018	financial	statements	reflect	a	continued	dedication	to	sound	financial	
management. The Town’s equity in capital assets increased during the past year, demonstrating a commitment from the Town 
to fund its infrastructure renewal.  Furthermore, the Town continues to maintain low levels of debt, even with the approved debt 
funding for the Community Safety Building, and will maintain comparably low levels of manageable debt going forward that will 
allow	flexibility	in	providing	future	services.	The	level	of	reserves	decreased	in	2018,	and	the	longer-term	outlook	requires	careful	
planning	to	ensure	services	and	infrastructure	renewal	remain	financially	sustainable.	
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The	accompanying	financial	statements	of	the	Town	of	Sidney	(the	“Town”)	are	the	responsibility	of	management	and	have	
been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with public sector accounting standards for local governments, 
as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  A summary of 
the	significant	accounting	policies	are	described	in	note	1	to	the	financial	statements.		The	preparation	of	financial	statements	
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current 
accounting	period	cannot	be	finalized	with	certainty	until	future	periods.

The Town’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are 
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and 
reliable	financial	information	is	available	on	a	timely	basis	for	preparation	of	the	financial	statements.		These	systems	are	monitored	
and evaluated by management.

The	Municipal	Council	meets	with	management	and	the	external	auditors	to	review	the	financial	statements	and	discuss	any	
significant	reporting	or	internal	control	matters	prior	to	their	acceptance	of	the	financial	statements.		

The	financial	statements	have	been	audited	by	KPMG	LLP,	independent	external	auditors	appointed	by	the	Town.		The	
accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination, and their opinion on the 
Town’s	financial	statements.		

Director of Corporate Services 
May 14, 2019

Financial Reporting Responsibility
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KPMG LLP 
St. Andrew’s Square II 
800-730	View	Street
Victoria	BC		V8W	3Y7
Canada 
Telephone 250-480-3500 
Fax 250-480-3539

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Mayor and Councillors of the Town of Sidney 

Opinion 

We	have	audited	the	financial	statements	of	Town	of	Sidney	(the	“Town”),	which	comprise:

•	 the	statement	of	financial	position	as	at	December	31,	2018

•	 the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended

•	 the	statement	of	changes	in	net	financial	assets	for	the	year	then	ended

•	 the	statement	of	cash	flows	for	the	year	then	ended

•	 and	notes	to	the	financial	statements,	including	a	summary	of	significant	accounting	policies

(Hereinafter	referred	to	as	the	“financial	statements”).

In	our	opinion,	the	accompanying	financial	statements	present	fairly,	in	all	material	respects,	the	financial	position	of	the	Town	as	at	
December	31,	2018,	and	its	results	of	operations,	its	changes	in	net	financial	assets	and	its	cash	flows	for	the	year	then	ended	in	
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditors’ 
report.		We	are	independent	of	the	Town	in	accordance	with	the	ethical	requirements	that	are	relevant	to	our	audit	of	the	financial	
statements	in	Canada	and	we	have	fulfilled	our	other	ethical	responsibilities	in	accordance	with	these	requirements.		We	believe	that	
the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	our	opinion.	

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	fair	presentation	of	the	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	Canadian	public	
sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial	statements	that	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.		In	preparing	the	financial	statements,	
management is responsible for assessing the Town’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Town or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the 
Town’s	financial	reporting	process.

KPMG	LLP	is	a	Canadian	limited	liability	partnership	and	a	member	firm	of	the	KPMG	network	of	independent	member	
firms	affiliated	with	KPMG	International	Cooperative	(“KPMG	International”),	a	Swiss	entity.	KPMG	Canada	provides	
services to KPMG LLP.
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Chartered Professional Accountants

Victoria, Canada 
May 13, 2019

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our	objectives	are	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	the	financial	statements	as	a	whole	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	
whetherdue to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate,	they	could	reasonably	be	expected	to	influence	the	economic	decisions	of	users	taken	on	the	basis	of	the	financial	statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain	professional	skepticism	throughout	the	audit.	We	also:

•	 Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	design	and
perform	audit	procedures	responsive	to	those	risks,	and	obtain	audit	evidence	that	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	
for our opinion.

•	 The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.  

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence	obtained,	whether	 a	material	 uncertainty	 exists	 related	 to	 events	 or	 conditions	 that	may	 cast	 significant	 doubt	 on	
Town’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in	our	auditors’	report	to	the	related	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements	or,	if	such	disclosures	are	inadequate,	to	modify	our	
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause Town to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	financial	statements,	including	the	disclosures,	and	whether	the	
financial	statements	represent	the	underlying	transactions	and	events	in	a	manner	that	achieves	fair	presentation.

•	 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and	significant	audit	findings,	including	any	significant	deficiencies	in	internal	control	that	we	identify	during	our	audit.

Town of Sidney

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Town of Sidney
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTION
Year	ended	December	31,	2018	with	comparative	figures	for	2017

2018 2017

Financial assets:

Cash $ 	9,856,903	 $ 	3,364,320	
Investments 	8,144,697	 	14,109,675	
Property taxes receivable  450,398 	450,527	
Accounts receivable 	1,732,162	 	1,774,271	
Assets held for sale (note 15) 	1,040,775	  - 
MFA Debt Reserve Fund cash  81,101 	79,374	

	21,306,036	 	19,778,167	

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 	3,778,487	 	2,318,927	
Deferred revenue and deposits (note 3)  4,509,242  3,520,912 
Employee	future	benefit	liability	(note	4) 	744,800	 	683,900	
Debt (note 5)  12,545,238 	5,779,386	

	21,577,767	  12,303,125 

Net financial assets (net debt) 	(271,731) 	7,475,042	

Non-financial assets:

Tangible	capital	assets	(note	6) 	95,493,785	 	86,237,112	
Inventory of supplies  145,209 	127,411	
Prepaid expenses 	74,865	 	92,357	

	95,713,859	 	86,456,880	

Accumulated surplus (note 7) $  95,442,128  $  93,931,922 

Contractual rights (note 13)
Commitments and contingent liabilities (note 14)

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Year	ended	December	31,	2018	with	comparative	figures	for	2017

Budget Actual Actual
2018 2018 2017

(note 11)
Revenue:

Net taxes available for municipal purposes (note 8) $  13,267,851 $  13,254,413 $ 	12,814,947	
Fees, rates and service charges  5,994,104 	6,074,276	 	6,133,431	
Government transfers (note 9)  1,595,258 	1,510,640	 	1,471,360	
Investment earnings  215,000 	310,075	  242,488 
Gifts and contributions  52,000 	526,704	 	1,891,790	
Penalties and interest  96,000 	102,371	 	106,591	
Actuarial adjustment on debt  - 	46,106	  39,491 
MFA Debt Reserve Fund surplus  -  550 	57,897	
Other  8,500  180,589  31,501 
Total revenue  21,228,713 	22,005,724	 	22,789,496	

Expenses:
General government  2,494,432 	2,438,537	  2,422,542 
Protective services  5,248,365 	5,139,635	 	4,701,148	
Transportation  4,243,186 	3,631,746	 	3,398,772	
Environmental health services  812,370 	795,101	 	736,063	
Environmental development  501,300  423,294  423,354 
Leisure, parks and cultural  2,966,120 	2,965,187	 	3,028,546	
Water utility  2,134,128 	2,120,634	 	2,112,618	
Sewer utility  2,114,407  2,144,100 	2,066,977	
Other (note 10)  815,513 	837,284	 	731,096	
Total expenses  21,329,821  20,495,518 	19,621,116	

Annual surplus (deficit)  (101,108) 	1,510,206	 	3,168,380	

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year  93,931,922  93,931,922 	90,763,542	

Accumulated surplus, end of year $  93,830,814 $  95,442,128 $  93,931,922 

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES  
IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
Year	ended	December	31,	2018	with	comparative	figures	for	2017

Budget Actual Actual
2018 2018 2017

(note 11)

Annual surplus $  (101,108) $ 	1,510,206	 $ 	3,168,380	

Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (19,615,895) 	(12,850,086) 	(8,688,707)
Amortization of tangible capital assets  2,700,000 	2,493,639	 	2,611,799	
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets  -  (5,043) 	16,618	
Reclassify tangible capital assets to assets held for sale  - 	1,040,775	  - 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets  - 	64,042	 	37,121	

 (17,017,003) 	(7,746,467) 	(2,854,789)

Acquisition of inventory of supplies  -  (145,209) 	(127,411)
Acquisition of prepaid expense  - 	(74,865) 	(92,357)
Consumption of inventory of supplies  - 	127,411	 	152,071	
Use of prepaid expenses  - 	92,357	 	148,659	

Change	in	net	financial	assets  (17,017,003) 	(7,746,773) 	(2,773,827)

Net	financial	assets,	beginning	of	year  7,475,042 	7,475,042	 	10,248,869	

Net financial assets, end of year $  (9,541,961) $ 	(271,731) $ 	7,475,042	

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.
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2018 2017

Cash	provided	by	(used	in):

Operating activities:

Annual surplus $ 	1,510,206	 $ 	3,168,380	
Items	not	involving	cash:

Amortization 	2,493,639	 	2,611,799	
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets  (5,043) 	16,618	
Developer contribution of tangible capital assets 	(111,478) 	(1,648,203)
Change	in	employee	future	benefit	liability 	60,900	  39,300 
Actuarial adjustment on debt 	(46,106)  (39,491)

Changes	in	non-cash	assets	and	liabilities:
Property taxes receivable  129 	61,683	
Accounts receivable  42,109 	(174,126)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 	1,459,560	 	718,198	
Deferred revenue  988,330 	862,260	
Inventory of supplies 	(17,798) 	24,660	
Prepaid expenses 	17,492	 	56,302	

Net change in cash from operating activities 	6,391,940	 	5,697,380	

Capital activities:

Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 	64,042	 	37,121	
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets 	(12,738,608) 	(7,040,504)

Net change in cash from capital activities 	(12,674,566) 	(7,003,383)

Investment activities:

Investments 	5,964,978	  (1,008,010)
Net change in cash from investing activities 	5,964,978	  (1,008,010)

Financing activities

Municipal Finance Authority debt reserve adjustment 	(1,727)  (31,093)
Debt issued and assumed 	7,000,000	  3,000,000 
Long-term debt repaid  (188,042) 	(169,132)

Net	change	in	cash	from	financing	activities 	6,810,231	 	2,799,775	

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 	6,492,583	 	485,762	

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 	3,364,320	 	2,878,558	

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  9,856,903 $  3,364,320 

Cash paid for interest $ 	232,297	 $  155,883 
Cash received from interest 	412,446	 	349,079	

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year	ended	December	31,	2018	with	comparative	figures	for	2017
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

The Town of Sidney (the “Town”) is a municipality in the Province of British Columbia and operates under the provisions of the 
Local Government Act and Community Charter. Its principal activities are the provision of local government services to residents 
of	the	Town.	These	services	include	administrative,	protective,	transportation,	environmental,	recreational,	water,	sewer	and	fiscal	
services.

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The	financial	statements	of	the	Town	are	prepared	by	management	in	accordance	with	Canadian	public	sector	accounting	
standards for local governments, as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional 
Accountants	of	Canada.	Significant	accounting	policies	adopted	by	the	Town	are	as	follows:

(a)	 Reporting	entity:

The	financial	statements	include	a	combination	of	the	assets,	liabilities,	accumulated	surplus,	revenues	and	expenses	of	all	of	
the Town’s activities and funds. Inter-departmental balances and organizational transactions have been eliminated. 

(b)	 Basis	of	accounting:

The Town follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are normally recognized in the 
year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of 
receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(c)	 Government	transfers:

Government	transfers	are	recognized	in	the	financial	statements	as	revenue	in	the	period	the	transfers	are	authorized	and	
any eligibility criteria have been met, except when, and to the extent that, the transfer gives rise to an obligation that meets 
the	definition	of	a	liability	for	the	recipient	government.	Transfers	received	which	meet	the	definition	of	a	liability	are	included	
in deferred revenue.

(d)	 Property	tax	revenue:

Property tax revenue is recognized on an accrual basis using property assessment values established by BC Assessment for 
the current year and the tax rates established annually by Council. Tax revenues are recorded at the date property taxes are 
due. Assessments are subject to appeal and tax adjustments are recorded when the results of the appeals are known, and if 
required. An allowance for unresolved assessment appeals is also recorded.       

(e)	 Deferred	revenue:

Deferred revenue includes grants, contributions and other amounts received from third parties pursuant to legislation, 
regulation	or	agreement,	which	may	only	be	used	in	certain	programs,	in	the	completion	of	specific	work,	or	for	the	purchase	
of tangible capital assets. In addition, certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to 
be performed. Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are incurred, services are performed, or the 
tangible capital assets are acquired. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

1.	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued):	

(f)	 Investments:

Investments	are	recorded	at	cost	and	are	comprised	of	guaranteed	investment	certificates.

Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned.  When required by the funding government or related Act, 
investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue balance.

(g)	 Employee	future	benefits:

The Town and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan.  These contributions are expensed as 
incurred.

Leave	benefits	such	as	banked	sick,	discretionary,	or	vacation,	along	with	retirement	allowance	benefits,	are	also	available	
to	the	Town’s	employees.	The	costs	of	these	benefits	are	actuarially	determined	based	on	service	and	best	estimates	of	
retirement	ages	and	expected	future	salary	and	benefit	increases.	The	obligation	under	this	benefit	plan	is	accrued	based	on	
projected	benefits	as	the	employees	render	services	necessary	to	earn	the	future	benefits.

(h)	 Non-financial	assets:

Non-financial	assets	are	not	available	to	discharge	existing	liabilities,	and	are	held	for	use	in	the	provision	of	services.	They	
have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(i) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction, development or betterment of the asset. The costs, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, 
excluding	land,	are	amortized	on	a	straight	line	basis	over	their	estimated	useful	lives	as	follows:

Assets Useful Life - Years

Land improvements 10 - 75
Buildings and building improvements 15 - 100
Vehicle, machinery and equipment 3 - 50
Water and wastewater infrastructure 12 - 75
Road infrastructure 25 - 100

Amortization is charged annually. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive 
use. Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the Town’s 
ability	to	provide	services,	or	when	the	value	of	future	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	asset	is	less	than	the	book	
value.

(ii) Contribution of tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt, with the value of 
the contribution recorded as revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

1.	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued):	

(iii) Works of art and cultural and historic assets 

Works	of	art	and	cultural	and	historic	assets	are	not	recorded	as	assets	in	these	financial	statements

(iv) Interest capitalization 

The Town does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction of tangible capital assets.

(v) Leased tangible capital assets 

Leased	assets	which	transfer	substantially	all	the	benefits	and	risks	incidental	to	ownership	of	property	are	accounted	
for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related payments 
are charged to expenses as incurred.

(i)	 Foreign	currency:

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated to Canadian dollars at exchange rates in effect at the 
reporting date, and non-monetary items are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were acquired or 
obligations incurred.  Revenues and expenses are translated at rates in effect at the time of the transactions.  Gains or losses 
on foreign currency translations are included as revenues or expenses.

(j)	 Use	of	estimates:

The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	Canadian	public	sector	accounting	standards requires	management	
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent 
assets	and	liabilities	at	the	date	of	the	financial	statements,	and	the	reported	amounts	of	revenues	and	expenses	during	the	
period.		Significant	estimates	include	assumptions	used	in	estimating	historical	cost	and	useful	lives	of	tangible	capital	assets,	
and	estimating	provisions	for	accrued	liabilities,	including	employee	future	benefits,	contaminated	sites	and	contingent	
liabilities. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(k)	 Contaminated	Sites:

A	liability	for	contaminated	sites	is	recognized	when	a	site	is	not	in	productive	use	and	the	following	criteria	are	met:

(i) An environmental standard exists;

(ii) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard;

(iii) The Town is directly responsible or accepts responsibility;

	 (iv)	It	is	expected	that	future	economic	benefits	will	be	given	up;	and

(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, maintenance and 
monitoring	that	are	an	integral	part	of	the	remediation	strategy	for	a	contaminated	site.	Management	has	not	identified	any	
Town sites that meet the criteria of a contaminated site.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

3.	Deferred	revenue	and	deposits:

The	deferred	revenues	and	deposits	reported	on	the	statement	of	financial	position	are	comprised	of	the	following:

Balance at 
Dec	31,	2017

Recognized    
as revenue

Interest
earned

Current year 
deferred

Balance at 
Dec 31, 2018

Prepaid property taxes $  1,391,385 $  (1,391,385) $  - $  1,500,809 $  1,500,809 
Prepaid fees and charges  281,290 	(243,766)  -  301,431  338,955 
Deferred developer contributions & deposits 	933,604	 	(452,714)  1,400 	1,020,686	 	1,502,976	
Deposits on hold 	914,633	  (404,818)  - 	656,687	 	1,166,502	

$  3,520,912 $ 	(2,492,683) $  1,400 $ 	3,479,613	 $  4,509,242 

4.	Employee	future	benefit	liability:

The	Town	provides	sick	leave	and	certain	other	benefits	to	its	employees.		Some	employees	of	the	Town	are	entitled	to	payments	
related to unused vacation, sick leave and other allowances upon resignation or retirement. These amounts and other employee 
related liabilities will require funding in future periods.

Information	regarding	the	Town’s	obligations	for	employee	future	benefits	is	as	follows:

2018 2017

Accrued	employee	benefit	obligations:
Balance, beginning of year $  854,300 $ 	775,700	
Current service cost  91,400  85,300 
Interest cost 	26,500	 	27,400	
Benefits	paid  (83,100)  (93,500)
Actuarial adjustment  (9,900)  59,400 
Balance, end of year 	879,200	  854,300 

Unamortized net actuarial loss  (134,400) 	(170,400)

Accrued	employee	benefit	liability $ 	744,800	 $ 	683,900	

2.	 Adoption	of	new	accounting	policy:

The Town of Sidney adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3380 Contractual Rights effective January 1, 2018. 
Under PS 3380, a contractual right arises out of a contract or agreement that is binding between two or more parties, has clear 
economic consequences, results in both an asset and revenue in the future, and is enforceable by law. This standard may include, 
but is not limited to, contractual rights to receive payments under a cost share agreement or contractual rights to receive lease 
payments. The Town has adopted this standard on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

 2018  2017

Discount rates 3.30% 2.90%
Expected wage and salary increases 2.50% 2.50%

The	Town	funds	the	employee	future	benefits	with	tax	revenues	from	the	general	operating	fund.	The	total	expense	recorded	in	the	
financial	statements	in	respect	of	obligations	under	this	plan	amounts	to	$144,000	(2017	–	$132,800).

Municipal pension plan:

The Town and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly trusteed pension plan. The Board 
of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including 
investment	of	the	assets	and	administration	of	benefits.	The	Plan	is	a	multi-employer	contributory	pension	plan.	Basic	pension	
benefits	provided	are	based	on	a	formula.	As	at	December	31,	2018,	the	Plan	had	about	197,000	active	members	and	
approximately 95,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 39,000 contributors from local governments. 

Every	three	years,	an	actuarial	valuation	is	performed	to	assess	the	financial	position	of	the	plan	and	adequacy	of	plan	funding.		
The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated 
contribution rate is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 
contributions	sufficient	to	provide	benefits	for	average	future	entrants	to	the	plan.	The	rate	may	be	adjusted	for	the	amortization	of	
any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.

The	most	recent	valuation,	as	at	December	31,	2015,	indicated	a	$2,224	million	funding	surplus	for	basic	pension	benefits	on	a	
going concern basis. As a result of the 2015 basic account actuarial valuation surplus and pursuant to the joint trustee agreement, 
$1,927	million	was	transferred	to	the	rate	stabilization	account	and	$297	million	of	the	surplus	ensured	the	required	contributions	
rates remained unchanged. 

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2018, with results available in 2019. 

Employers	participating	in	the	Plan	record	their	pension	expense	as	the	amount	of	employer	contributions	made	during	the	fiscal	
year	(defined	contribution	pension	plan	accounting).	This	is	because	the	Plan	records	accrued	liabilities	and	accrued	assets	for	the	
plan in aggregate, with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and costs to the 
individual employers participating in the Plan. 

The	Town	paid	$612,464	for	employer	contributions	(2017	-	$600,270)	and	Town	employees	paid	$521,141	for	employee	
contributions	(2017	-	$509,318)	to	the	plan	in	fiscal	2018.

4.	Employee	future	benefit	liability	(continued): 

Any actuarial gain or loss is amortized over a period equal to the employees’ average remaining service lifetime, estimated to be 10 
years	(2017	–	10	years).

The	amount	recorded	for	these	benefits	is	based	on	an	actuarial	valuation	performed	by	an	independent	firm	using	a	projected	
benefit	actuarial	valuation	method	pro-rated	on	services.

This valuation is reviewed on a periodic basis.  The liabilities are based on an actuarial valuation of the Town’s employee future 
benefits	completed	as	at	December	31,	2016	and	extrapolated	to	December	31,	2018.		

The	significant	actuarial	assumptions	adopted	in	measuring	the	Town’s	accrued	benefit	obligation	are	as	follows:
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(c)	Current	long-term	debt	estimated	principal	repayments	over	the	next	five	years	and	thereafter:

2019 $ 	177,544	
2020 177,544	
2021 177,544	
2022 139,089
2023 135,094
2024-2047 4,728,269	

$  5,535,084 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 

4. Employee future benefit liability (continued):
GVLRA – CUPE Long-Term Disability Trust

The	Trust	was	established	January	1,	1987	and	its	sole	purpose	is	to	provide	a	long-term	disability	income	benefit	plan	for	
municipal employees in the Capital Region. The Town and its employees (CUPE & Exempt) each contribute equal amounts 
into the Trust. The total plan provision for approved and unreported claims was actuarially determined as of December 31, 
2014.			The	next	valuation	will	be	as	at	December	31,	2017,	with	results	available	in	2018.			At	December	31,	2017,	the	total	plan	
provision	for	approved	and	unreported	claims	was	$17,177,300	with	a	net	surplus	of	$3,852,873.		The	actuary	does	not	attribute	
portions of the unfunded liability to individual employers.  

The	Town	paid	$76,849	for	employer	contributions	(2017	-	$84,345)	and	Town	employees	paid	$77,120	for	employee	
contributions	(2017	-	$84,555)	to	the	plan	in	2018.

5.	Debt:
(a) The Town issues debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA), pursuant to loan authorization and 
security	issuing	bylaws	under	authority	of	the	Community	Charter	and	the	Local	Government	Act,	to	finance	certain	capital	
expenditures. Sinking fund contributions, managed by the MFA, are made annually. The related actuarial allocations in 
respect	of	the	repayment	structure	are	reflected	as	a	reduction	of	the	related	long-term	debt.

(b)	Gross	amount	of	debt	and	the	amount	of	the	actuarial	allocation	of	assets	available	to	retire	the	debt	are	as	follows:

Gross debt Actuarial
allocation

Net debt 
2018

Net debt 
2017

Short-Term and Other debt $ 7,010,154 $  - $ 	7,010,154	 $ 	20,653	
Long-term Debt 	6,850,000	 	1,314,916	  5,535,084 	5,758,733	

$ 13,860,154 $ 	1,314,916	 $  12,545,238 $ 	5,779,386	

Under borrowing arrangements with the MFA, the Town is required to lodge security by means of demand notes and 
interest-bearing cash deposits based on the amount of the borrowing. As a condition of these borrowings, a portion of the 
debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA as a debt reserve fund. These deposits are held by the MFA as security against 
the possibility of debt repayment default.  If the debt is repaid without default, the deposits are refunded to the Town. At 
December	31,	2018	there	were	contingent	demand	notes	of	$144,484	(2017	–	$144,484)	and	cash	deposits	of	$81,101	
(2017	-	$79,374).	The	demand	notes	are	not	included	in	the	financial	statements	of	the	Town;	however,	the	cash	deposits	are	
included	in	the	financial	statements	as	MFA	Debt	Reserve	Fund	Cash.		

Scheduled debt repayments may be suspended should sinking fund accumulations exceed original estimates. 



50 Consolidated Financial Statements | Annual Report 2018 | Sidney by the Sea

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 
 
5.	Debt	(continued):

(d)	 Total	interest	paid	on	long-term	and	short-term	debt	during	the	year	was	$232,296	(2017	-	$155,853).

(e)	 Existing	long-term	debt	matures	in	annual	amounts	to	the	year	2047,	and	interest	rates	range	from	2.4%	to	4.65%.	The	
weighted	average	interest	rate	for	2018	was	3.44%	(2017	–	3.46%).

(f)	 During	2016	the	Town	adopted	Community	Safety	Building	Loan	Authorization	Bylaw	No.	2111	which	was	approved	
by the Inspector of Municipalities and authorized the Town to borrow $10,000,000 through the MFA for construction of a 
new Community Safety Building. At December 31, 2018, the Town has drawn upon $3,000,000 of these funds as long term 
debt	and	received	another	$7,000,000	interim	financing.	The	Town	will	borrow	an	additional	$2,500,000	of	long-term	debt	in	
spring 2019; this is the cost of the ambulance portion of the building and this borrowing will be paid through negotiated lease 
payments.	Once	construction	is	complete	in	summer	2019,	it	is	estimated	an	additional	$2,700,000	will	be	borrowed	in	fall	
2019.

(g) Included in other debt are Equipment Financing Loan Agreements with the Municipal Finance Authority totaling $10,154 
(2017	–	$20,653)	to	finance	the	purchase	of	tangible	capital	assets.		

The	loans	are	repaid	in	monthly	payments	of	$759	with	maturity	dates	ranging	from	2018	to	2020.	The	loans	are	repayable	
on	demand	upon	occurrence	of	any	event	of	default.	Interest	is	charged	on	a	daily	floating	rate	basis	and	compounded	
monthly.	At	year	end,	the	current	floating	rate	was	2.48%	per	annum.	Interest	paid	during	the	year	was	$347	(2017	-	$422)	
and has been included in expenses on the statement of operations. As a condition of borrowing, the Town has issued 
promissory notes in the value of $35,481 to the MFA.

6.	Tangible	capital	assets:

Cost Balance at 
Dec	31,	2017

Additions / 
Transfers

Disposals / 
Transfers

Balance at 
Dec 31, 2018

Land $  15,141,300 $  - $ 	(845,666) $ 	14,295,634	
Land improvements 	13,671,275	 	79,843	 	(65,358) 	13,685,760	
Building and building improvements  14,981,900 	167,737	 	(1,028,761) 	14,120,876	
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 	11,113,073	 	417,749	 	(327,019)  11,203,803 
Water and wastewater infrastructure 	40,781,531	 	552,496	  - 	41,334,027	
Roads infrastructure  29,495,284 	794,783	  (291,514)  29,998,553 
Assets under construction 	4,551,879	 	10,837,478	  (28,249) 	15,361,108	

Total $ 	129,736,242	 $ 	12,850,086	 $ 	(2,586,567) $ 	139,999,761	
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 
 
6.	Tangible	Capital	Assets	(continued):

Accumulated 
Amortization

Balance at 
Dec	31,	2017

Amortization 
Expense

Disposals / 
Transfers

Balance at 
Dec 31, 2018

Land $  - $  - $  - $  - 
Land improvements 	4,979,147	  395,413 	(15,686) 	5,358,874	
Building and building improvements 	7,261,710	 	327,839	  (883,323) 	6,706,226	
Vehicles, machinery and equipment  5,558,452 	630,169	 	(296,270)  5,892,351 
Water and wastewater infrastructure 	15,378,572	 	578,518	  - 	15,957,090	
Roads infrastructure  10,321,249 	561,700	  (291,514)  10,591,435 
Assets under construction  -  -  -  - 

Total $  43,499,130 $ 	2,493,639	 $ 	(1,486,793) $ 	44,505,976	

Net Book Value Balance at 
Dec	31,	2017

Balance at 
Dec 31, 2018

Land $  15,141,300 $ 	14,295,634	
Land improvements 	8,692,128	 	8,326,886	
Building and building improvements 	7,720,190	 	7,414,650	
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 	5,554,621	  5,311,452
Water and wastewater infrastructure  25,402,959 	25,376,937	
Roads infrastructure 	19,174,035	 	19,407,118	
Assets under construction 	4,551,879	 	15,361,108	

Total $ 	86,237,112	 $ 	95,493,785	

(a) Assets under construction

Assets	under	construction	having	a	value	of	$15,361,108	(2017	-	$4,551,879)	have	not	been	amortized.	Amortization	of	these	
assets will commence when the assets are available for service.

(b) Contributed tangible capital assets

Contributed capital assets are recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution and consist of water, wastewater and 
roads	infrastructure.	The	value	of	contributed	assets	received	during	the	year	is	$111,478	(2017	-	$1,648,203).

(c) Works of art and historical cultural assets

The Town manages and controls a limited number of works of art and non-operational historical cultural assets including 
artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at Town sites and public display areas. These assets are not recorded as tangible 
capital assets and are not amortized.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 

7.	Accumulated	surplus:
Accumulated	surplus	consists	of	individual	fund	surpluses,	reserves	and	reserve	funds	as	follows:

2018 2017
Surplus:

Invested in tangible capital assets $  83,989,322 $ 	80,457,726	
Surplus from operations 	3,768,497	  4,392,018 
Total surplus 	87,757,819	 	84,849,744	

Reserves set aside by Council:
Miscellaneous operating purposes  312,415 	521,765	
Miscellaneous capital purposes  1,022,893 	997,962	
Total reserves  1,335,308 	1,519,727	

Reserves funds set aside for specific purposes by Council:
Land sale proceeds 	164,485	 	239,685	
Parkland acquisition  132,194  129,594 
Off-street parking  133,145 	37,125	
Computer replacement 	370,179	 	377,902	
General equipment replacement 	1,123,496	 	957,626	
Fire equipment replacement 	338,436	 	246,178	
Water capital 	297,778	  394,843 
Sewer capital 	24,316	 	23,816	
Infrastructure replacement 	895,347	  1,808,845 
Water rates stabilization 	173,387	  228,558 
Amenities  213,314  152,814 
Affordable housing 	160,255	  3,329 
Ferry terminal 	917,802	 	790,791	
Contingency 	86,033	  84,333 
Agreements 	171,259	 	162,040	
Gas Tax - Community Works Fund 	1,066,474	  1,845,598 
Total reserve funds 	6,267,900	 	7,483,077	

MFA Debt Reserve Fund cash  81,101 	79,374	
$  95,442,128 $  93,931,922 

The Town periodically receives Gas Tax Agreement funds from the federal government. These funds, along with interest earned on the 
funds, are recorded as revenues and transferred to reserves until they are used to fund eligible expenditures under the Agreement.  

2018 2017

Federal gas tax agreement funds

Gas tax agreement funds, beginning of year $  1,845,598 $  1,841,491 
Amounts received during the year  549,035  530,593 
Interest earned restricted for projects 	36,900	  29,900 
Expenditures 	(1,365,059) 	(556,386)

Gas tax agreements funds, end of year $ 	1,066,474	 $  1,845,598 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 

8.	Net	taxes	available	for	municipal	purposes:

2018 2017

Taxes:
Property taxes $ 	23,672,011	 $ 	22,747,289	
Revenue in lieu of taxes 	278,913	 	272,385	
Other 	867,180	 	862,619	

 24,818,104  23,882,293 

Less	taxes	on	behalf	of:
Provincial Government School Authorities 	6,472,692	 	6,171,428	
Capital Regional District 	2,445,806	 	2,326,583	
Capital Regional Hospital District 	1,079,704	  1,038,439 
BC Transit 	1,062,958	 	1,064,560	
BC Assessment Authority 	203,740	 	189,668	
Municipal Finance Authority  951  808 
Business Improvement Area 	297,840	 	275,860	

	11,563,691	 	11,067,346	

Net taxes available for municipal purposes $  13,254,413 $ 	12,814,947	

9. Government transfers:

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period the transfers are authorized and any
eligibility	criteria	have	been	met.	The	government	transfers	reported	on	the	statement	of	operations	are:

2018 2017

Federal	grants:
Gas Tax - Community Works Funding $  549,035 $  530,593 
Canada 150 Celebration  - 	27,540	

 549,035  558,133 

Provincial	grants:
Federal / provincial capital grant programs  53,082  23,400 
Small community protection grant 	345,702	 	343,927	
Traffic	fine	revenue	sharing 	91,436	 	106,502	
Other provincial grants  120  5,500 

 490,340 	479,329	

Regional	and	other	local	governments:
Policing  330,339  305,035 
Recreation 	64,595	 	68,531	
Other 	76,331	 	60,332	

	471,265	  433,898 

Total government transfer revenue $ 	1,510,640	 $ 	1,471,360	
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10.	Other	expenses:

2018 2017

Grants	to	non-government	organizations:
Sidney and North Saanich Memorial Park Society $  330,300 $ 	269,108	
Sidney Business Improvement Area Society 	123,966	 	104,671	
New Marine Centre Society  135,000 	65,000	
South Island Prosperity Project 	26,722	 	26,722	
ArtSea Community Arts Council  15,000  4,500 
Peninsula Celebrations Society  12,000  12,000 
Other  40,823 	36,074	

	683,811	 	518,075	

Interest on prepaid taxes 	15,864	 	4,774	
Amortization and net loss on miscellaneous assets 	31,070	 	111,957	
Other 	106,539	 	96,290	

$ 	837,284	 $ 	731,096	

11.	Budget	data:

The	budget	data	presented	in	these	financial	statements	is	based	upon	the	2018-2022	Financial	Plan	adopted	by	Council	on	May	
14,	2018.	The	table	below	reconciles	the	approved	budget	to	the	budget	figures	reported	in	these	financial	statements.	

 Budget Amount 

Revenues:
Financial Plan $ 	23,171,951	

Add:
Vancouver Island Regional Library Levy 	754,712	

Less:
Community Safety Building - Ambulance Lease Payments  (2,400,000)
Sidney Business Improvement Area Levy 	(297,950)

Total revenue 	21,228,713	

Expenses:
Financial Plan 	20,873,059	

Add:
Vancouver Island Regional Library Levy 	754,712	

Less:
Sidney Business Improvement Area Levy 	(297,950)

Total expenses  21,329,821 

Annual surplus $  (101,108)
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(a)	 General	Government:

The General Government function is comprised of Legislative Services (Council and Committees) and General 
Administration, which includes Financial Management, Driver Services, Computer Services, Common Services, and other 
administrative activities related to the management of the Town.

(b)	 Protective	Services:

The	Protective	Services	function	is	comprised	of	five	core	services:	Emergency	Measures,	Fire	Protection,	Police	Protection,	
Court House, and Building & Bylaw Enforcement. 

Emergency Measures captures the Town’s emergency preparedness programs that ensure the Town is prepared and able to 
respond to the devastating effects of a disaster or major catastrophic event. 

Fire Protection services are carried out by the Town’s Fire Department, whose mandate is to provide critical, life-saving 
services	in	preventing	or	minimizing	the	loss	of	life	and	property	from	fire	and	natural	or	man-made	emergencies.	

Police Protection services are performed under contract by the RCMP, who ensure the safety of lives and property in the 
Town through law enforcement, the maintenance of law and order, and the prevention of crime. 

Building and Bylaw Enforcement promotes, facilitates and enforces general compliance with the provisions of bylaws that 
pertain to the health, safety and welfare of the community.

(c)	 Transportation	Services:

The Transportation Services function is responsible for a wide variety of transportation and engineering services including 
Roads, Storm Drainage, Dock & Port Facilities, and Hydrants. 

The Roads function’s principal activity is the development and maintenance of the Town’s roadway systems through the 
Public	Works	department.	The	main	services	include	Traffic	Services	consisting	of	street	sign,	street	painting	and	traffic	light	
control maintenance; Street Lighting; Road, Curb, Sidewalk and Cul-de-sac repairs and maintenance; Boulevard Trees; and 
Street Sweeping. 

The Storm Drains service performs preventative maintenance and repairs to the Town’s storm drain system, maintains and 
repairs storm drain ditches, and cleans catch basins. 

Dock & Ports Facilities captures maintenance of the Town’s docks and port infrastructure.   

Hydrant	services	pertain	to	the	maintenance	of	existing	and	installation	of	new	fire	hydrants.		

(d)	 Environmental	Health	Services:

Environmental Health Services provides garbage, organics and compost collection and disposal services to residents and 
businesses through the Town’s designated contractors.  

(e)	 Environmental	Development	Services:

Environmental Development Services administers zoning and related bylaws, and provides long range planning and policy 
services, as well as providing administrative support to Building and Bylaw Enforcement functions.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

12.	Segmented	information: 

The	Town	of	Sidney	is	a	diversified	organization	that	provides	a	wide	range	of	services.		These	services	have	been	captured	in	
specific	functions	that	have	been	separately	disclosed	in	the	segmented	information	as	follows:
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(f) Leisure,	Parks	and	Cultural	Services:

Leisure,	Parks	&	Cultural	Services	is	comprised	of	four	different	functions:	Parks,	Library,	Senior’s	Centre	and	Museums.		

Parks is responsible for the maintenance, planning and development of Town park facilities such as ornamental gardens, 
natural ecosystems, and playgrounds for recreational and cultural enjoyment in a beautiful and safe environment.  It also 
preserves and enhances green spaces on public lands. 

Library	services	are	specific	to	maintenance	of	the	Town	owned	library	building,	and	funding	to	the	Vancouver	Island	Regional	
Library service to operate and manage the library.

The Town owned Shoal Activity Centre is operated by Beacon Community Services, who receive funding from the Town to 
provide senior related programs.

Museum services include providing space and funding to the Saanich Peninsula Museum Society to manage and operate the 
Town’s Historical Museum and Archives.  The Town also provides space to the New Marine Centre Society for the operation 
of the Shaw Centre for the Salish Sea.

(g)	 Sewer	and	Water	Utilities:

The Sewer Utility protects the environment and human health from the impacts of liquid waste generated as a result of 
human occupation and development in the Town. The Town operates a collection system, which transfers wastewater to a 
sub-regional treatment facility.

The Water Utility delivers clean, safe and aesthetically pleasing potable water, in accordance with the Provincial Drinking 
Water Protection Act, to the residents and businesses of the Town. The water is for the purposes of domestic and commercial 
consumption,	irrigation	and	firefighting.		The	Town	operates	a	water	distribution	system	only,	using	treated	water	purchased	in	
bulk from the Regional District.

(h)	 Other:

Other includes all revenues and expenses not captured in the above-named segmentation categories.

Other	revenues	include	municipal	taxes,	provincial	and	federal	government	grants,	traffic	fine	revenues,	investment	income,	
developer contributions, and other miscellaneous sources of revenue.

Other expenses include community support funding and grants, economic development, contingencies, and other 
miscellaneous expenses.

The resulting annual surplus is primarily used for budgeted transfers to reserves, and debt principal repayments. 

Certain	allocation	methodologies	have	been	employed	in	the	preparation	of	the	segmented	financial	information.	Property	
taxation and revenue in-lieu of taxes are apportioned to the functions based on year end operating results and funding of capital 
expenditures.

The	accounting	policies	used	in	these	segments	are	consistent	with	those	followed	in	the	preparation	of	the	financial	statements,	
as disclosed in note 1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018

12.	Segmented	information	(continued):
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2019 $ 	462,660	
2020 	466,000	
2021 	469,407	

$  1,398,067 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 
 
13. Contractual rights
The Town holds contractual rights arising from contracts and agreements that have been entered into with various parties that 
provide the Town with enforceable future payments. The estimated contractual rights under these contracts, for the years ending 
December	31,	are	as	follows:

In addition to these contractual rights, the Town has agreements with several parties that provide for the recovery of costs and 
payment of annual fees and commissions based on annual results. 

14.	Commitments	and	contingent	liabilities:
(a)   Under Section 412 of the Local Government Act, all member municipalities are jointly and severally liable for the 
indebtedness of the Capital Regional District in the event of default by the Regional District.

(b)   The Town is a participant in the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (MIABC). Should the MIABC pay 
out claims in excess of premiums received, it is possible that the Town, along with other participants, would be required 
to	contribute	towards	the	deficit.	Management	does	not	consider	external	payment	under	this	contingency	to	be	likely	and	
therefore, no amounts have been accrued. 

(c) The Town is a shareholder and member of Capital Regional Emergency Service Telecommunications (CREST) 
Incorporated, which provides centralized emergency communications and related public safety information services to 
municipalities, regional districts, the provincial and federal governments and their agencies, and emergency service 
organizations throughout the Greater Victoria region and the Gulf Islands.  Members’ obligations to share in funding ongoing 
operations and any additional costs relating to capital assets are to be contributed pursuant to a Members’ Agreement.

(d)   The Town has an RCMP Premises Agreement with the District of North Saanich for the provision of accommodations 
for a joint RCMP detachment.  The parties jointly own the building occupied by the policing detachment, in proportion to 
their relative contributions to the principal repayment of the debt incurred in order to construct the building.  North Saanich’s
proportionate	share	is	approximately	36%.		The	Agreement	requires	the	Town	to	pay	to	North	Saanich	their	proportionate	
share of the fair market value of the building should the parties eventually decide to terminate their agreement to provide joint 
accommodations.

A	market	value	study	commissioned	in	2011	places	North	Saanich’s	share	at	approximately	$615,000,	and	the	RCMP	
Premises	Agreement	caps	the	maximum	payout	at	$715,000.		However,	there	is	no	intention	at	this	time	to	contemplate	
termination of the agreement.
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(e) The Town has entered into an Easement Agreement and Parking Agreement with the Saanich Memorial Park Society 
(MPS)	for	the	use	of	part	of	their	lands	for	two	specific	purposes:		the	Easement	Agreement	is	to	provide	easement	access	
to the Town’s Community Safety Building just south of MPS lands; and the Parking Agreement is to construct a parking lot for 
employees working in the downtown core.  Both agreements commit the Town to two separate payment streams, neither of 
which is considered a liability at Dec 31, 2018.  Under the terms of the agreements, the Town will make payments to MPS as 
follows:

For	the	Easement	Agreement:	a	total	of	$400,000,	payable	over	a	five-year	term.		The	payment	shall	be	$80,000	per	
calendar	year.		The	first	payment	in	2017	was	pro-rated	to	$46,667	to	reflect	the	actual	start	date	of	May	23,	2017,	and	the	
final	payment	in	2022	will	be	$33,333.

For	the	Parking	Agreement:	the	Town	shall	pay	the	equivalent	of	0.5%	of	the	previous	year’s	municipal	property	tax	revenues,	
for	as	long	as	the	parking	agreement	continues	to	be	in	place.		The	first	payment	in	2017	was	pro-rated	to	$31,396	to	reflect	
the	actual	start	date	of	May	23,	2017.		The	2018	payment	was	$54,883	and	the	2019	payment	will	be	$56,768;	future	year	
payments are estimated to increase by 2.5% annually.

The Town has also committed to assuming responsibility for grounds maintenance at the Mary Winspear Centre (the local 
theatre	and	conference	facility	owned	and	operated	by	MPS),	beginning	in	2017,	at	a	maximum	cost	of	$25,000	per	year,	with	
an	annual	inflation	factor	being	applied	starting	in	the	sixth	year.			This	commitment	is	included	in	the	Town’s	annual	operating	
budget, under Leisure, Parks and Cultural Services.

(f) Town’s Community Safety Building will be completed in 2019 with a remaining budget of $4.825 million; approximately 
$4.2 million of this budget is secured by tender contracts.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2018 
 
14.	Commitments	and	contingent	liabilities	(continued):

15.	Assets	held	for	sale:
The Town has a contract in place to sell the Town’s Fire Department Building and neighboring parking lot at a purchase price 
of $9,000,000; completion of the purchase is August 1, 2019.  These tangible capital assets are included in the Statement of 
Financial	Position	under	assets	held	for	sale.		The	consolidated	current	net	book	value	of	these	assets	is	$1,040,775;	a	net	gain	of	
$7,959,225	is	expected	to	be	realized	upon	completion	of	the	purchase.				
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NEW CONSTRUCTION

TAXABLE ASSESSMENT OF  
LAND AND IMPROVEMENTS
(in thousands)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Residential $  3,421,344 $ 	2,827,820	 $ 	2,399,073	 $ 	2,283,466	 $ 	2,244,663	
Utilities  1,419  1,290  1,131  1,100  1,153 
Light Industrial 	50,068	 	39,716	 	38,278	 	38,604	 	37,346	
Business / Other 	436,029	 	405,436	  388,014  380,423 	382,777	
Recreation	/	Non-profit 	34,897	 	34,075	 	31,496	 	27,272	 	26,883	
Farm  115 	116	  112 	116	 	116	

$  3,943,872 $  3,308,453 $  2,858,104 $  2,730,981 $  2,692,938 

Source: BC Assessment Revised Roll

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Residential	*
# of Permits 	72	  110 	117	  90 	69	
Permit Value $ 	35,923,507	 $ 	32,680,496	 $ 	43,810,346	 $ 	24,675,005	 $ 	10,572,245	
Net # of Units Added  88  114 	136	  93 	27	

Commercial	*
# of Permits  20  23  31 	17	  15 
Permit Value $ 	3,780,500	 $ 	1,747,275	 $ 	1,787,600	 $ 	677,000	 $  1,310,185 

Total
# of Permits  92  133  148 	107	  84 
Permit Value $ 	39,704,007	 $ 	34,427,771	 $ 	45,597,946	 $  25,352,005 $  11,882,430

Taxes Generated from New Growth ^ $  110,243 $  135,125 $ 	157,992	 $  49,955 $  84,020 

*	Residential	construction	includes	new	construction,	additions	and	alterations.	Commercial	construction	includes	new	
  construction and tenant improvements.

^ Growth in the tax base occurs as construction projects are completed, whereas permit values are reported when issued.   
As such, there is usually a lag between the time permit values are reported and the time related tax revenues are realized.

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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PROPERTY TAX RATES & REVENUE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Municipal (per ‘000 of assessment)

Residential 	2.327	 	2.708	  3.122 	3.187	 	3.137	

Utilities 	16.569	 	17.693	 	18.269	  18.839  18.381 

Light Industrial 	6.627	 	7.077	 	7.308	 	6.769	 	5.874	

Business / Other 	6.627	 	7.077	 	7.308	 	7.536	 	7.352	

Recreation	/	Non-profit  4.222  4.222 	4.407	 	4.684	 	4.622	

Farm  4.222  4.122  4.095 	4.062	 	3.962	

Total - including School, Regional, Transit, etc (per ‘000 of assessment)

Residential 	4.665	  5.321 	6.192	 	6.398	 	6.370	

Utilities 	36.825	  38.422  39.510 	40.375	  39.824 

Light Industrial 	14.479	  15.880 	17.072	 	16.859	 	15.969	

Business / Other 	14.261	 	15.634	 	16.795	 	17.548	 	17.552	

Recreation	/	Non-profit 	8.364	 	8.605	  9.312 	9.877	 	9.907	

Farm 	12.863	 	12.677	 	12.713	 	12.686	 	12.569	

Municipal Property Tax Billings by Class
Residential $ 	7,960,680	 $ 	7,659,092	 $ 	7,489,234	 $ 	7,272,378	 $ 	7,041,509	

Utilities  23,511  22,815 	20,660	 	20,731	  21,199 

Light Industrial  331,821 	281,072	 	279,723	 	261,321	 	219,360	

Business / Other 	2,889,761	 	2,869,327	 	2,826,375	 	2,866,859	 	2,819,306	

Recreation	/	Non-profit 	147,349	  143,853  138,818 	127,885	 	126,140	

Farm 	487	 	478	 	461	 	471	  459 

$  11,353,608 $  10,976,638 $  10,755,271 $  10,549,644 $  10,227,973 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIED AND COLLECTED
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Municipal $ 	11,353,608	 $ 	10,976,638	 $ 	10,755,271	 $ 	10,549,644	 $ 	10,227,973	

Parcel Taxes 	866,460	 	861,900	  852,000 	845,460	  922,443 

School 	6,473,186	 	6,171,860	 	6,404,119	 	6,581,187	 	6,660,279	

Regional District 	2,446,114	 	2,337,917	 	2,272,451	 	2,206,380	 	2,134,275	

BC Transit 	1,063,056	 	1,064,652	  1,132,125 	1,136,257	 	1,142,336	

Hospital District 	1,079,852	 	1,042,604	 	1,029,207	  1,022,555 	1,044,756	

Regional Library 	754,764	 	703,345	 	677,145	 	661,068	 	628,350	

BC Assessment 	203,754	 	189,681	 	202,865	  211,814 	218,127	

Municipal Finance Authority  951  808 	712	 	684	 	677	

Business Improvement Area Society 	297,950	 	275,952	 	269,222	 	262,656	 	256,251	

Total Tax Levied $  24,539,694 $  23,625,357 $  23,595,116 $  23,477,706 $  23,235,467 

Total Current Taxes Levied $ 	24,539,694	 $ 	23,625,357	 $ 	23,595,116	 $ 	23,477,706	 $ 	23,235,467	

Current Taxes Collected 	24,276,229	  23,313,232 	23,262,820	 	23,162,189	 	22,917,057	

Percentage 98.93% 98.68% 98.59% 98.66% 98.63%

Arrears Taxes Outstanding, Beginning of Year  441,430 	436,713	  415,834 	418,702	 	437,162	

Arrears Taxes Collected 	317,113	 	335,728	 	281,644	  298,502 	335,865	

Percentage 71.84% 76.88% 67.73% 71.29% 76.83%

Total Tax Collections* $  24,593,342 $  23,648,959 $  23,544,464 $  23,460,691 $  23,252,922 

*	Tax	collections	are	inclusive	of	both	current	and	prior	year	levies.

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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PRINCIPAL CORPORATE TAX PAYERS
Registered Owner Primary Use 2018 Municipal

Tax Levied
2018 Total

Tax Levied

Sidney Marina Co Ltd Marina / Boat Storage / Charters $  143,080 $ 	296,153	

Damka Lumber & Development Ltd Retail 	104,516	 	240,769	

Jim Pattison Developments Ltd Retail  100,599 	231,737	

Malaview Development Ltd Manufacturing / Retail 	99,730	  214,124 

0928818 BC Ltd Hotel 	85,579	 	195,773	

P & L Holdings Ltd Hotel	/	Office	/	Retail 	76,723	 	176,064	

Ko & Shew Ltd Office	/	Retail 	75,396	 	173,386	

Washington State Department Of Transportation Ferry Terminal 	73,394	 	157,520	

J R Estates Inc Senior Care Facility 	73,340	  133,405 

Nicholson Manufacturing Ltd Industrial / Electrical 	69,105	 	150,759	

HOBO Holdings Ltd Office	/	Retail 	64,689	 	147,469	

West Sidney Business Park Ltd Manufacturing	/	Office	/	Retail 	64,610	 	138,782	

Sidney Pier Properties Ltd Hotel 	62,057	  131,110

Emerald Isle Motor Inn Ltd Hotel 	60,066	 	138,271	

Port Sidney Marina Inc Marina  59,925 	122,965	

Slegg Holdings Ltd Office	/	Retail  59,502 	136,972	

R & M Scott Properties Inc Manufacturing  52,411 	114,287	

360204	BC	Ltd Office	/	Retail  48,595 	109,862	

Wendon Manufacturing Ltd Manufacturing 	47,924	  104,485 

Tait Bros Enterprises Ltd Hotel 	43,787	 	100,379	

Beacon Community Association Retail / Senior Care Facility  43,594  94,499 

Amica Mature Lifestyles Inc Senior Care Facility 	41,762	  83,542 

Victoria Airport Authority Storage Facility  40,298 	86,302	

Pacific	Island	Holdings	Ltd/Primeland	Properties	Ltd Office	/	Retail 	38,661	  83,120 

Megison Investments Ltd Manufacturing 	35,875	 	78,163	

Tudor Estates Ltd Retail  34,928  80,305 

Sidney Pier Holdings Office	/	Retail  33,554 	76,901	

Albion Properties Ltd Office	/	Retail 	32,427	 	73,677	

2297	Beacon	Holdings	Ltd Office	/	Retail 	31,462	 	72,312	

BC Telephone Co Telecommunications  22,834 	86,050	

Total $  1,820,425 $  4,029,142 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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DEBT
(in thousands, except per capita data)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Gross	Outstanding	Debt* $ 	13,860	 $ 	6,871	 $  3,925 $ 	3,960	 $  4,018 

Less:	Actuarial	Allocation  1,315  1,091 	937	  811 	710	

Net Debt $  12,545 $  5,779  $ 2,988  $  3,148  $  3,308 

Debt Servicing Cost **
Property Tax Supported $ 	426	 $  303 $  320  315  314 

Specified	Area  -  -  -  -  4 

Total Debt Servicing Cost $  426 $  303 $  320 $  315 $  318 

Gross Debt Servicing Limit $ 	5,206	 $  5,020 $  4,841 $  4,812 $ 	4,570	

Debt Capacity Available $  4,155 $ 	4,695	 $  4,518 $  4,482 $  4,214 

Population 	11,672	 	11,672	 	11,672	 	11,178	 	11,178	

# of Households 	5,603	 	5,603	 	5,603	  5,328  5,328 

Net Debt per Capita $ 	1,075	 $  495 $ 	256	 $  282 $ 	296	
Net Debt per Household  2,239  1,031  533  591 	621	

Debt Servicing per Capita $ 	37	 $ 	26	 $ 	27	 $  28 $  28 

Debt Servicing per Household 	76	  54 	57	  59 	60	

*	Included	in	2018	Gross	Outstanding	Debt	is	$4.5	million	of	interim	financing	that	will	be	partially	converted	to	debenture	debt.

**	Debt	servicing	cost	includes	principal	and	interest	payments	made	during	the	year.

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department  
& Statistics Canada
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(in thousands)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Financial Assets $ 	21,306	 $ 	19,778	 $  18,141 $ 	16,540	 $ 	15,126	

Financial Liabilities 	21,578	  12,303 	7,892	 	7,491	 	7,092	

Net Financial Asset (Net Debt) $  (272) $  7,475 $  10,249 $  9,049 $  8,035 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Revenue $ 	22,006	 $ 	22,789	 $  20,991 $ 	20,436	 $  20,125 

Expenses 	20,496	 	19,621	  19,092  18,393 	17,894	

Annual Surplus  1,510 	3,168	  1,899  2,043  2,230 

Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year  93,932 	90,764	 	88,864	 	86,821	  84,590 

Accumulated Surplus, End of Year $  95,442 $  93,932 $  90,764 $  88,864 $  86,821 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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REVENUES AND EXPENSES
(in thousands)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Revenue
Property Taxes $  13,254 $  12,815 $  12,493 $ 	12,275	 $  11,990

Fees, Rates and Service Charges 	6,074	 	6,133	 	6,077	 	5,766	  5,403 

Government Transfers  1,511 	1,471	  1,448 	1,368	 	1,960	

Investment Earnings  310  242  224  208  215 

Gifts and Contributions 	527	  1,892  315  480  292 

Penalties and Interest  102 	107	  95  103  90 

Actuarial Adjustments on Debt 	46	  39  12  25  21 

MFA Debt Reserve Fund Surplus  1  58  -  -  - 

Other  181  32  328  212  154 

$  22,006 $  22,789 $  20,991 $  20,436 $  20,125 

Expenses by Function
General Government $  2,439 $  2,423 $ 	2,397	 $ 	2,196	 $ 	2,246	

Protective Services  5,140 	4,701	 	4,386	 	4,171	 	4,070	

Transportation 	3,632	  3,399 	3,643	 	3,575	  3,434 

Environmental Health Services 	795	 	736	 	716	 	692	 	676	

Environmental Development  423  423  504 	375	 	366	

Leisure, Parks and Cultural 	2,965	  3,029 	2,847	 	2,767	 	2,777	

Water Utility  2,121  2,113  2,034  2,049  1,823 

Sewer Utility  2,144 	2,067	  1,995  1,939  1,921 

Other 	837	 	731	 	569	 	629	  582 

$  20,496 $  19,621 $  19,092 $  18,393 $  17,894 

Expenses by Object
Salaries,	Wages	and	Benefits $ 	7,067	 $ 	7,169	 $ 	6,991	 $ 	7,079	 $ 	6,795	

Contracted Services 	7,632	 	6,770	 	6,713	 	6,464	 	6,405	

Supplies and Equipment 	2,644	  2,388  2,598  2,010 	1,974	

Debt Interest  232 	156	  151 	156	  158 

Amortization 	427	 	527	 	170	  293  185 

Other  2,494 	2,612	 	2,468	  2,391 	2,378	

$  20,496 $  19,621 $  19,092 $  18,393 $  17,894 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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RESERVE FUNDS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Reserves Set Aside by Council
Miscellaneous Operating Purposes $  312,415 $ 	521,765	 $ 	497,510	 $ 	504,780	 $ 	412,640	

Miscellaneous Capital Purposes  1,022,893 	997,962	 	867,049	 	612,122	  493,321 

 1,335,308  1,519,727  1,364,559  1,116,902  905,961 

Reserve Funds Set Aside for Specific Purposes by Council
Land Sale Proceeds 	164,485	 	239,685	 	281,752	 	16,452	 	16,152	

Parkland Acquisition  132,194  129,594 	127,494	  125,494 	619	

Off-Street Parking  133,145 	37,125	 	86,686	 	80,586	 	74,586	

Computer Replacement 	370,179	 	377,902	 	451,907	 	436,427	 	504,561	

General Equipment Replacement 	1,123,496	 	957,626	 	886,236	 	715,225	 	671,082	

Fire Equipment Replacement 	338,436	 	246,178	 	134,672	 	478,205	 	450,779	

Water Capital 	297,778	  394,843 	351,975	 	346,475	 	340,875	

Sewer Capital 	24,316	 	23,816	 	23,416	 	23,016	 	22,616	

Infrastructure 	895,347	  1,808,845  1,818,925 	1,566,553	  2,201,990 

Water Rates Stabilization 	173,387	  228,558 	247,955	  244,055  240,155 

Amenities  213,314  152,814 	41,733	 	20,076	 	39,476	

Affordable Housing 	160,255	  3,329  -  -  - 

Ferry Terminal 	917,802	 	790,791	 	626,475	 	467,725	  490,005 

Contingency 	86,033	  84,333 	77,033	 	69,933	 	62,933	

Agreements 	171,259	 	162,040	 	165,857	  143,428 	120,078	

Gax Tax - Community Works Fund 	1,066,474	  1,845,598  1,841,491 	1,659,315	  1,185,044 

 6,267,900  7,483,077  7,163,607  6,392,965  6,420,951 

Restricted Cash  81,101 	79,374	  48,281 	46,968	 	45,795	

Total Reserves $  7,684,309 $  9,082,178 $  8,576,446 $  7,556,835 $  7,372,707 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES & FUNDING SOURCES
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Expenditures
General Government $  112,255 $ 	247,915	 $ 	111,579	 $ 	363,938	 $ 	71,170	

Protective Services 	7,945,527	 	3,791,279	 	685,423	 	208,375	 	58,751	

Transportation 	3,144,773	 	1,084,670	 	708,847	 	1,741,595	 	1,660,070	

Leisure, Parks and Cultural  280,840 	642,504	 	367,565	 	98,856	 	377,217	

Water Utility 	507,599	  522,508  351,125 	568,116	  298,200 

Sewer Utility  482,123 	417,391	  348,049 	391,786	 	155,726	

$  12,473,117 $  6,706,266 $  2,572,587 $  3,372,666 $  2,621,135 

Funding Sources
Property Taxes $ 	87,973	 $ 	111,336	 $  138,858 $ 	331,695	 $ 	227,360	

Grants  25,000  23,400  - 	20,605	  20,500 

Gifts & Donations  1,250 	6,870	  -  - 	47,150	

Gas Tax 	1,347,463	  522,954  288,831  52,000 	93,862	

Debt 	7,000,000	 	2,970,000	 	87,833	  25,300  - 

Surplus from Operations 	764,359	 	704,987	  124,250 	61,074	  85,000 

Agreements Reserve  15,291 	27,827	  2,003  -  - 

Amenity Reserve  19,843 	16,259	 	8,643	  95,000  82,124 

Computer Equipment Reserve  105,223 	171,305	  81,420  180,334 	576	

Contingency Reserve  -  -  -  -  124,500 

Ferry Terminal Reserve 	52,721	 	6,750	 	6,750	 	188,379	 	227,572	

Water Capital Reserve 	104,965	  -  -  -  - 

General Capital Reserve  -  30,000  -  -  - 

Infrastructure Reserve 	2,473,998	 	1,511,479	 	1,136,029	 	1,988,136	 	1,435,069	

Land Reserve  80,000 	46,667	  -  -  - 

Off-Street Parking Reserve  - 	55,761	  -  -  - 

Vehicle Reserve 	183,273	 	224,536	 	567,721	  323,032 	67,759	

Water Rate Stabilization Reserve 	59,772	 	23,396	  -  -  - 

Reserves Set Aside by Council - Capital 	76,972	 	179,320	 	99,565	 	44,278	 	163,717	

Offsite & Development Cost Charges 	63,269	 	60,000	  -  -  - 

Other 	11,746	  13,419 	30,683	 	62,832	  45,945 

$  12,473,117 $  6,706,266 $  2,572,587 $  3,372,666 $  2,621,135 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT PAYMENTS & 
PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS

Community
Support

Payments

Municipal 
Property Tax

Exemption 2018 Total 2017 Total

676	Kittyhawk	Air	Cadets	Squadron $ 	750	 $  - $ 	750	 $  500 

Army, Navy and Air Force Veterans of Canada  - 	21,277	 	21,277	 	21,074	

BC Aviation Museum  -  -  -  500 

Beacon Community Services  8,400  -  8,400 	7,000	

Boy Scouts & Girl Guide Hall  - 	3,640	 	3,640	  3,318 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints  - 	11,087	 	11,087	  11,144

Community Arts Council of the Saanich Peninsula  15,000 	637	 	15,637	 	10,690	

Crisis Intervention and Public Information 	600	  - 	600	 	600	

Greater Victoria Bike to Work Society  500  -  500  500 

Memorial Park Society / Mary Winspear Centre  330,300 	84,738	  415,038 	354,817	

Mount Newton Centre Society  500  -  500  - 

Navy League of Canada 	750	  - 	750	  500 

O.R.C.C.A.  2,500  -  2,500  1,500 

Open Aviron Rowing Coastal Association  5,000  -  5,000  - 

Peace Lutheran Church  500 	6,869	 	7,369	 	7,393	

Peninsula Celebrations Society  12,000  -  12,000  12,000 

Peninsula Dry Grad Society  1,500  -  1,500  1,500 

Peninsula Figure Skating Club  500  -  500  500 

Peninsula Streams Society  500  -  500  - 

Saanich Marine Rescue Society  1,500  -  1,500  1,500 

Saanich Peninsula Christadelphians  - 	2,987	 	2,987	 	2,962	

Saanich Peninsula Pipe Band  500  -  500  500 

Saanich Peninsula Piranha Swim Club  500  -  500  500 

School	District	#63 	11,873	  - 	11,873	 	10,474	

Shaw Centre for the Salish Sea  135,000  18,504  153,504 	82,615	

Shoal Centre / Beacon Community Services  - 	56,034	 	56,034	  59,193 

Sidney Business Improvement Area Society 	123,966	  3,422 127,389  108,198 

Sidney Concert Series  500  -  500  500 

Sidney Guide & Scout Hall Society  500  -  500  500 

Sidney Historical Museum  - 	5,760	 	5,760	 	6,102	

Sidney Lion’s Food Bank  - 	3,619	 	3,619	 	3,397	

South Island Prosperity Project 	26,722	  - 	26,722	 	26,722	

St.	Andrew’s	Abbeyfield	Housing	Society - 3,837 3,837 4,185

St. Andrew’s Anglican Church  500 	4,787	 	5,287	  5,139 

St. Elizabeth Church  500 	7,684	  8,184  8,280 

St. Paul’s United Church  - 	4,077	 	4,077	  3,928 

Tides Canada Initiatives - IYILS 	750	  - 	750	  - 

Vancouver Island South Film & Media Commission  500  -  500  500 

Victoria Human Exchange Society  -  -  -  1,500 

Wounded Warrior Run BC  1,000  -  1,000  - 

$  683,611 $  238,959 $  922,570 $  760,230 

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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STRATEGIC COMMUNITY INVESTMENT FUNDS 
PLAN & PROGRESS REPORT

Small Community Portion of SCI Funds

Intended Use Performance Targets Progress made in reporting period

Use funding to support local 
government services to minimize 

tax rates increases.

Minimize tax rate increases. $345,703 in Small Community Grants were 
received in 2018. These funds were used to fund 
general municipal services in 2018. A tax increase 
of 3.04% would have been required to generate 

the level of funding used in 2018.

Traffic Fine Revenue Portion of SCI Funds

Intended Use Performance Targets Progress made in reporting period

Use funding to support police 
enforcement.

100% of funds are used to support 
police enforcement over the term of 

the SCI agreement.

$91,436	in	Traffic	Fine	Revenue	was	received	in	
2018. These funds were used towards the police 

operating budget in 2018.

Source: Town of Sidney Finance Department
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TOWN OF SIDNEY
REPORT TO COUNCIL

MAYOR AND COUNCIL

Randy Humble, Ghief Administrative Officer

July 2,2019 FILE NO.:

PROPOSED REGIONAL CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS FOR EMERGENCIES
(oPERAT|ONAL GUTDELTNES AND PROTOCOL AGREEMENT)

lh
TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

PURPOSE:

To provide for Council's review and consideration a proposed Regional Concept of Operations for
Emergencies, including Operational Guidelines (refer to Appendix A), and proposed Protocol Agreement
(refer to Appendix B).

BACKGROUND:

The Regional Emergency Management Partnership (REMP) in the Capital Region was established in
March 2016 through a Memorandum of Understanding between the Provincial Government of BC and
the Capital Regional District (on behalf of its member municipalities and electoral areas) to enhance
agreed upon priorities for regional emergency management mitigation, preparedness, response and
recovery. lt is an equal partnership between the BC Government and the Capital Regional District
(CRD) LocalAuthority representatives, and there is equal representation from both partners on the
Steering Committee. The Steering Committee sets the direction for REMP's work. REMP's planning
initiatives are supported by integrated working groups consisting of all levels of government, First
Nations and stakeholder agencies and are reliant on collaboration and relationships to achieve
success.

Creation of a Regional Concept of Operations for the Capital Region has been identified as a key
priority on REMP's 2017-2019 Strategic Plan and subsequent annual business plans. lt has also been
an initiative that local government emergency program coordinators (EPCs) in the region have long
been trying to bring to fruition in recognition that a large-scale emergency will cross jurisdictional
boundaries. A Regional Concept of Operations is a description of the mechanism or system within
which a group of organizations or individuals will work in during regional emergencies. The purpose of
the prolect is to outline how local government (municipalities and Regional District), First Nations and
the Province will work together during events of regional emergency significance.
For the past two years, REMP has focused time and resources on engaging the region to determine
what the needs of a Regional Concept of Operations are and how best the region can work together to
create a model for this.

ln 2018, the REMP Steering Committee worked with the region's Emergency Coordinators regarding a
review of options to move foruvard with a Regional Concept of Operations. The result of this work was
presented to the Local Area Administrator's (LAA) group on May 10,2019 where by it was decided that
the draft Operational Guidelines and Protocol Agreement would be considered by our respective
municipalities for sign off. lt is also worth noting that Emergency Management British Columbia (EMBC)
and First Nations have been involved in workshops and discussions and are being requested to also be
included in the Protocol Agreement.

Regional Goncept of Operations Engagement and Development:

. March 9,2018: Local government Chief Administrative Officers (CAOs) at the Local Area
Administrators meeting endorsed the need for a Regional Concept of Operations and requested
that REMP develop model options for consideration.
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a June 12,2018: REMP gathered local government, First Nation and stakeholder emergency
program staff in the region to determine the components that the Regional Concept of
Operations model needs to incorporate, to be presented to the CAOs. The four main
components identified as necessary to the composition of the model included: A defined
structure and governance; a trusted decision-making framework; political buy-in; and inclusive
and personal engagement.

October 16,2018: REMP hosted a workshop with all CAOs in the region and Emergency
Management BC (Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General) Deputy Minister to review the
model options. Results from the workshop concluded that a CAO decision-making model,
supported by a regional Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that shows a commitment from
each signatory on behalf of their jurisdiction to use the model during response in the event of a
regional emergency significance. The proposed signatories of the agreement are the CAOs
from each jurisdiction within the region, the Deputy Minister of Emergency Management BC
(EMBC) and Band Administrators from each First Nation community when willing to particípate.

January-March2019: REMP created a model based on direction derived from 2018
engagement and began to share the model with partners for input.
May 7,2019: REMP held a regional workshop to explore potential regional issues that would
require the Regional Concept of Operations to be activated. The three most pressing issues
included issues around recovery operations, crisis communication, and water restoration and
prioritization.

a

a

a

DISCUSSION:

Regional Goncept of Operations Model:

The proposed Regional Concept of Operations model follows the recommendations of the CAOs within
the region by explaining a step-by-step process for activating a CAO decision-making framework during
an event of regional emergency significance. The purpose of the Regional Concept of Operations is to
expedite decision making, information sharing and collaboration during an event of regional emergency
significance.

The Regional Concept of Operations model was developed with a set of guiding principles as its
foundation. These include: Respecting local autonomy; using existing structures and resources;
enabling pro-active leadership; maintaining a scalable, flexible and layered approach; and remaining
collaborative.

lmplementation of the Regional Concept of Operations would provide many benefits to the region. Most
notably, the opportunity for the region to collaborate and provide a united voice to the EMBC's
Vancouver lsland Provincial Regional Emergency Operations Centre (PREOC) in a large-scale
emergency event, when the PREOC may be supporting up to eight regional districts, 52 First Nations
and 37 municipalities. The Regional Concept of Operations allows the Capital Region to come together
to provide recommendations to the PREOC and collaborate on decision-making to benefit the region in
an event of regional significance. ln addition, other values identified by the region's emergency program
staff include: expanded and more efficient use of resources; better communications; better ability to
sustain longer responses and recovery; common understanding of the overall shared vision or situation
and more.
During an emergency event within the Capital region, as set out in the British Columbia Emergency
Program Acf (the Act), each local government is responsible for having an established emergency
program and for activating their emergency response plans to respond to their local emergency. This is
usually done by the emergency program coordinator in collaboration with the head of administration,
such as the CAO. ïhe Regional Concept of Operations model does not change the process that is set
out in the Act. lnstead, it complements the existing emergency management procedures when there is
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an event of regional emergency significance, empowering the municipalities, the Regional District, and
the Province to come together to increase collaboration and coordination during a regional emergency
event. When necessary, the Province or any local government can activate the Regional Concept of
Operations to bring the region together to ensure collaborative decision-making, coordinated
recommendations to the province, enhanced situational awareness and more. The model can also be
applied to the region or subset of the region, dependent on the scope, scale, consequences and
geographical scope of the event. The Regional Concept of Operations may be activated by either the
Province, any municipality or the Regional District when:

. An event crosses (or has the potential to cross) iurisdictional boundaries

. There is potential negative impact(s)
o There is a heightened risk to other jurisdictions
. There are competing demands for critical resources
. There is limited access to a specific or required resources in a timely manner
o Event of issue is of interest to media or public throughout the region that requires specific

coordination

Regular updates and communication in the development of the Regional Concept of Operations Model
have been shared with local government and EMBC. The model has been shared with the Capital
Regional District's Local Government Emergency Program Advisory Commission, the Local Area
Administrators, Emergency Management BC and the REMP Steering Committee. No concerns or further
changes were provided, and implementation of the model has been endorsed. The model is explained in
detail in Attachment 2.

Regional Goncept of Operations Process:

During an event of regional emergency significance, the Regional Concept of Operations model
process would include a combination of the following steps:

1. Local government EOCs may be activated, the Vancouver lsland PREOC may be activated
(however, there is no requirement that these are activated); an entity identifies that there is a
need to activate the Regional Concept of Operations

2. Whomever initiates the activation notifies EMBC's Vancouver lsland PREOC, who coordinates
the meeting

3. EMBC Vancouver lsland PREOC notifies all parties that the Regional Concept of Operations
has been activated and provides a summary of the incident or event, regional issues, impacts
and potential recommendations

4. A conference call is held for all CAOs in the region
5. During the conference call, the situation is presented, and a decision or guided discussion

occurs
6. All CAOs report back the outcomes of the meeting to their Emergency Operations Centres

(Eoc)
7. Any necessary outcomes are actioned such as: Coordination of public messaging, sharing of

resources, collecting further information, etc.
8. All parties continue to monitor the situation and reconvene as necessary

Discussions and I mplications:

The Regional Concept of Operations ensures a coordinated response to regional emergencies and
allows for agreed upon priority actions. Signing of the supporting MOU commits local government in the
region to collaborating to ensure a coordinated response, appropriate capacity and prioritization of key
resources and ongoing train and exercising of the model. The supporting MOU respects local autonomy
and does not supersede the existing reporting structure local government has with EMBC as outlined in
the BC Emergency Management System. The MOU represents the local government's commitment to
maintaining open communications with the rest of the region and assessing the regional impact as part
of its EOC decision-making process during regional emergencies.
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lf municipalities and the Regional District choose not to become signatories of the MOU to support
implementation of the Regional Concept of Operations, there is no penalty or implication related to their
legislative authority or relationship with the Province. However, those that do not wish to sign will not be
considered a party to the model and may miss opportunities to collaborate in training, exercising,
educating and refining of the model during the preparedness phase. lt was noted in the development of
the model that there is an expectation from the public that alljurisdictions in the region are already
collaborating in emergency management in all phases (preparedness, response, recovery and
mitigation), and that this would be the first step in working toward that public expectation. A tabletop
exercise will follow the implementation to validate the Regional Concept of Operations using a regional
issue that requires decision-making in Fall 2019.

Learning from major disasters that have occurred in the past, using a regional approach to share
information and to seek input on regional issues that require collaborative decision-making has proven
to be more effective than having each jurisdiction work individually. ln BC's emergency management
structure, it is expected that EMBC's Vancouver lsland PREOC could have up to a total of 97
municipalities, regional districts and First Nations communities communicating with and requesting
support from the PREOC individually.

EMBC's executive leadership has expressed support for the Regional Concept of Operations model,
having been engaged throughout the development process, and the Deputy Minister of EMBC, who
would be the signatory of the MOU, has indicated support-in-principle for signing of the MOU.

FINANGIAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no financial implications associated with the Regional Concept of Operations or the
supporting MOU.

CONCLUSION

As has been made evident throughout the province over the past few years, regional emergencies are
becoming more and more common. Partnerships, coordination and joint planning have been widely
recommended by several after action reviews and recommendation reports. The Regional Concept of
Operations gives the region a chance to collaborate to present a united voice to the Province and a
mechanism to share information within the region during a regional emergency. lt is recommended that
Mayors and Councils in the region support their Administration in signing this MOU to implement the
Regional Concept of Operations to ensure public safety within the region is not impacted negatively by
jurisdictional boundaries during an event of regional emergency significance.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Chief Administrative Officers be authorized to sign the Memorandum of Understanding that supports
the Regional Concept of Operations during events of regional emergency significance.

Respectfully submitted,

Randy Humble
Chief Administrative Officer

ATTACHMENTS:
1. REMP 2018 Annual Report (March 18,2019)

2. Regional Concept of Operations Operational Guidelines (May 2019) CONFIDENTIAL

3. Memorandum of Understanding: Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region (May 2019)
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Vision: A disaster resilient region where locol, provinciol, First Nation and federal governments

work together with regional ond community stokeholders as partners towards enhanced emergency

manogement.

Mission: REMP leads the development and delivery of regional emergency management.

Priorities:

1) Understanding regional emergencies, hazards and vulnerabilities to support loss prevention,

mitigation and preparedness.

2l Planning for collaborative emergency

response, business continuity and disaster

recovery by regional partners.

3) Enhancing REMP's governance, capabilities

and efficiency.

REMP
REGIONAL EMERGENCY
MANAG EM ENT PARTN ERSH IP
in the Capital Region

The Regional Emergency Management Partnership (REMP) ín the Capital Regíon was established in March 2016

through a Memorandum of Understanding between the Provincial Government of BC and the Capital Regional Dístrict

(on behalf of its member municipalities and electoral areas) to enhance regional emergency management by providing

regional planning on priority emergency management activities. The Capital Region is comprised of L3 municipalities,

three electoral areas and nine First Nations and is home to approximately 380,000 people. Local government within

the Capital Region are responsible for developing and implementing emergency management plans, including prepara-

tion for, response to and recovery from emergencies and disasters as outlined in the BC Emergency Program Act or
jointly through municipal bylaws and other agreements. The Capital Regional District holds the responsibility for the

same level of emergency management support to its three electoral areas.
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Message from the Co-Chairs

We are pleased to present the Regional Emergency Management Partnership (REMP) 201-8 Annual Report. At the out-
set, we would like to acknowledge that we are honoured to do this great worl< with our partners on the traditional ter-
ritory of the T'Sou-ke, Ll<wungen, Xwsepsum, Scia'new and WSÁNEÓ nations. This second annual report forthe part-

nership outlines the key accomplishments experienced during REMP's second year of iIsZAfi-2019 Strategic Plan. Dur-

ing the first year of REMP, the Steering Committee focused on implementing a governance structure, developing trans-
parent business practices and setting a strong foundation for the partnership's future work. Building on that strong
foundation, in 2018 REMP and its partners to begin advancing regional planning priorities through project worl<, a se-

ries of engagement workshops and increased communications.

On January 23 2018, much of the Capital region awoke in the early hours of the morning to a tsunami warning along

BC's coast. The event caused several municipalities to activate their emergency operations centres, some to conduct
evacuations, some to open reception centres or information centres, while others had residents self-evacuating unnec-

essarily. Media outlets were, at times, reporting information that was contradictory to municipal emergency programs,

which, at times was uncoordinated with other municipalities, resulting in public confusion. While this regionalevent
did not result ín a damaging tsunami, it reaffirms REMP's role in many of its key projects to support collaboration and

regional coordination of emergency planning within the region in relation to our shared risks.

ln early 2018 the partnership set out to establish a communications plan with the goalof better engaging our key part-

ners and stakeholders in our projectworkand in opportunitiesfortheirengagement. Based on this plan, REMP has

implemented severalcommunications practices such as creating a mid-year lnterim Bulletín wíth project information
and a note from us, the Co-Chairs; increasing the amount of engagement sessions, workshops and forums we hold and

attend; distributing information about funding opportunities; and using tools and templates such as project status up-

dates to report out on project work.

201"8 was yet another significant year of response. Based on learnings from 2017, REMP implemented a deployment
policy for partnership staff to support local, regionaland provincialresponse efforts during majoremergencies, which
was used during 2018 wildfire events. This opportunity strengthens REMP staff knowledge through practicalexperi-
ence, enabling staff to apply some of the plans REMP has developed and to bring back experience to share with the
region to enhance all localemergency management programs. ln addition to REMP staff, many municipalemergency
program staff once again stepped in to supportthe response in various cor-
ners of the province and were able to continue to support on regional prior-

ities as well as bring valuable lessons back to the region. Even while sup-

porting the response REMP completed 82% of its key performance indica-

to rs.

While 2018 saw many new beginnings for the partnership, we also said

goodbye to some significant contributors. The Steering Committee would
like to acknowledge Deputy Minister Rebecca Denlinger and Chief Dave

Cockle who both particípated in their last Steering Committee meeting in
December of 2018 before their retirements in December and January. Their
contr¡butions to the field of emergency management over the years have

been immense and we thank them for work towards improving emergency

management within the Capital region.

On behalf of the partnership, we thank all of our partners and stakeholders

for supporting REMP and look forward to working with you all in the years

to come.

Lori Halls

Provincial Co-Chair

Deputy M:nister

Emergency

Management BC, Minis-

try of Public Safety and

Robert Lapham

Local Co-Chair

ChieJ Administrative

Off icer

Capital Regional

D i strìct
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2018 Highlights

Jennifer Rice, Parliamentary Secretary for Emergency Preparedness;

Steven Price, Capital Regional District Board Chair; and the Honoura-

ble Mike Farnworth, Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General

meet as REMP Policy Group to discuss ratifying the 2018 Annual Busi-

ness Plan.

Participants of the Reg¡onal Concept of Operations Multi-Stakeholder

Engagement workshop learning their role in identifying key themes

that the project must address.

Participants of the REMP Hazard, Risk and Vulnerability Assessment

workshop discuss how the ¡mpacts of the scenarios presented would

impact the environment within the region, before assigning quantita-

tive values and sharing with the broader group.

Ø 82% af RËMlP's 2t1"8 Key Pe rformane e

lndicatcrs were c0mplete

Ø Held annr-¡ai Pcrlicy Group nneelii'ìg

between ihe Minister of Publie SaFety and

Solicitor Genera l, l-lonou rable fVl ike

Farnwoi'th, Capitai Regional District Board

Chaír, Steven Priee to ratify the 2018

Annual Business Plan and highlight 2AL7

acaomplishments

Ø Compieted REIVIP's first Communications

Plan, outlining how REtVIP will engage rn¡ith

its key partrìers and stakeholders

Ø eompleted a Regional Fublic Ëducation

Plan and revised the region's

Prepa reYourself Workbook in

collaboration with the LGËPAC

Ø Held two regionalforums, four regional

workshCIps and multiple working group

meelings, leading groups of diverse

stakeholders nanging from approximately

13 to 5û participants to worl< on reg¡onal

in ibiatives

Ø Conducted a regional public preparedness

survey, which abtained responses frorn

484 residents in all municipalities and

electc¡ral areas in the region

Ø Dellvered multipie presentafions

throughout the region ancl outside of the

region to contlr':ue to edueate groups and

organizatians or'! r¡¡haT RËlMP is and why

regicnal collaboration is iinportant

I
,J

':

l
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Goal 1
Motivate residents and organizations within the Region to mitigate and

prepare for risks through an understanding of potential impacts and how

they may be vulnerable.

Strategy 1.1: Assess regional vulnerabilities to future disasters

Key Activities

ø KPI: At least three priority regional hazards vulnerabilities have been assessed by November 30, 2018.

Based on local government hazard research conducted in 2OI7, REMP compiled a list of top-rated hazards among most

local government that make up the Capital region and used this list to inform a Regional Hazard, Risk and Vulnerability

Assessment (HRVA) workshop, which took place on November 19, 2018. During the workshop, approximately 50 par-

ticipants from organizations throughout the region including all levels of government as well as First Nations, evaluated

the regional consequences and likelihood of an earthquake event, an extreme heat event and a snowstorm event.

This workshop was conducted in collaboration with Emergency Management BC (EMBC), as REMP was supporting

EMBC by piloting its new HRVA methodology. This project will continue with a disaster risk reduction workshop to take

place in 2019, consistent with the methodology.

Strategy t.2z Communicate reg¡onal hazards, vulnerabilities and risks and need for

preparedness.

Key Activities

ø KPI: A methodology to measure public preparedness is established and implemented by December 31, 2018.

With support of a working group made up of a range of local government emergency program coordinators, REMP ex-

plored what actions and activities represent household preparedness within the Capital region. Using the indicators

identified by the group, REMP worked with the Province's Justice and Public Safety Sector's Organizational Develop-

ment Team of professional researchers to put a preparedness survey together. The survey was ultimately delivered

online using a panel company and garnered 484 responses from individuals in every municípality and electoral area

within the Capital region over 21 days. Results were analyzed for key themes but will be further analyzed to determine

how the findings of this survey can be translated into public education recommendations for the region.

NEGIONAL ËMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT PARTNERSHIP
In lhe Câpital Rêg0rl
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Conduct a regional hazard risk and vulnerability assessment,

Determine a methodology for measuring regional public preparedness.
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Goal 1
Motivate residents and organizations within the Region to mitigate and

prepare for risks through an understanding of potential impacts and how

they may be vulnerable.

Stfategy 1.3: Educate residents on mitigation options and benefits.

Key Activities

ø KPI: A regionalpublic education plan is completed for implementation by municipalities by April27,2OL8

ln support of the Local Government Emergency Program Advisory Commission (LGEPAC), REMP led the LGEPAC Public

Education Working Group in creating a Capital region Public Education Plan template, which outlines annual and sea-

sonal emergency preparedness activities that local emergency programs take part in on a regular basis, with space for

local programs to adapt to their needs. Working on an annual timeline, the vision for the public education timeline is

that during the first LGEPAC meeting of each year, the working group would review the plan and adapt it to suit the

current year.

ln addition to the public education plan, REMP supported the LGEPAC Public Education Working Group in conducting a

full editorial review and revision of the LGEPAC's PrepareYourself Workbook (https://bit.lV/2jXtZsL). This was complet-

ed and pr¡nt copies were ordered in time for Emergency Preparedness Week 20L8.

D\C

,rl
Participants discuss indicators of Preparedness at the Measuring

Regional Public Preparedness Workshop held at the D¡strict of North

Saanich Municipal Hall.

Final revised PrepareYourself Work-

book Cover Page

6

Develop a regional public education plan to promote emergency preparedness activities

I

tu¡dÑffi?
fr¡.-d5ÈFæFt

. bE.,ËFrÈi#
:-F'd$dd

1) .':.',

Regional Emergency Management Partnership: Annual Report



Stfategy 2.L: Engage partners in advancing the Regional Concept of Operations for
col la borative response.

Activities

t] KPI: Develop a draft Regional Concept of Operations model by Decembe r 3L,2OL8

Results

During the first quarter of 2018, REMP identified that direction and support from the local government CAOs in the

region was key to making progress on this project. Working with the local government CAOs on the Steering Com-

mittee, REMP presented to the LocalArea Administrators group in March to provide an overview of the project and

derive feedback and input. REMP also held an EPC webinar in advance to allow EPCs a chance to engage and prepare to

support their CAOs. Following this presentation, the CAOs in the region validated that the project should move for-

ward, and REMP identified three project champions on the Steering Committee who now make up the Project Advisory

Team. Based on their direction, REMP hosted an Emergency Program Coordinator and Multi-Stakeholder workshop to

explore the Regional Concept of Operations and brought the results of that workshop to another workshop with the

LocalArea Administrators. This final engagement session provided the direction that REMP needs to complete a draft

Regional Concept of Operations model which will be developed and validated in 2019.

Stfategy 2.2: lnform response planning among critical infrastructure owners and

operators.

Key Activities

ø KPI: Results from the regional hazard risk and vulnerability assessment are shared with critical infrastructure

stakeholders in the Capital region to inform their emergency management and business continuity plans by

Results

Results of the Regional Hazard, Risk and Vulnerability Assessment workshop have been shared with allworkshop par-

ticipants and emergency program coordinators in the region. This includes several critical infrastructure stakeholders

within the region. Further HRVA work will be conducted during 2019, with the goal of informing the region on potential

avenues to reduce disaster risk through identifying necessary plans and activities to prevent loss.

7

Develop a draft Regional Concept of Operation model for collaborative regional decision making

Communicate regional risks to relevant critical infrastructure stakeholders for integration into emergency plans

1 T ì+-r *,:l l; I ffi¡¡;!|,ii:r*.,



Goal 3 Operate REMP efficiently within the bounds of the MOU, and continuously

improve relationships among regional partners.

Stfategy 3.1: Define REMP decision-making and implementation process.

Key Activities

tr KPI: A process for engagement with First Nations on REMP is clarified by December 31, 2018

During 20L8, REMP continued to engage with First Nations in the region on key emergency management project work

as well as through the Ex-Officio members on the Steering Commiüee. However, during the business planning process

for 2019, REMP identified that the ways in which we are engaging the nations wíthin our region may not be adding val-

ue to their local community emergency programs. Therefore, REMP has identified in 20L9 a shift from including First

Nations in REMP's emergency management planning, to creating value for First Nations by hosting an information

sharing workshop for local Nations to support their needs in emergency management planning.

Stfategy 3.2: Ensure resources meet requirements of activities selected for 2017-2019

Key Activities

ø KPI: 2019 Annual Business Plan is approved by October 5, 2018

ø KPI: 2019-2020 REMP Financial Plan is approved by October 5, 2018

ø KPI: Coordinate LGEPAC and REPAC meetings by Decembe r 2O,2Ot8

REMP's Annual Business Plan and Two-Year Financial Plan was approved during the third quarter Steering Committee

meeting on October 2,2OI8, to ensure appropriate resources are allocated annually to support the goals of the 2OL6-

2019 REMP Strategic Plan.

REMP supported two CRD commissions (LGEPAC and REPAC) by providing agenda coordination and logistical support.

ln an effort to mitigate duplication and strengthen collaboration, REMP and the LGEPAC agreed to change the amount

of meetings from monthly to quarterly, to align with REMP Steering Committee meetings and to implement a proper

feedback loop between the groups.

8

Develop a process to include First Nations in REMP decision-making for determining regional emergency manage-

ment projects

Ensure sufficient resources and allocation are assigned to support REMP activities

Coordinate LGEPAC and REPAC meetings to discuss regional emergency management topics

Regional Emergency Management Partnership: Annual Report



Goal 3 Operate REMP efficiently within the bounds of the MOU, and continuously

improve relationships among regional partners.

Strategy 3.3! Advance REMP partner accountability and engagement.

Key Activities

ø KPI: REMP Communications Plan is implemented by March 30,2018

ø KPI: At least one face to face meeting with other regional emergency management partnerships is held by

November 30' 2018 
Resurts

ln early 20L8 the partnership set out to establish a communications plan with the goal of better engaging our key part-

ners and stakeholders in our project work and in opportunities for their engagement. This plan was approved by the

Steering Committee in March of 2018. Based on this plan, REMP has implemented severalcommunications practices

such as creating a mid-year lnterim Bulletin with project information and a note from the Co-Chairs; increasing the

amount of engagement sessions, workshops and forums we hold and attend; distributing information about funding

opportunities; and using tools and templates such as project status updates to report out on project work. Since then,

REMP has implemented the plan and is working on continuously improving communications practices.

ln 2018 REMP continued to develop a connection with other known partnerships including the lntegrated Partner-

ship for Regional Emergency Management in the Metro Vancouver region and the Regional Disaster Preparedness

Organization in the Portland Metropolitan area. The three partnerships had one joint teleconference meeting to ex-

change project details and partnership experiences. ln addition, REMP and IPREM collaborated on regionalhazard

risk and vulnerability assessment projects.

A sign welcomes participants to the REMP

Regional Concept of Operations Multi-

Stakeholder Engagement Workshop

, i.,,,.:'i rl.,.1r,q'ìrr" ¡lrlii !i'

¡

€ €
fi,-

Health and Fatalities subject matter experts

listen to a potential earthquake hazard sce-

nario at the REMP Hazard, Risk and Vulnera-

bility Assessment workshop

*R Eþ{{,.,r
tNrrÂûtfffltli
lilffi[5flûr

r"1til I it ¡!:t : I

l1tü ll/JiI,¡
Chief Adminlstrative Offisers from throughout thê ,

Capital region meet in the Capital Regional District

Board room for a workshop on the REMP Regional

Concept of Operations Project.

o Develop and implement REMP Communications Plan to engage and inform stakeholders on REMP activities

. Continue to explore and expand the regional partnership network to enhance sharing of information

ll ffiileÆf"3 i ;i:,: ii{ilì,lil,ri, ,,,u,,,o 9



Melodie Hutmacher (formerly with REMP),

Elizabeth Scambler (EMBC), Kirsten Hunter

(EMBC), Trisha Maciejko (IPREM) and Eric Zhelka

(EMBC) collaborate on EMBC's new Hazard, Risk

and Vulnerability Analysis Tool that REMP will go

on to pilot during 2018 and further implement in

2019.

Emergency Program Coordinators from across the

region join media personnel from various local media

outlets at the District of Saanich Emergency

Operations Centre for a media information workshop.

The purpose was to inform the media about trusted

sources, the basics of emergency management and

their role as first responders in a significant event

following the January 23,2018 tsunami warning along

the coast of BC.

Othier Fartinensår ilp i-lügh B tghts

Conneeting pa¡'tners:

Thror-rgh round-table sharing at regular REMP Steer"iirg fornmiltee meeTings R[MP learned

;rbout the Loeai üovernrnerrt íVanageffie:'ìl Ässoe lafi¿:n's plans for Eleeie d Cllicials

Irnergenev ù/lanãgernenl training ðnLj mras able to cor:neet the associ¿ric]n's working

grou!3 vi/ith ËMEe's ûrganizaïional Learning and Pub{ie Ëducal.icn Tearn. The groups wilÍ be

eolial¡orating ûn a presentar.ron and piltenliül workshops durng 2CI19.

Supprorfi mg regíonaå engagerment:

u l-{osleal four regionâl ',vr:rksho¡:s rËläled to llËMF projeets

u þiosled two reg¡ûnal farurvrs in suppe r"t af tire Regicnal Iinergency Fianners AcliiisorV

e arv¡missian

o Supported four regiorìäl ffiËelinËs in suppr-:rt ol lh€ Local ücvernn"ìent Ërnergency

Prcgram,Advisoi"y Com i^nis,-sicn {l-Ç ËpAeJ

:-- -" ---''--s ^L the Lfi[PÅC's Pr,rpa'"eYc'";rsn:]f Ë:'rrergei:er¡ Preil;:retlness W€ek sociãl mediaÃ ilì )uLlur-ji t- {Jt

q!ile,]lrl!lr¡, RF.1\llP rJorraled llr'Je erfleÌ'gçrìr:y prËoareljrress kiis
Regional Emergency Management Partnership: Annual Report 10



2018 Organizational Chart

Notes:
1) Provincial representatives are appointed by the lnter-Agency Emergency Preparedness Council
2) CAO representatives are appointed by the Local Area Administrators and approved by the CRD Board
3) Representative elected by the Local Government Emergency Program Advisory Commission
4) lnterim First Nations Representative
5) Partnership oversight is provided by EMBC (supervision of staff, finance, agenda coordination for Policy Group and Steering Committee

Stevo,FricÊ
Policy Group

:-(ñlnVp,O

Steeri Committee

Gordon Planes

Chiel T'Sou-ke First Nationa

Ex-Officios

Jennifer Jones

Health Manager, Tseycum

First Nationa

Jackie Albany

Councillor, Songhees

First Nationa

David Tomaz

A/Senior Regional Manager,
Emergency Management BC

Shawn Carby

Senior Manager, Protective Services,

Capital Regional District

Brittany Schina

Senior Project Manager,
REMP, positioned with EMBC

Melodie Hutmacher

Regional Emergency Systems Coordinator
REMP, positioned with CRD

Support Teams

qþ REIVI P ]1,11'låååå,Hffiffiåo"," It



2018 Financial Statement

For t|'re Fiscal Year Ending orì Decemben 33., 20L8*

REVENUE

CRD Requisition
Provincial Government
Reserve Accountl

s

s

s

126,770

125,000

15,260

Total Funds Available 5 267,030

EXPEND¡TURES

Salaries and Benefits
Consultants - REMP Projects

Regional Concept of Operations
Regional Hazard Risk Assessment

Measuring Regional Public Preparedness
Regional Public Education Preparedness Plan

Travel

Professiona I Develop ment
Other Services

Conference Registrations
Allocations2
Caterins, Workshop Supplies and Printing

s

s

s

5

5

s

5

s

s

s

L63,638

t3,546
6,893

2,6L3

6,0L4

3,544

772

L,295

14,979

3,009

Total Expenditures 5 zto,zqq

Notes:

*The financiol statement is unofficial untíl financial activitíes are verified.

1) Reserve Accaunt is unspent funds from previous years applied to current yeor budqet

2) CRD Allocations (telecommunicatíons, insurance, network support, and other udministrative servrces)

Regional Emergency Management Partnership: Annual Report L2



STRATEGIES

1.1 Assess regional

vulnerabilities to future

disasters.

1.2 Communicate regional

hazards, vulnerabilities and

risks and need for
preparedness.

1.3 Educate residents on

mitigation options and

benefits.

2.1 Engage partners in

advancing the Reg¡onal

Concept of Operations for

collaborative response.

2.2 lnlorm response planning

among critical infrastructure

owners and operators.

3.1 Define REMP decision-

making and implementation

process.

3.2 Ensure resources meet

requirements of actlvitles

sefected Íor 2017'2CIL9.

3.3 Advance REMP partner

accountability and

engagement.

KEY ACTIVITIES

Conduct a regional hazard risk and

vulnerability assessment

Determine a methodology for

measuring regional public

preparedness

Develop a regional public education

plan to promote emergency

prepa red ness activities

Develop a draft Regional Concept of

Operation model for collaborative

regional decision making

Communicate regional risks to

relevant critical infrastructure

stakeholders for integration into

emergency plans

Develop a process to include First

Nations in REMP decision-making for

determining regional emergency

management projects

Ensure sufficient resources and

allocation are assigned to support

REMP activities

Coordinate LGEPAC and REPAC

meetings to discuss regional

emergency management topics

Develop and implement REMP

Communications Plan to engage and

inform stakeholders on REMP activities

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

At least three priority regional hazards vulnerabilities

have been assessed by November 30, 2018

A methodology to measure public preparedness is

established and implemented by December 31,,201,8

A regional public education plan is completed for

implementation by municipalities by April 27,2018

Develop a draft Regional Concept Of Operations

model by December 3t,2OI8

Results from the regional hazard risk and vulnerability

assessment are shared with critical infrastructure

stakeholders in the Capital region to inform their

emergency management and business continuity

plans by November 30,20t8

A process for engagement with First Nations on REMP

is clarified by December 3L,2018

L9 Annual Business Plan is approved by October 5,

18

2019-2020 REMP Financial Plan is approved by

October 5,2Ot8

Coordinate 12 LGEPAC and 4 REPAC meetings by

December 20,2078

REMP Communications Plan is implemented by March

,30,2078

20

20

Continue to explore and expand the

regional partnership network to

enhance sharing of information

At least one face to face meeting with other regional

emergency management partnerships is held by

November 30, 2018
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Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

BETWEEN:

. District of Central Saanich

. City of Colwood

. Township of Esquimalt

. District of Highlands

' City of Langford

' District of Metchosin
. District of North Saanich
r District of Oak Bay
. District of Saanich

Esquimalt Nation
Pacheedaht First Nation
Pauquachin First Nation
Scia'new First Nation
Songhees Nation

r District of Sooke
. Town of Sidney
. City of Victoria
. Town of View Royal
. Capital Regional District on behalf of Juan

De Fuca ElectoralArea, Salt Spring lsland
Electoral Area and Southern Gulf lslands
ElectoralArea

T'Sou-ke Nation
Tsartlip First Nation
Tsawout First Nation
Tseycum First Nation

AND:

AND:

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN lN RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, as represented by

the Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General (herein referred to as the "Province")

WHEREAS:

a) Events of Regional Emergency Significance can occur that cross municipal, electoral area or First

Nation boundaries or have impacts or demand for response beyond the capacity of one

municipality, one electoral area or one First Nation to respond;

b) Events of Regional Emergency Significance can occur that are cross-jurisdictional in nature or

require a coordinated multi-jurisdictional, multi-agency response;

c) The Parties each acknowledge that the interests of all persons living within their jurisdiction are

best served by a coordinated response and regional collaboration during Events of Regional

Emergency Significa nce; and

d) The Parties wish to enter into this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") in order to build

upon existing working relationships and to facilitate collaboration, decision making, and

information-sharing between the Parties during Events of Regional Emergency Significance.

THEREFORE

a) The Parties agree to establish a Regional Concept of Operations for Events of Regional

Emergency Significance in the Capital Region; and
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Memorandum of Understanding

RegÍonal Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

b) The Parties agree to train and exercise the Regional Concept of Operations every two years,

under the coordination of the Regional Emergency Management Partnership or any one of the

Parties.

ARTICLE 1: INTERPRETATION

For the purposes of this MOU:

L,L "Emergency" is a present or imminent event or circumstance that:

is caused by accident, fire, explosion, technical failure or the forces of nature, and

requires prompt coordination of action or special regulation of persons or property to protect

the health, safety or welfare of a person, or persons, or to limit damage to property.

¡
I

L.2 "Emergency Management" describes the systems and processes for preventing and mitigating,

preparing for, and responding to, and recovery from emergencies and disasters.

1.3 "Event of Regional Emergency Significance" is a major event that has (or has the potential to

have) an extraordinary levelof risk to lives, property, environment, social and/or economic well being

across jurisdictional boundaries in the region, which could require one or more of the following:
. Non-routine levels of coordination
. Sharing of situational awareness information
¡ Joint decision making
. Prioritizingresources
. Allocating of resources
. Response by multiple stakeholders (localgovernment, First Nations, agencies etc)

L.4 "First Nations" means the Esquimalt Nation, Pacheedaht First Nation, Pauquachin First Nation,

Scia'new First Nation, Songhees Nation, T'Sou-ke Nation, Tsartlip First Nation, Tsawout First Nation and

Tseycum First Nation.

1".5 "Parties" means all parties to this MOU, and "Party" means one of them as the context may

require.

L.6 "Regional Concept of Operations" is an emergency response framework to expedite decision

making on regional issues, share information and cooperate during an event of regional significance,

attached as Schedule 'A', as amended from time to time by mutual written agreement duly executed by

the Parties to this Agreement.

L.7 "Regional Emergency Management Partnership" is the partnership established pursuant to the

March 2016 memorandum of understanding between the Province of British Columbia and the Capital

Regional District to lead and coordinate emergency management planning in the Capital Region.

Prepared by the Regional Emergency Management Partnership Page 2 of 8



Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Regíon

1.8 "Capital Region" or "Regional" is the broad geographical area within the Capital Regional

District and First Nations traditional territories that may be, but is not limited to, distinguished by

physical characteristícs, administrative boundaries, government, religion, language, or artificial features

1.9 "Sub Region" is a subset of the Region that may be, but is not limited to, distinguished by

physical characteristics, administrative boundaries, government, religion, language or artificial features

ARTICIE 2: APPLICATION OF GOVERNING AGREEMENTS AND LEGISLATIONS

2.L Nothing in this MOU shall be interpreted as limiting in any way the jurisdiction, authority and

fulfillment of responsibilities of:

a) The Minister and Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General in respect to Emergency

management under the British Columbia Emergency Progrom Act, R.S.B.C.1996, c. 1-LL, and

Regulations or any other Acts or Regulations;

b) Municipalities and electoral areas in the Capital Regional District in respect to emergency

management under British Columbia's Emergency Progrom Act, LocolGovernmenf Act, R.S.B.C.

2OL5, c.1, and Regulations or any other Acts or Regulations; or,

c) First Nations in respect to emergency management under the Federal Emergency Monagement

Acf, S.C. 2OO7, c.15.

ARTICLE 3: PURPOSE

3.1 The Parties wish to implement the Regional Concept of Operations to guide emergency

response in the Capital Region.

3.2 The Parties recognize the value of and will seek opportunities for First Nations part¡cipation and

input into the continuing development of the Regional Concept of Operations.

3.3 This MOU will guide the Parties in their efforts to collaborate during Events of Regional

Emergency Significance based on the following principles:

1) Respect local autonomy
. Local Authorities will remain the lead authority and maintain their autonomy with regards to

emergencies within their jurisdictions

2) Utilize existing structures
. The Regional Concept of Operations is based on the integration of existing agencies and

authorities who play a role in planning, responding, and recovering from regional

emergencies. The Regional Concept of Operations does not include the creation of any new

regional emergency response function, organization, or facility.

3) Utilize existing resources
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Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

. The Regional Concept of Operations utilizes existing resources and facilities to the greatest

extent possible and recognizes that in regional emergencies additíonal resources may be

required

4) Pro-active leadership

'The Regional Concept of Operations is built on pro-act¡ve leadership aimed at identifying

regional issues and clarifying roles, responsibilities and protocols prior to any regional

emergency

5) Scalable, flexible and layered approach
. The Regional Conccpt of Opcrations is scalablc, flexiblc, and involves layers of authority and

responsibility that reflect current structure (Note: The Regional Concept of Operations does

not create new layers of authority)

6) Collaborative decision making
. The Regional Concept of Operations uses collaborative decision making and is consensus

based

3.4 The Parties agree to collaborate to achieve the following common objectives:

a) Engage senior level decision makers (e.g. local government Chief Administrative Officers) within

the Capital Region in emergency management to enhance understanding and responsiveness in

Events of Regional Emergency Significance.

b) Utilize the Regional Concept of Operations during Events of Regional Emergency Significance to

address:

i. decision making on regional issues

ii. enhanceregionalsituationawareness

iii. regional priority setting

iv. expedite resource sharing

v. joint public messaging

c) lmprove regional emergency management ¡n the Capital Region through continued and

increased regional cooperation during Events of Regional Emergency Significance while

recognizing the benefits within and beyond the Capital Region.

3.5 This MOU:

is not legally binding or enforceable; and

does not affect any aboriginal right, title or interest of First Nations; and

a)

b)

ARTICIE 4: COMMUNICATION

4.L External communications by the Parties with other levels of government, the media, and other

entities, corporations or individuals will be consistent with protocols established by the Parties or their

respective orga n izatio ns.
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Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

4.2 The Parties agree to work together to develop public announcements and other messaging

related to this MOU.

ART¡CIE 5: EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

5.L This MOU is effectíve on the date that it is fully executed by each, District of Central Saanich,

City of Colwood, Township of Esquimalt, District of Highlands, City of Langford, District of Metchosin,

District of North Saanich, District of Oak Bay, District of Saanich, District of Sooke, Town of Sidney, City

of Victoria, Town of View Royal, Capital Regional District on behalf of Juan De Fuca Electoral Area, Salt

Spring lsland Electoral Area and Southern Gulf lslands Electoral Area, and the Province on the date of
signing.

5.2 This MOU may be amended by written agreement of all the Parties to this MOU.

5.3 A Party wishing to withdraw from this MOU must provide each Party with written notice at least

six months in advance of the withdrawal date.

5.4 The MOU will remain in effect until terminated or amended in accordance with this Agreement.

5.5 The Parties will review this MOU as required or upon the request of any Party.

5.6 Any party may terminate this MOU for any reason by giving at least L2 months prior written
notice to all other parties.

5.7 Nothing in this MOU shall be construed to fetter the legislative discretion of any Party within

their respective areas of jurisdiction or, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, to oblige any

Party to adopt or prevent any Party from adopting any bylaw or resolution.

ARTICLE 6: SIGNATORIES

6.L The Parties'authorized representatives have executed this MOU on the dates indicated below:

Chief Administrative Officer, District of Central Saanich Date

Chief Administrative Officer, City of Colwood Date
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Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

Chief Administrative Officer, Township of Esquimalt Date

Chief Administrative Officer, District of Highlands Date

Chief Administrative Officer, City of Langford Date

Chief Administrative Officer, District of Metchosin Date:

Chief Administrative Officer, District of North Saanich Date

Chief Administrative Officer, District of Oak Bay Date

Chief Administrative Officer, District of Saanich Date:

Chief Administrative Officer, District of Sooke Date

Chief Administrative Officer, Town of Sidney Date
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Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

Chief Administrative Officer, City of Victoria Date:

Chief Administrative Officer, Town of View Royal Date:

Chief Adminístrative Officer, Capital Regional District on behalf
of Juan De Fuca ElectoralArea, Salt Spring lsland ElectoralArea
and Southern Gulf lslands Electoral Area

Band Administrator, Esquimalt Nation

Band Administrator, Pacheedaht First Nation

Band Administrator, Pauquachin First Nation

Band Administrator, Scia'new F¡rst Nation

Band Administrator, Songhees Nation

Band Administrator, T'Sou-ke Nation

Band Administrator, Tsartlip First Nation

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date:

Date

Date:

Prepared by the Regional Emergency Management Partnership
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Memorandum of Understanding

Regional Concept of Operations for Emergency Response in the Capital Region

Band Administrator, Tsawout First Nation Date

Band Administrator, Tseycum First Nation Date

Deputy Minister, Emergency Management Br¡tish Columbia Date
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ll¿
TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJEGT:

TO\ilN OF SIDNEY
REPORT TO COUNCIL

MAYOR AND COUNCIL

Randy Humble, Ghief Administrative Officer

July 3, 2019 FILE NO.:

REMOVAL OF PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER -9821TH|RD STREET (TOWN
PARKTNG LOT)

PURPOSE:

To provide for Council's review and consideration the obligation for the Town to contribute financially to
the removal of the existing Pad Mounted Transformer (PMT) that is situated in the northeast corner of
the Town's parking lot at 9821 Third Street. ln addition to the removal of the PMT, there is a necessity
to establish a new hydro connection service to the Stones Throw condominium building.

BACKGROUND:

ln 200412005, the Town approved a Development Permit to allow for construction of the Stones Throw
building fronting Second Street. At some point, during the construction period, the Town permitted the
developer of the project and BC Hydro to situate a PMT, to provide an electrical service connection to
the building, on the Town's parking lot property. ln doing so, however, permission was provided without
the granting of a necessary easement, statutory right-of-way, or any other land interest that would permit
either the Strata Corporation or BC Hydro to maíntain the PMT in that location. Unfortunately, this was
a clear oversight by both BC Hydro and the Town of Sidney, as the lack of a formalized easement,
registered on the Title of the property creates a legal circumstance by which the current or future property
owner can require the PMT encumbrance on the lands to be removed. Furthermore, staff can find no
written record regarding the circumstances by which this allowance was made. Nor does BC Hydro have
a written record of permission being granted. lt is noted that, typically, the placement of a PMT, servicing
a new building will be located on the actual property that it is servicing. Staff speculate that the reason
for allowing the PMT to be situated on the adjoining Town property, as opposed to the Stones Throw
property, was due to lack of available space resulting from significant building lot coverage and the desire
to not have it prominently visible as viewed from Second Street.

Fire Hall Developments Ltd. (FHD) has an unconditional contract to purchase the property at 9821 Third
Street from the Town of Sidney and will complete the purchase on August 1,2019. Contained within the
Purchase and Sale Agreement is a clear acknowledgement that BC Hydro maintains a kiosk (PMT)
located in the northeast corner of the property, and releases the Town of any claim in connection with
current placement of the kiosk.

FHD has made it clear to Stones Throw strata and BC Hydro that the PMT needs to be removed from its
current location as its current siting negatively impedes the approved future development of the property.
FHD is, however, willing to work with the various parties to ensure a timely and financially affordable
outcome. Through their own volition, FHD has reached out to both BC Hydro and Stones Throw strata,
to discuss the PMT's removal and alternative electrical service. ln particular, FHD has committed to
providing future easements or statutory right-of-way agreements, in favour of BC Hydro, that will be
deemed necessary in order to accommodate an electrical connection to the Stones Throw building.
Furthermore, FHD has engaged their own civil engineer, at their cost, to develop a cost effective design
solution that is acceptable to BC Hydro and meets their standards (refer to Attachment).



Removal of Pad Mounted Transformer -9821 Third Street Paoe2

DISCUSSION:

Given that both the Town and BC Hydro are responsible for the PMT being situated on the parking lot
property, without any necessary legal allowances, it is the view of the CAO that the Town and BC Hydro
should therefore be responsible for sharing equally in the cost of rectifying the matter. Another party that
may be deemed partially responsible is the original developer of the Stones Throw building.
Unfortunately, it may be a challenge to prove their level of responsibility and likely is not legally poss¡ble
to require a financial contribution from them. The only other alternative would be to require the Stones
Throw strata to partially fund the PMT's removal and replacement service, but again, it is the opinion of
the CAO that this would likely be considered overly punitive and obviously not popular with the building's
residents.

The CAO and Senior Manager of Current Planning attended a meeting with the involved parties (Town,
BC Hydro, FHD, and Stones Throw strata) on May 28th to discuss the PMT and potential options to
address the matter. At the meeting an agreed upon design solution was established, including how the
works would be undertaken. BC Hydro then followed up with the provision of a cost estimate to complete
the project. The estimated total cost of the project is $54,180. The CAO has suggested to BC Hydro, to
which they have agreed in principle, that they be responsible for 50% of the project cost with the Town
being responsible for the remaining 50%. This would be subject to a formal project cost sharing
agreement between the parties (Town, BC Hydro and FHD).

lf the funding is approved, it is anticipated that the project construction will commence in early August,
following the demolition of the Fire Hall building. The first phase of works will be undertaken by the
developer's contractors - this will involve trenching along the north side of the Stones Throw building and
incorporating a concrete encased conduit that will connect with the existing PMT on Second Street and
a new below-grade junction box that will be located adjacent to the northwest corner of the Stones Throw
building on what will be FHD property; thus the necessity for the granting of required easement / statutory
right-of-way. lt is the desire of BC Hydro that the granting of these property allowances occur prior to the
land transfer on August 1't.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS :

The Town's contribution would be half of the total project cost which estimated to be $54,180.
Accordingly, the Town's portion would equate to $27,090 + GST. lt is recommended that the Town's
portion be allocated from the proceeds of the land sale.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

L That $27,090, from proceeds of the sale of the Fire Hall / Parking Lot, be allocated for the Town's
50% portion of the costs associated with the removal of the Pad Mounted Transformer that is
situated on the current parking lot at 9821 Third Street; and

2. That any required agreements / easements associated with this project be executed by the Mayor
and CAO.

Respectfully submitted,

Randy Humble
Chief Adm inistrative Officer

Attachment Service Connection Engineering Design
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TOWN OF SIDNEY
REPORT TO COUNCIL

MAYOR AND COUNCIL

Bruce DeMaere, Manager of Engineering

July 2,2019

GALARAN ROAD SIDEWALK

FILE NO.:

\Ià
TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

PURPOSE

To provide Council with the results of the Public Engagement Event concerning pedestrian
improvements on Galaran Road.

BACKGROUND

As a result of the West Side Local Area Plan (WSLAP) initiative, Council approved a 2018
budget for the construction of a concrete sidewalk along the east side of Galaran Road. A
number of design challenges prevented the project from advancing to construction. To go
forward with the sidewalk project, staff presented three options for Council's consideration in a
December 3, 2018 report (copy attached). Following Council's direction, a community
engagement meeting was carried out to gather public feedback on the proposed Galaran
sidewalk project.

DISCUSSION

The Town sent notices to west side properties (over 400 mail outs), posted information on the
Town's website and social media, and placed a print advertisement in the Peninsula News
Review inviting the public to attend the Galaran Road Sidewalk Project Update, open house and
presentation. The public engagement event, which was held at the Mary Winspear Centre on
March 19, 2019, saw 18 Sidney property owners sign. The open house included display boards
providing information on the options and project background. Council, Planning, and
Engineering staff engaged and answered questions from the attendees. A presentation followed
the open house portion of the event. Residents were asked to choose their preferred option by
placing a marker on one of the display board. Residents unable to attend the public event could
submit comments and select their preferred option through a project page on the Town's
website.

The three options from the December 3'd staff report that were presented at the public event and
posted on the Galaran Project Page were:

1. Delay the sidewalk project until 2023 and tie it in with the road reconstruction. This would
allow the sidewalk to be completed with the road works taking advantage of the
"economy of scale" by combining the two projects.

2. Construct a smaller portion of the sidewalk and rebuild the same section of road in 2020,
costing an estimated $340,000. The remaining sidewalk would be constructed with the
road works in 2023.

3. Construct a temporary asphalt sidewalk in 2020. The temporary sidewalk would be
removed with the 2023 road construction works. Thís would cost approximately $80,000.

The above estimated costs differ from the December 3,2018 staff report as they are based on
more detailed information prepared for the public consultation.
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All three options included relocation of the community mail box (CMB) in 2019 to the east side
of Galaran Road, between Skylark Lane and Jahn Place, as illustrated on Figure 1 (attached).

The results f rom the public consultation are summ arized in Table 1 .

Table 1

The relocation of the two CMB's has been approved by Canada Post. The proposed CMB site
would include a paved apron for vehicles to pull off the road and a white fog line marking the
extent of the traveled lane. This white line on the east side of the street could be extended the
full length of Galaran Road to better define a shoulder for pedestrians.

Relocating the CMB's and the road line marking can be funded by the 2019 capital budget item
for the Galaran sidewalk.

RECOMMENDATION:

That staff be directed to:
1. complete the detail design drawings for the Galaran Road improvements, locating the

sidewalk at the back side of the proposed curb and include the sidewalk construction
with the proposed road works scheduled Íor 2Q23;

2. proceed with relocating the existing two Community Mail Boxes on Galaran Road to the
east side of the street; and

3. paint a white fog line on the east side of Galaran Road, from Jahn Place to Mills Roads
West.

Respectf ully submitted, I concur, I concur,

';3Øln*
Bruce DeMaere
Manager of Engineering

a
enn Clary
irector of Engineering

Randy Humble
Chief Administrative Officer

Vote Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Open House I 3 4
Website proiect paqe 1 1

Total 10 3 5



TO\ryN OF SIDNEY
REPORT TO COUNCIL

TO: Mayor and Councíl

FROM: Mike van der Linden, Manager of Engineering & Environmental Services

DATE: December 3, 2018 FILE:

SUBJECT: GALARAN SIDEWALKCONSTRUCTION PROJECT

PURPOSE:

To provide Council with an update on the status of this project.

DISCUSSION:

As a result of the West Side Local Area Plan (WSLAP) initiative, Council approved a 2018
budget for the construction of a concrete sidewalk along the east side of Galaran Road, as
shown in red below-

Town staff proceeded with the survey work and design of this project and encountered a
number of challenges that have prevented this project from advancing to the construction
phase.

Galaran Road is scheduled in 2023 for repaving and concrete curb and gutters in the current
lnfrastructure Replacement Plan. ln addition to this, the WSLAP has identifíed a sidewalk along
the east side of Galaran Road with a boulevard area between the road and the sidewalk. As



Galaran S¡dewalk Construction Project Page 2
Fìeoort to Council Dôcêmber 3. 2018
part of the design process, staff have prepared a design location and grade for the new
sidewalk that will dovetail in with the proposed road works Íor 2023 without requiring the
removal and replacement of all the sidewalk. The end result is that the sidewalk design creates
grade and access issues into a couple of fronting properties, drainage concerns, and conflicts
with BC Hydro utility poles, street trees and a planned watermain replacement scheduled for
2022. Overcoming these íssues for a standalone sidewalk will increase the project cost to well
beyond the budgeted $300,000.

Staff are able to economically overcome these project challenges if the sidewalk construction is
delayed until 2023 so that the sidewalk can be constructed with the proposed road and curb
works. Also, if the sidewalk were to be relocated to the back of the new curb without a boulevard
strÍp, grade and access issues, drainage, BC Hydro pole, and tree and watermain conflicts are
also minimized. ïhe delay of the sidewalk construction until 2023 may also see portions of this
project being funded by developers as frontage improvements for their developments.

Options that Councíl may wish to consider are as follows;

Delay the sidewalk project until2023 and tie it in with the road reconstruction. This would
allow the sidewalk to be completed with the road works, taking advantage of the
"economy of scale" by combining the two projects.
Construct a smaller portion of the project with the $300,000 budget and fund the
remaining sidewalk to be constructed with the road works in 2023.
Construct a very economical and sacrificial asphalt sidewalk destined to be removed
with the 2023 road construction works. This would be in the $50,000 range.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That staff be directed to finalize the project design drawings locating the sidewalk at the back
side of the proposed curb and to include the sidewalk construction with the proposed road
works scheduled tor 2A23.

Respectf ully submitted,

a

o

a

Mike van der Linden
Manager of Engineering & Environmental Services

I concur,

Randy Humble
Chief Adm inístrative Off icer

I concur,

Lr¿,
Tim Tanton, MPA, P. Eng.
Director of Development Seruices,
Engineering, Parks & Works



2098

!

I

i
ÐRÊIíAY

SKYLARK LANE

I

N

I

l

i

I

I

i

!

$
PROPOSED WHITE

I

E

a-
2095

I

(

I

Ì

l

i_i
CMB LOCATION

ô
oÉ
z
ú,
5
(,

ó I

t,

i.

li

t.

i.

i.

I

l.

'1_

:096 2t02

,/

H

JAHN PLACE

F¡GURE 1

#
Town of Sidney

GALARAN ROAD

RELOCATION OF CMB'S

June 26, 2019

M

MILLS RDRD WEST

{
7S

PROJECT AREA

AVE WEST

o
É
z
Éf
o

SKYLARK LN

JAHN PL

WHITE



t\¿

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

TOWN OF SIDNEY
REPORT TO COUNCIL

MAYOR AND COUNCIL

Bruce DeMaere, Manager Of Engineering

July 2, 2019 FILE NO.

EIGHTH STREET TO BEVAN AVENUE PATHWAY

5330-20

PURPOSE:

To advance the replacement and upgrade of the Eighth Street to Bevan Avenue Pathway to
2019.

DISCUSSION:

The replacement of the pathway connecting Eighth Street to Bevan Avenue - to the east of the
new employee parking lot, see figure below - was included in the financial plan for 2021.

It was somewhat unclear at budget time whether some pathway improvements could be
accommodated in the budgets for either the CSB or the Employee Parking Lot project.
Furthermore, the project would have been difficult to design without knowing the exact layout of
the parking lot and offsite works along Eighth Street, which were associated with the CSB.

Now that those two projects are complete, it is evident that the work to improve the pathway
cannot wait until 2021, or even next year. Due to the drainage design of the Employee Parking
Lot, there is a drop-off between the Lot and the pathway; this must be addressed for safety
reasons. ln addition, the built standard of the Eighth Street improvements and the Parking Lot
make the existing pathway look sub-standard. Finishing off this section of the Town is highly
desirable.
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It has also become evident that the scope of the pathway improvement must change from a
simple resurfacing to a more complete rebuild. Elevating the path, improving the drainage, and
improving the transition between the pathway and the Parking Lot are also being recommended.
As a result, the estimated project budget of $40,000 must be increased to $70,000 based on the
consultants current cost estimate.

FINANCIAL IM PLICATIONS:

This capital project must be advanced in the financial plan from 2021 lo this year, with the
budget level enhanced to allow for a more complete rebuild to the same standard as adjacent
Town projects. Funding for the project should be from the Land Sale Reserve.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Eighth Street to Bevan Avenue Pathway project be added to the 2019 Capital budget,
with a budget of $70,000 with funding from the Land Sale Reserve.

Respectfully submitted, I concur, I concur,

Bruce DeMaere
Manager of Engineering

Jenn Clary
Director of Engin

Randy Humble
Chief Administrative Off icer
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Natu reTra ilsSociety. com

To: 13 Municipalities, CRD, ten First Nations, Provincial and Federal Ridings
CC: Relevant Parks, Trails andlor Land-Use Departments

Subject: Invitation to July I I Trail Opening and Request for lætter of Support

June2l,2019
S-tç"\

Dear Mayor and Council, Chair and Directors, Chief and Council, MLAs and MPs

The Nature Trails Societv (NTS) has a big vision to connect existing regional wilderness trails and
partner with all levels of government to establish and maintain a 20O-kilometre multi-use trail network
for walkers, hikers, runners, cyclists, horseback riders and orienteers on southern Vancouver Island.
The NTS is an independent society that undertakes to:

o Develop, support and connect a sustainable multi-use trail network through collaboration with
land owners/managers, governments, Indigenous communities and the broader community;

o Provide expertise and education to facilitate contributions to a world-class trail network on
Vancouver Island; and,

. Support connecting communities, sustainable land stewardship, economic development, and
physical and mental health.

Invitation to Grand Opening of o'Playground and Skirt Trails"

The NTS is inviting all elected ofïicials in the Greater Victoria region and government staff
representatives to attend a new trail opening in the City of Langford. It was developed in concert with
developer Bear Mountain Resort, consisting of 1.7 kilometres of multi-use trails on Bear Mountain.
NTS planned, resourced and constructed it and it has now been transferred to the City of Langford
(who provides user liability insurance). The NST has proposed to maintain the trails.

Timing: July ll; l5:00-18:00
Location: Nicklaus Playground on Nicklaus Drive; Bear Mountain
Links to map and photo of location
RSVP : info@,NatureTrailsSoc iety.com

We acknowledge the history of this location as being misaligned with Indigenous rights and title to the
territory and understand if our Indigenous partners decline to attend.

Aclministration -Finance
IT

ffineering
Parks

c
Fire DePt

Comments:
¿¡ç..rr:ç'.
3..o*.r*)o\åo^"
rR^^-..år- L.f\..r"ê



Reque$ for Letter of Support

The NTS provides expertise to facilitate contributions to a world-class trail network in the Greater
Victoria area. We have an active Board of Directors, a full-time paid Executive Director, project
contacts and large network of volunteers, including connections with over 2,000 members of our
partner organizations listed in the footnotel.

The NTS advantage is that we connect existins trail networks of multiple iurisdictions, formally
enhancing their value, as is already informally practiced by adventurous trail users (e.g., cyclo-cross,
ultra-marathoners, backcountry horseback riders), enhancing the health and well-being of our
communities, and making our region a world-class destination and choice for amenity-focused real
estate invqstors. NTS does not replace the parks and trails work ofjurisdictions, but rather is able to
partnet withtþem for new priorities. NTS can quickly mobilize planning, construction and maintenance
crews in alignment with labour requirements, ensure compatibility with mixed or shared uses, build
trails to a world-class standard (Whistler Trail Standards), provide mapping as needed, reduce the need
for informâl (and sometimes unsafe) trails, ensure insurance is providèd and provide maintenance. We
constructed the Electric Avenue Trail on Provincial Crown Land near Thetis Lake.

We are seeking a letter of support for an upcoming proposal to the BC Real Estate Foundation to
support sustainable multi-use trail development. The submission deadline is September 5, and thus
we would appreciate receiving contact information for the appropriate staff person within your
government organization who can facilitate such a letter. Please send us the contact information by July
15,2Ol9 to: andrewpape@shaw.ca and cc: info@NatureTrailsSociet]¡.com. We will send the draft
proposal to the contact for your consideration.

Our proposalto the BC Real Estate Foundation will focus on the planning and stakeholder engagement
aspects of a 2O0-kilometre wilderness trail network over the long-term with an aim to connect key trails
systems in parks such as Sooke Hills Wilderness, the Great Trail, Goldstream, Thetis, Mount Work,
Francis King, Gowlland Tod, Colquitzllnterurban, Elk/Beaver, John Dean and Gulf Islands National,
plus any existing or emerging trail networks of Indigenous communities. In the short-term, we will
propose construction of at least one connector trail in one or more of the circled areas in the concept
map below. We refer to this emerging trail development as the "Heart of the Hills"; to be developed in
concert with land owners, neighbourhood stakeholders, Indigenous communities (traditional land-use),
government departments and user groups.

We hope you can join us at the upcoming trail opening and provide a letter of support for our funding
proposal.

Sincerely,

Andrew Pape-Salmon
Director, Southern Vancouver Island Nature Trails Society
andrewpaoe@.shaw.ca
Tel:250-592-7017

I Including: Citizen Canine, South Island Disc Golf Society, Sooke Bike Club, South Island Mountain Bike Society,
Vancouver Island Spine Trail Association, Prairie Inn Harriers, Tripleshot Cycling Club, Outdoor Club of Victoria, power
To Be, and Coastline Endurance Running, along with development partners such as City of Langford and MEC.



Figure I - "Heart of the Hills" Wilderness Trai I Gonnectors
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Notes:
o Existing formal and informal trails are depicted on the map; not a complete inventory.
¡ The circles illustrate key connections sought - between Gowlland Tod, Goldstream/lVlount

Finlayson, Thetis Lake, Francis King and the Colquitz systems, subject to identification of
suitable right-of-way and agreement with land owners.

o An informal Mount Work-Thetis connector is already established, depicted on the map.
o As a first step, the NTS seeks to consult applicable local governments and BC Parks on their

respective trails/parks plans for the aforementioned parks.
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TO:

FROM:

TOWN OF SIDNEY

Report to Council

Mayor and Council
Corey Newcomb, Senior Manager of Long Range Planning
Yazmin Hernandez, Municipal Planner

July 3, 2019 FILE NO.: O12S-2ODATE:

SUBJECT Overview of Proposed Cannabis Bylaws and Policy Framework

PURPOSE:

Ïhe purpose of this report is to provide Council with an overview of the proposed bylaws and policy to
regulate recreational cannabis in Sidney and the proposed public consultation approach in advance of
the public hearing on the bylaw.

BACKGROUND:

At the June 10,2019 regular Council meeting, Council considered a number of options related to the
legalization of the retail sale, production and distribution of cannabis in Sidney. Following their
deliberations, council directed staff to proceed with the following approach:

1. That staff bring forward a bylaw to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2015:
a. to allow the retail sale of recreationalcannabis within the Downtown Sidney Cl zone

(Commercial), excluding busrnesses fronting onto Sidney Avenue, James White
Boulevard and on the streets south of Bevan Avenue;

b. to allow the commercial processing and commercial distribution of cannabis in the
West Sidney Ml zone (lndustrial);

c. to exclude the commercial growing of cannabis in Sidney; and
d. to exclude the processing, distribution and retail sale of cannabis edible products in

Sidney;
2. That staff prepare a draft policy for Councit's consideration that would guide the

consideration of recreational cannabis licence applications in Sidney;
3. That staff prepare an amendment to Land Use Procedures Bytaw No.í380 to include an

application fee for cannabis- related business licence apptications;
4. That staff review and if required bring forward amendments to Business Licence Bylaw No.

2119 and Municipal Ticket lnformation Bylaw No. 1975 to ensure that these bylaws are
consistent with the regulation of cannabis within the Town of Sidney; and

5. That staff bring fonward, when the bylaw is presented for Council's consideration, a ptan for
communication on public awareness of the process for these bytaw and poticy changes,
including the opporfunities for the public to submit their feedback in writing, online and at
Council meetings.

Following the Council meeting, staff proceeded with preparing the necessary bylaws, policy and public
consultation approach.

ln addition to establishing a regulatory process for approval of a cannabis retail licence, both the
proposed policy and fee bylaw also establish a process and fees for liquor licence applications. Although
Town staff and Council have considered liquor licence applications in the past, there has been no formal
policy or fees associated with this work. The Town has previously absorbed the costs associated with
these applications, including the costs for public notification.
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DISGUSSION:

1. Bylaw No. 2174 (Zoninq Bylaw Amendment No. 38)

This bylaw amendment effectively legalizes the retail sale of recreational cannabis as well as the value-
added processing of cannabis products within Sidney. lt makes the following amendments to Zoning
Bylaw No. 2015:

1. Removes the prohibition on the "retail sale, production, or distribution of recreational cannabis"
in Sidney and replaces it with a prohibition on the "cultivation or production of Cannabis or
Medical Cannabis" with the exception of plants permitted for personal use. This revised
prohibition is intended to preserve valuable and limited industrial land while allowing value-
added processing of cannabis products (i.e. manufacturing of creams, oils, etc.).

2. Adds definitions for Cannabis, Cannabis Retail and Cannabis Processing.

3. Adds "Cannabis Retail" as a conditional permitted use to the C1 (Downtown Commercial) Zone,
with the condition that Cannabis Retail is not permitted within premises having a main or
principal entrance opening on to Sidney Avenue or James White Boulevard and is not permitted
on any property south of the centerline of Bevan Avenue.

4. Adds "Cannabis Processing" as a conditional permitted use to the M1 (lndustrial) Zone, with the
condition that Cannabis Processing shall be conducted entirely within a building and may not
produce any fumes, odors, smoke or dust that is detectable outside of a building.

5. lncludes a prohibition on "the processing, distribution and retail sale of cannabis edible products"
in Sidney. However, staff recommend that Council remove this section of the bylaw prior to
giving it first reading, unless it is Council's intention to continue prohibiting the sale of edibles
beyond federal and provincial legalization. Edibles are currently illegal in Canada and as a result
a municipal bylaw prohibiting them is unnecessary; enforcement of the edibles prohibition would
be undertaken by the LCRB and police regardless of a municipal bylaw. The only reason to
include a prohibition on edibles in Bylaw No.2174isif Council intends to continue to prohibit
them even after they become legal at senior government levels (the Federal Government has
indicated that some edible products are expected to become available in late 2019). lf Council
intends to allow the sale of edibles as they become legal federally, the most efficient course of
action is to remove this section of Bylaw No. 2174 prior to considering first reading.

Staff stress that any cannabis retail business wanting to operate in Sidney must still have their
application considered by Council; a public consultation process and Council resolution would be
necessary for a cannabis retail business to receive their provincial licence. However, a cannabis
processing business in the M1 (lndustrial) zone would be able to operate as per federal requirements
without Council approval; a business licence is also required in both cases (issued by staff).

2. Liquor & Cannabis Licensinq Policv

The proposed policy, "DV-015 - Liquor & Cannabis Licensing" (attached as Appendix A,) establishes a
formal process for both staff and Council to follow when receiving, processing and providing comments
and recommendations on both liquor and cannabis licence application referrals from the LCRB. Some
key aspects of the policy include:

¡ ïhe establishment of criteria for the intake of an application referred to the Town by the LCRB.
. Clear procedures and timelines for the processing of an application, and specific criteria for both

staff and Council to consider in evaluating the application.
o Establishment of a process for public consultation on applications and reference to the specific

form of response required by the LCRB.
r Establishment of more specific guidelines related to retail cannabis applications; specifically,

criteria for evaluating the proposed appearance, location and context of a proposed cannabis
retail store.

The policy will be brought forward for consideration and possible adoption by Council following the
public hearing on Bylaw No.2174.

\\PC-11 O\Common\_Town\DEVELOPMENT SERVICES\Planning\Projects\Cannabis legislation\2019 07 03 - Report to Council - Cannabis
Bylaw Overview and Public Consultation.docx
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3. Bylaw No. 2175 (Cannabis and Liquor Licensing Fee Bvlaw)

Although the Council resolution directs staff to bring forward a bylaw to amend the Land Use Procedures
Bylaw No. 1380 to implement a fee structure for cannabis-related applications, further investigation by
staff resulted in the decision to bring forward a separate fee bylaw for two reasons:

1. Land Use Procedures Bylaw No. 1380 is currently specific to only planning and land use
applications and references the Local Government Act for its authority. The ability for
municipalities to charge a fee for cannabis-related applications resides in the Cannabis Control
and Licensing Act. Rather than make significant changes to Bylaw No. 1380, staff believe a
separate bylaw is more appropriate.

2. The Town does not currently charge a fee for liquor licence-related applications and creating a
separate fee bylaw for both of these related categories of application types would be more
efficient than significant amendments to Bylaw No. 1380. The amount of staff time and cost to
process cannabis and liquor licence applications is expected to be similar.

Bylaw No. 2175 sets the fees for both cannabis and liquor applications as follows:

a) $l OO.OO for a staff assessment of a licence application (i.e. Building Official determination of
maximum occupancy load);

b) $250.00 for a Council assessment of a licence application for a change to an existing licence
or for a special occasion licence (i.e. request to change hours of operation);

c) $450.00 for a Council assessment of a licence application for a new licence;
d) ln addition to the fees required in (b) and (c) above, a deposit of $1,500.00 for the Town's

costs for public notification as part of the public consultation process required by the Act or
requested by Council to complete the Council's assessment of a licence application.

4. Review of Ancillary Bylaws

Staff have reviewed both Busrness Licence Bylaw No. 2119and MunicipalTicket lnformation Bylaw No.
1975 and have determined that no amendments to these bylaws are required at this time. Staff do not
anticipate any additional business licence requirements for cannabis businesses and do not see the
need for a different business licence fee structure at this time. Cost recovery for the initial provincial
licence referralwill be covered under Bylaw No.2175 discussed above.

As noted in the previous staff report related to cannabis regulation, the Provincial Government has
included significant enforcement powers within the Cannabis Control and Licensing AcL Any
enforcement issues related to the retailing of cannabis products (i.e. the sale of unapproved product)
would fall under the jurisdiction of the LCRB and not the Town of Sidney. As a result, what the Town
would be responsible for enforcing are issues commonly encountered with any business, such as non-
conforming signage, operating without a business licence or operating contrary to permitted uses in the
Zoning Bylaw. These enforcement categories already exist in the MTI Bylaw.

5. Public Enqaqement Process

Following Council giving Bylaw No.2174 first and second reading, staff will undertake the following
public engagemenVinformation process:

1. Develop a dedicated page on Sidney's website for cannabis-related information. This page will
detailthe background, status and proposed approach to cannabis within the community, as well
as provide detailed information on dates for Council decision making (i.e. public hearing, etc.)
This webpage would also be used to provide the public with information on future liquor and
cannabis related applications received by the Town if the bylaw amendments are adopted.

2. lnclude an informational article in the July 2019 issue of Town Talk. Due to the schedule for Town
Talk, this article has already been finalized and provides only general information. However it
does direct readers to the following webpage: www.sidney.calcannabis in order to allow
residents to get updates and information on the proposed changes.

\\PC-11O\Common\_Town\DEVELOPMENT SERVICES\Planning\Projects\Cannabis legislation\2O19 07 03 - Report to Council - Cannabis
Bylaw Overview and Public Consultation.docx
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3. Social Media: staff will begin a series of social media posts providing general background
information, as well as specific information regarding key decision points/dates for the proposed
cannabis bylaw and policy. Each post will also refer to the Town's webpage where more detailed
information will be available.

4. Newspaper advertisements: Staff propose a series of three newspaper advertisements, one
informational and two statutory (as required by the Local Government Act to advertise for the
public hearing). The first advertisement will be to provide general information on what is
proposed, and the second and third advertisement will provide specific bylaw and public hearing
information.

5. ln addition to newspaper advertisements, staff propose to send letters providing an overview of
the proposed changes and requesting comment from the following organizations:

. School District No. 63
o Sidney Downtown Business lmprovement Area Society
. Saanich Peninsula Chamber of Commerce
o lsland Health
. The District of North Saanich
¡ Victoria lnternational Airport Authority

All public communications noted above will include contact information for staff so that the public may
obtain additional information, submit questions or provide comments. All comments related to the
proposed bylaw will be collected and summarized for Council's consideration prior to the public hearing.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

That this repoft be received for information.

Respectf ully submitted, Respectf ully submitted, I concur,

Yøyvrrn l)nrnârràez Ø
Yazmin Hernandez, MCIP RPP
Municipal Planner

Corey
Seníor

MCIP RPP
r of Long

Humble, MCIP, RPP
Chief Adm inistrative Off icer

Range Planning

Attachments:
Appendix A: Liquor & Cannabis Licence Policy DV-O15

F:\_Town\DEVELOPMENT SERVlCES\Planning\Prolects\Cannabis legislation\2O19 07 03 - Report to Council - Cannabis Bylaw Overview
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TITLE:
LIOUOR & CANNABIS LICENSING

Tvpe: Council X Administrative
Approved Ref: DV-015
Amended: Paqe: 1 of 4

TOWN OF SIDNEY POLICY AND PROCEDURES

PURPOSE:
The purpose of this policy is to establish process and procedures for the Town of Sidney to
follow when responding the provincial license referrals received from the Province of British
Columbia's Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB).

POLICY:
I. APPLICATION PROCEDURE

i. Application lntake

All applicants shall submit to the Town the following documents and pay the associated fees
and deposits. An appointment is required to submit an application, and only complete
applications will be accepted. Complete applications must contain the following information:

. Copy of a complete LCRB application form
¡ Recent title search (less than 30 days)
. Copy of any charges on title
. Company Search (if property owner and/or applicant(s) are a company name)
. All liquor related license applications must also include:

o Letter to Mayor & Council generally outlining the proposal
o Person capacity analysis of the premises
o Existing and proposed hours of operation/liquor service of the establishment

All cannabis retail license applications must also include:
o Letter to Mayor and Council - The letter must outline whether the applicant is

aware of any potential negative impacts the proposed cannabis retail store
may have on the community/adjacent properties and any efforts to mitigate
said impacts.

o Proposed hours of service
o Site plan showing entrances, exits, accessory buildings or structures, garbage

enclosures and delivery areas
o Colour Building Elevations
o Signage Plan

a

a Proof of payment of all applicable application fees & deposits

ii. Fees & deposits

Fees required for the review of all LCRB applications are outlined in Bylaw No.2175, as
amended from time to time.
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iii. Processing time

Once a complete liquor related license application is received the Town of Sidney will sign
the applicant's LCRB application, initiating a 90-day period to gather public input in
accordance with Section 71 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulations.

The Town of Sidney is required to contact the LCRB in writing in any of the following
casesl

. lf more than 90 days are required to provide comment.
¡ lf the applicant refuses to provide the Town with the information needed to be able

to consider the application.
o lf the Town of Sidney opts out from providing comment, or is the applicant.

iv. Referral Process

Upon receipt of a complete application, staff shall provide the local RCMP detachment
with a 15 day period for review and comment prior to preparing a report to Council.

v. Staff report

At the council meeting where the resolution is to be considered, staff shall present a
comprehensive report and draft resolution for Council's consideration. As required by
the LCRB, a Council resolution must provide information relevant to the following issues:

o lmpact on the community (including but not limited to traffic, noise, parking and
zoning) if the application is approved;

o Views of residents and a description of how they were gathered;
. Local government recommendations (including whether the application should

be approved) and associated rationale.

A staff report on a Liquor Primary & Liquor Primary Club License application must also
provide information relative to:

o The location, person capacity, and hours of liquor service of the establishment;
and

¡ lmpact on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment.

A staff report on a Cannabis Retail License application must also provide information
relative to:

o The location, person capacity, and hours of operation of the establishment;
. lmpact of noise on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment,

if the application is approved;
o Adherence of the storefront/exterior building modifications and signage plan with

the Town's Official Community Plan policies and applicable Development Permit
Area Guidelines; and,

o Proximity to sensitive sites (including schools, parks, playgrounds, childcare
facilities) and existing cannabis retail stores.

A staff report on an Amendment to an Existinq Food Primary License application must
also provide information on whether the application will result in the establishment
operating in a manner contrary to the primary purpose of the establishments, which is
the service of food.

A staff report on a Temporary Amendment (Event) to Liquor Licenses application must
include a draft recommendation in the form of objection or no objection and must
provide information relevant for Council's comment on the impact (including, but not
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limited to noise) on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment, if the
application is approved.

vi. Public Notification & Public lnput Session

ln the case of an application which requires public comment (e.9. a new Liquor Primary
/ Liquor Primary Club / Cannabis Retail License Application) the Town will give written
notice, at least 10 days prior to the date on which Council will consider the application,
to the owners as shown on the assessment roll as at the date of application for the
permit, and to any tenants in occupation, as at the date of the mailing or delivery of the
notice, of all parcels, any part of which is:
a) The subject of the application; or
b) Within 100 metres (328 feet) of the part of the land that is the subject of the
application

The Town shall advertise in 2 consecutive issues of a local newspaper, the last
publication to appear not less than 3 days and not more than 10 days before the date
Council is to consider the application. The advertisement shall advise the public of the
nature of the application and their opportunity to be heard by Council at a future
Council Meeting date.

On the date identified in the notice, Council will hear the applicant and any person
deemed to be affected or having an interest in the application.

vii. Council Resolutions

Resolutions passed by Council shall take the form required by the Province, as outlined
by the LCRB under Section 71 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulations and
Division 3 of the Cannabis Control and Licensing Act.

Council may pass a resolution based on a specific term or condition; however, prior to
doing this Council shall ensure that the term or condition is within the legislative
jurisdiction of the LCRB to impose or enforce.

Council's official resolution or comment on the application shall be forwarded to the
LCRB and the applicant. Staff shall also provide the LCRB and applicant with any
reports that are referenced in, or used to determine, the resolution/comment.

2. COUNCIL EVALUATION & APPROVAL GUIDELINES FOR CANNABIS RETAILERS

ln order to provide direction to the community regarding cannabis retail licensing in the Town of
Sidney, the following general guidelines are provided. All aspects of each application shall be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis with respect to the expected impact of the license on the
immediate area and the community as a whole.

i. Location

a. Council will only review applications for properties where cannabis retail is listed
as a permitted land use in Zoning Bylaw No. 2015.

b. When reviewing an application, Council will consider the impact the cannabis
retailer will have when they are located within 100 metres (328 feet) of other
cannabis retailers, liquor stores, child care facilities, daycares, educational
facilities, libraries, public recreation centres, public community centres, parks,
places of worship and other family-oriented facilities.
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c. Only one cannabis retailer will be permitted per lot.

Store/buildinq facade & treatment

a. The size of a cannabis retail store should be consistent with the nature of the
immediate area and the size of existing retail stores within the area.

b. The proposed retail store front must present an attractive, pedestrian-friendly
face to the street by providing multiple points of visual interaction through
doorways, clear windows and other pedestrian-oriented features that promote
activity and transparency.

c. Any addition or alteration to an existing storefront (including new signage) or the
construction of a new storefront to accommodate a cannabis retailer store must
meet any applicable development permit area guidelines as outlined in the
Town's Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 1920.

d. Signs should be integrated into the design of building façade, but must not
obscure windows, cornices or other architectural elements.

Community impact

a. Council will consider whether the proposed cannabis retail store complements or
improves conditions existing in the surrounding area.

b. Council will consider the input from property owners/occupiers of land within 100
metres (328 feet) of the proposed cannabis retail store, as well as, the input from
community members at large.

c. Council will consider the referral response and feedback from the local RCMP
detachment.

d. Council will take into account any specific measures identified by the applicant to
minimize or prevent any negative community impacts from occurring, including
but not limited to, efforts to prevent service to minors, minimize odours, prevent
smoking or cannabis consumption on or near the premises, property
maintenance and beautification programs designed to prevent unsightliness, etc.

Safety & security

a. The store façade, exterior and site layout should maximize safety and security by
adhering to the principles of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design
(cPïED).

IV



TOWN OF SIDNEY

BYLAW 2174

A BYLAW TO AMEND ZONING BYLAW NO. 2OI5

2

Ïhe Council of the Town of Sidney, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

This Bylaw may be cited as "Zoning Bylaw No. 201s, Amendment No. 38, Bylaw No.
2174".

Zoning Bylaw No. 2015 is amended as follows:

(a) By adding the following definitions in alphabetical order to Section 2, Definitions :

Cannabis: has the same meaning as in the CannabisAcf, S.C. 2018, chapter 16.

Cannabis Retail: The use of a building or part thereof for the retail sale of
Cannabis.

Cannabis Processing: The processing of raw cannabis plant material into value-
added and refined cannabis products for the purpose of wholesale distribution.

(b) By deleting Section 4.1.10.v and replacing it with the fottowing

The cultivation of cannabis, or any other form or method of producing
Cannabis, except that an individual residing within a dwelling unit may
cultivate up to a maximum of four (4) cannabis plants in that dwelling unit
or on the lot where that dwelling unit is situated, provided the plants are not
publicly visible, and for clarity, cannabis Processing does not alone qualify
as the production of cannabis.

(c) By adding a Section 4.1 .1O.vi, as follows

vi. The processing, distribution or retail sale of cannabis edible products.

(d) By adding "Cannabis Retail" as an additional row to Table 4.4.1 Permitted and
Conditional Uses Table: Commercial Zones and adding in that row under the "C1"
column the following: C Ø.4.25)

(e) By adding a new section to the bylaw as follows:

4.4.25 Conditional Use Regulations for Cannabis Retail
a. Cannabis Retail is not permitted within premises having a main or principal

entrance opening on to Sidney Avenue or James White Boulevard, or on
any property located south of the centerline of Bevan Avenue.

By adding "Cannabis Processing" as an additional rowto Taþle 4.5.1 Permitted
and Conditional Uses Table: lndustrial Zones and adding in that row under the
"M1" column the following: C (4.5.11)

V

(f)
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(g) By adding a new section to the bylaw as follows:

4.5.11 Conditional Use Regulations for Gannabis Process¡ng
a. Cannabis Processing shall be conducted entirely within a building and may

not produce any fumes, odors, smoke or dust that is detectable outside of
a building.

Read a first time the

Read a second time the

Public Hearing held the

Read a third time the

Ministry of Transportation & lnfrastructure approval the

Adopted the

MAYOR

day of

day of

day of

day of

day of

day of

,2019.

,2019.

,2019.

,2019.

,2019.

,2019.

CORPORATE OFFICER



Ir{bTOWN OF SIDNEY

BYLAW NO. 2175

A BYLAW TO ESTABLISH FEES TO RECOVER COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
ASSESSMENT OF CANNABIS AND LIQUOR LICENCE APPLICATIONS

WHEREAS Section 41 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Act permits a local government to
impose fees to recover the costs associated with providing comments and recommendations on
a liquor licence application; and,

WHEREAS Section 35 of the Cannabis Control and Licensing Act permits a local government to
impose fees to recover the costs associated with providing comments and recommendations on
a cannabis licence application;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Sidney, in open meeting assembled, enacts as
follows:

Citation

1. This bylaw may be cited as the "Town of Sidney Cannabis and Liquor Licensing Fee
Bylaw No. 2175".

lnterpretation

2. ln this Bylaw,

"Act" means either the Liquor Control and Licensing Act and its regulations or the
Cannabis Control and Licensing Act and its regulations, as applicable to the licence
application;

"assessment" means a Council assessment or a staff assessment;

"Council assessment" means a method used to conduct an assessment of a licence
application involving Council's taking into account related matters, commenting on,
making recommendations in connection with, and othenruise considering;

"Council" means the Council of the Town of Sidney;

"licence" has the same meaning as under the Act;

"licence application" means an application under the Act for:
a) the issuance, amendment, or renewal of a licence;
b) any other application in connection with which the Act allows or requires the Town's

assessment;

"staff assessment" means a method used to conduct an assessment of a licence
application involving undertaking a technical evaluation of a licence application by the
Town's officers or employees, but does not include any of the following matters:
a) reporting to Council;
b) a public consultation process;

"Town" means the Town of Sidney
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3.

Fees and Deposits

lf the Town will give comments and recommendations on an appl¡cation under section 38
of the Liquor Control and Licencing Act, or section 33 of the Cannabis Control and
Licencing Act, the appl¡cant shall pay the following fees to the Town:
a) $100.00 fee for a staff assessment of a licence application;
b) $250.00 in the case of an application to amend an existing licence or an appl¡cation

for a special occasion licence;
c) $450.00 in the case of an application for a new licence, other than a new special

occasion licence;
d) ln addition to the fees required in (b) and (c) above, the applicant shall pay the

Town's cost for public notification as part of the public consultation process
required by the Act or requested by the Council to complete the Council's
assessment of a licence appl¡cation, which costs shall be paid by the applicant first
providing a deposit of $1 ,500.00. lf the Town's actual cost is less than the amount
of the deposit, the difference shall be refunded to the applicant. lf the Town's actual
cost is greater, the applicant shall pay the difference.

Read a first time this

Read a second time this

Read a third time this

Adopted this

day of

day of

day of

day of

,2019.

,2019.

,2019.

,2019.

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER
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TOWN OF SIDNEY

NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION
The Council of the Town of Sidney is considering the issuance of a Development Variance Permit for 2355 Orchard
Avenue (property shown below in Figure 7). The proposed Development Variance Permit would vary the following
sections of Town of Sidney bylaws:

Zonlng Bylaw No.2015 Bylaw Requirement Propoeed
Section 5.2.4.b:

Maximum permitted first storey lot
coveraqe

3SYo
(89.9 m2)

41¿%
(106.2 m2)

lf approved, the above referenced Development Variance Permit would allow for a greater first storey lot coverage than
currently permitted in Zoning Bylaw No. 2015 in order to allow for the construction of a single-family dwelling.

The property which would be affected by this application is:

LegalAddress: Lot 1, Section 10, Range 4E, North Saanich District, Plan V|P84788

Civic Address: 2355 Orchard Avenue

The lands that are subject to the variance are shown as hatched on the plan below:

Figure 1

To view staff reports and plans online related to this development proposal, please go to vvww.sidney.ca then click on
"Development in Sidney"

Copies of all background documentation may be inspected during regular working hours of B:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.,
Monday to Friday (excluding statutory holidays)from June 27,2019 to Julv 8.2019 at the Sidney Town Hal|2440
Sidney Avenue, Sidney, BC. Further inquiries may be directed to the Development Services Department, telephone
250 -656-1 7 25 or by emai I at developmentservices@sid ney. ca.

Persons who believe that their property is affected by the above variance can provide written submissions no later
than 4:00 p.m. on Julv 8. 2019 to the Town of Sidney at2440 Sidney Avenue, Sidney, BC, VAL 1Y7 or by email at
developmentservices@sidney.ca. All submissions will be presented to Council during the meeting of July 8, 2019 which
commences at 7:00 p.m. All correspondence submitted will form part of the public record and may be published in a
meeting agenda.

Corporate Officer
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Mondav. June I 0 2019 Paqe 6

2019.25.293

2019.25.294

d. Advisory Planning Gommission - June 4,2019

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor S. Garnett, that Minutes of
the Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of June 4,2019, be received for information.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

M in utes contain recom mendation(s) regarding :

R.1 Development Permit Application No. DP100789 and Development Variance
Permit Application No DV100283 (2355 Orchard Avenue)
(To relax maximum lot coverage in order to construct a small lot, single-family
dwelling).

Moved by Councillor P. Wainwright, seconded by Councillor B. Fallot:
1. That the property owner submit revised architectural and landscape plans

addressing Development Permit Guidelines 19.3.3 (use of front yard
space), 19.3.5 (pedestrian-oriented streetscape), 19.3.7 (impact of
garage doors on street), 19.3.48 (additional parking spaces), and 19.3.49
(parking in the rear yard) by moving the garage to rear of the dwelling and
replacing the driveway area in the front with landscaping and outdoor
living space, to the satisfaction of the Senior Manager of Current
Planning;

2. That, following the receipt of revised plans, owners and tenants in
occupation of property within 75m (246ft) of the property at 2355 Orchard
Avenue be notified of Development Variance Permit Application No.
DV100283 (to relax maximum lot coverage) and that any written
correspondence received be fonivarded to Council at the time of
consideration of approval of the variance; and

3. That if Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance
Application No. DV100283, then Development Permit Application
No. DP100789 (to permit the construction of a small lot single-family
dwelling) be brought before Council for consideration of approval with the
following conditions:
a. That the property owner shall, prior to the issuance of Building

Permit, pay to the Town a deposit in the amount of 115% of the
estimated cost to complete the hard and soft landscaping for the
development,

b. That the property owner shall, prior to the issuance of Building
Permit, register a flood hazard covenant on the title of the
property referencing the submitted Engineer's report.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



I'lÀTOWN OF SIDNEY
NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION

The Council of the Town of Sidney is considering the issuance of a Development Variance Permit for 10326 Menagh
Place (propefty shown below in Figure l). The proposed Development Variance Permit would vary the following
sections of Town of Sidney bylaws:

lf approved, the above referenced Development Variance Permit would allow for a recently built accessory building in
the rear yard of the subject property to remain closer to the north interior side lot line than what is permitted by Zoning
Bylaw No. 2015. As shown above, both the roof eaves and building footprint project further into the required setbackõ
than is permitted, and therefore require a Development Variance Permit to remain in the present location.

The property which would be affected by this application is:

LegalAddress: Lot24, section 14, Range 3E, North saanich District, plan224g2

Civic Address: 10326 Menagh Place

The lands that are subject to the variance are shown as hatched on the plan below:

Figure 1

T9 view staff reports and plans online related to this development proposal, ptease go to www.sidney.ca then ctick on
" Development in Sidney"

Copies of all background documentation may be inspected during regular working hours of 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.,
Monday to Friday (excluding statutory holidays) from June 27. 2019 to Julv 8. 2019 at the Sidney Town Hall,2440
Sldney Avenue, Sidney, BC. Further inquiries may be directed to tfre Oevelopnrent Services Depártment, telephone
250 -656-1725 or by e ma il at developmentservices@sid ney. ca.

Persons who believe that their property is affected by the above variance can provide written submissions no later
than.4:00 p.m. on Julv 8.2019 to the Town of Sidney at2440 Sidney Avenue, Sidney, BC, VBL 1y7 or Oy'emaitat
developmentservices@sidney.ca. All submissions will be presented to Council during thé meeting of July a, Zót g wn¡cn
commences at 7:00 p.m. All correspondence submitted will form part of the public record and may be published in a
meeting agenda.

Corporate Officer

DV100284 (Circulated June 27 ,2019)

Zonlng Bylaw No.2015 Bylaw
Reoulremsnt Proposed

Section 5.1.6.a.ii: Maximum permitted projection of
eaves into a setback 0.6 metres 0.7 metres

(0.5 metres from propeftv line)

Section 5.1.9.a.iii: Minimum accessory building or
structure setback from any lot line 1.2 metres 0.8 metres
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NOTICE OF MOTION - SUPPORT FOR COMMUNITY RESILIENCY INVESTMENT PROGRAM'S STRATEGIC

WILDFIRE PREVENTION INITIATIVE

wHEREAS on February 25,2019 Councilconsidered an invitation from the District of Highlands to all
rnunicipalities within the Capítal Regional District (CRD), and the CRD, join in a co-application for grant
funding for the Community Resiliency lnvestment program's Strategic Wildfire Prevention lnitiative, and
decided to consider further feedback from Fire Chief Brett Mikkelsen on whether it was useful for
Sidney to be one of the municipalities to support the application,

WHEREAS in an email dated February 26,20L9 to Councillor Sara Duncan (included in Council agenda
package of April 23,zOLg) Chief Mikkelsen suggested that Sídney could support if North Saanich saw
value in the application,

WHEREAS on February 4,2019, the North Saanich Council had passed a motion to support the Strategic
Wildlife Prevention lnitiative and join in the co-application.

THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED that Council direct staff to write a letter to the Capital Regional District and
all member local governments indicating Council's interest in participating ín a co-application submitted
by the CRD on behalf of its members to UBCM's Community Resiliency lnvestment Program for the
development of a regional vegetation management strategy.



Parks and Environment Committee Meeting M¡nutes February 27,2019

7.2. 19-146

5. Committee Business, cont¡nued

5.1. I 9-1 91

5.2. 19-192

8. New Business

9. Motion to Close the Meeting

Motion with Notice from District of Highlands - Vegetation Management -
UBCM's Community Resiliency lnvestment Grant (February 14,2019)

L. Hutcheson advised that there will be a meeting with staff from service areas
in climate action, emergency services, watershed management, and parks
management, with invitations to representatives from municipalities and
electoral areas to participate in and move the initiative fonivard.

MOVED by Director Helps, SECONDED by Alternate Director Chambers,
Whereas the CRD Board Priorities include:
L Nurturing partnerships and effective governance, leveraging resources, and
extending its impact to more communities to achieve greater outcomes.
2. Working collaboratively to address multi-jurisdictional issues that impact the
wellbeing of the region's residents.
3. Exploring more comprehensive regional coordination of emergency services,
including an assessment of regional hazards, risks and vulnerabilities
And Whereas tree canopy death, wildfire risk, flood mitigation and carbon
sequestration are pressing issues in the CRD.
And Whereas UBGM's Communit¡r Resiliency lnvestment Program (2020 lntake)
offers 100 % funding of $100,000.00 per each participating local government and
First Nation to mitigate wildfire risk and allows flexibility for fuel and vegetation
management across all land designations, including First Nations land and
private land.
Therefore Be lt Resolved that CRD staff be directed to apply for UBGM's
Community Resiliency lnvestment Program Grant (2020 lntake) as a regional
project on behalf of interested local member governments and First Nations to
address tree canopy death with respect to fire risk, flood mitigation, and carbon
sequestration.
And further that:
l. The CRD convene a meeting of interested parties to develop the scope and
parameters for the grant application submission and that;
2. The GRD draws upon professionals working within related fields to help inform
and guide the development of the scope for the application.
CARRIED

MOVED by Director Seaton, SECONDED by Director Helps,
That Committee Business items 5.1. and 5.2. be deferred to the Special Parks and
Environment Committee meeting on March 6, 2019 at I130 pm.
CARRIED

Landfill Gas Utilization - Alternatives

Organics Processing - Regional Capacity

There was no new business.

Cap¡tal Regional Distr¡ct Page I Pr¡nted on 3/19/2019
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TOWN OF SIDNEY

D

Mayor: Cliff McNeil-Smith and Council
Town of Sidney, B.C.
244A Sidney Avenue
British Columbia VBL 1Y7

Dear Mayor;

Numerous citizens and myself use the pathway that parallels the
maintenance yard adjacent to the soccer/cricket field, lroquois Park
on a daily basis.

People, use this path to access the town businesses and professional
offices. Some have various degrees of mobility issues including the
use of walkers, canes, wheel chairs and mothers pushing strollers.

By appearance, it is evident, that scant attention has been paid to this
pathway. The asphalt is crumbling to loose gravel, which of course
reduces the ability to use mobility devices, including bicycles, A
citizen cleared the brush at the lroquois end afrer the heavy snow
falls. Access on bicycles or on foot was very much reduced by
flattened brush.

May I suggest that you and perhaps several councillors bring a wheel
chair and start your journey at the Ocean Avenue entrance?

No. ,1 \o

\

Kindg¡t regards, 7{3¿..or¿,4¿**=J
'Bfian Head

Copy: Bruce DeMaere, A.Sc.T or successor

CAO

Finânce
IT
Dev Services
Engineering
Parks _**_
Public Works -7
Fire Dept
RCMP

t\-.-*C\'
Gomments:
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2440 Sidney Avenue, Sidney, British €olumbia VBL 1Y7

Phone:250-656-1184 Fax:250-655-4508
Email:admin@sidney.ca Website:www.sidney.ca

9¿,*T

File no.5810-01
June 19,2019

Brian Head

-t

-

Ðear Mr. Head,

Re: Pathwav at lroquois Park

Thank-you for your recent letter to the Mayor and Town Councí|, I have been asked to respond.
The 2018 Parks Master Plan has identified the need to pave the pathways at lroquois Park. This
item will be brought to council as a capital project in the future"

ln the meantime, staff are considering short-term options to improve the access along this
pathway.

lf you have further questions or comments regarding the pathway at lroquois Park, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Best regards,

ln {*
Jenn Clary, P.Eng, PMP
Director of Engineering

Cc Bruce DeMaere, A.Sc.T, Manager of Engineering
Brian Robinson, Manager of Public Works and Parks



File No. *\c.2 - ot
Mayor

SCouncillori
cla

CAO
Adnrinisttation
Finance
IT
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Parks
Public Works
Fire
RCMP
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TOWN OF SIÞþ¡EV

Saanich Peninsula Folk and Fiddle Festival Society

1725 Shearwater Terrace

N. Saanich, BC V8L 5L4

June7,2019

Town of Sidney

2440 Sidney Avenue,
Sidney, tsC V8L 1L7

Attn: Mayor Cliff McNeil-Smith

Dear Mayor Smith,

As the last note of fabulous music from Folk'N Fiddle 2019 has dissipated, we are taking the time to reflect

on all the various individuals who contributed to a successful first year. It takes a community to put on an

event like this, and we are truly grateful for the immense support shown by our local community. From

sponsors and patrons to volunteers and attendees, this community has demonstrated what we originally

thought: the Festival is in the right place, with the right support, and at the right time to not only work, but

flourish.

At this time, I, on behalf of the Board of the Saanich Peninsula Folk and Fiddle Festival Society, would like

to extend our thanks to you for all that you have contributed to help us bring the best Folk 'N Fiddle Festival

to life. your donation of $1000 given to the Festival is sincerely appreciated and we hope you enjoyed the

outcome as much as our audiences and artists did. We enjoyed presenting free to the public concerts at the

Bandshell, the Airport, outside Quince and a'flash-mob' on Beacon Avenue. Local governments like yours

are what makes this community so special and allow us to put on fantastic community events like the

Icstivai. Äii ui wi-'icir nrakcs this such an atnazing place to iive and work.

We hope you join us in 2020 as we continue to grow the Folk 'N Fiddle Festival and bring world-class talent

to our community. tf you have any questions, or suggestions for next year, please do not hesitate to contact

me.

Thank you again!

Sincerely,

\ -).¡ tlt ,:/'.'

ii i ,.d :.'/.\4/

Bob de Wolff (President)

i t t 1 i t' tìli ¡lk nl ì ¿ I d I t'. t:tt
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SCHOOLS
Shaping Tomorrow Today

School t
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June 13, 2019

via email: colin.plant@saan¡ch.ca
Colín Plant, Chair
Capital Regional District
625 Fisgard Street, PO Box 1000
Victoria, BC V8W 256

Dear Mr. Plant:

The Board of Education, at their last public Board Meeting on May 28, passed the following motion:

"That the Board of Education lor School District 62 write a letter to the Choir of the
Copital Regionol Distríct in support of the work being done by the Victorio Family
Court Youth Justice Committee in our community."

We would like to bring to your attention that Mental.Health issues are dominating recent headlines, Police forces
and municipalities are concerned about the increased amount of policing time spent dealing with these issues on
the street and in the courts. Schools are also experiencing an upswing in issues relating to mental health, such as

anxiety, which can significantly impact student success and life chances.

Trustees from our Board of Education have attended the Victoria Family Court Youth Justice Committee meet¡ngs
for many years, and have found th¡s to be the one local venue where we can work together with Municipalities and
Service agencies to share best practice and information that can assist with this crisis.

We appreciate the value of the Victoria Family Court Youth Justice Committee and the work it has done, and
continues to do, to support some of the most vulnerable youth in our community by problem solving, education and
sharing best practice from different agencies.

Sincerely,

Ravi Parmar
Chair

School District 61; School District 63
AIICRD Municipalities

cc
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The Honourable Louis-Philippe Champagne
Minister of Infrastructure and Communities
House of Commons
Ottawa, ON K1A 046

June 1.4,2019

Dear Minister,

Congratulations for the Smart City Initiative ancl the exciting collaborations that were catalyzed
by the effort.

As you know, the team from southern Vancouver Island had a very competitive proposal
around transit that made it to the final round. We all cheered for the winning proposals from
lqaluit and Guelph.

I am hoping that you might be able to find some funds, before we go the polls, for some local
needs already being evaluated in your department

The municipality of Saanich has been in discussions with the fecleral government about
revamping the Saanich Commonwealth Place high performance sport program (HCP). This is
tlre legacy plogram and support for Fligh Performance athletes (water access, tacility access,

priority access etc.) out of the Commonwealth Games.

The municipality of Central Saanich has two proposals into the federal government. One is for
cost-sharinglor a critical improvement in highway infrastrucfure at an intersection known as

Keating Cross Road. The current on-ramp to the Patricia Bay Highway (provincial route 17) is a
one way access into the prevailing traffic. The exit from the Patricia Bay highway is the site of
many accidents, requiring crossing two lanes of fast-moving oncoming kaffic to fum off the
highway and onto Keating Cross-Road. There is a neecl for a fly-over. Federal support would be
very helpful. This project would be cost-shared with the municipality and the province.

Central Saanich also needs to upgrade the oldest sewage treatment plant in the district.

,#,,

Iì I i 7.1betlì.Nl,ryq p.r rl.gc.c.ì



The Brentwood Bay sewer upgrade is a major infrastructure priority. The existing facility could

experience a failure, causing serious contamination of the surrounding environment.

In August 2018, the municipality made an application under the "Green Infrastructure"
component of the Investing in Canada Infrastrucfure Programme. To date, they have not
received a response. The total cost of the project is fi7,137,472. The municipality requests of the

federal govemment $5,233,908 as a federal contribution.

In Sidney, there is a critical infrastrucfure need that is currently outside your departrnenf s

definition of infrastructure. Sidney has a major wharf at the end of the main street through
town. It is in need of very costly repairs. I would be grateful for any advice as to how Sidney

can access assistance.

Meanwhile, the whole region does need investments to improve transportation. Between the

SwartzBay Ferry terminal and the Victoria Intemational Airporf millions of people move

down the peninsula on a slow moving freeway to reach Victoria. We desperately need

investrnents in regional public transit.

Thank you so much for considering these requests'

Sincerely,

Elizabeth May, O.C.
Member of Parliament
Saanich-Gulf Islands
Leader of the Green Party of Canada

CC: Mayor Fred Haynes, District of Saanich
Mayor Ryan Windsor, District of Central Saanich

Mayor Cliff McNeil-Smith, Town of Sidney
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June 18,20L9

Mayor Cliff McNeil-Smith
Town of Sidney
2440 Sidney Avenue
Sidney, BC V8L 1Y7

Dear Mayor McNeil-Smith:

Re:20L9 Resolutions

Arjun Singh
UBCM President

Enclosure

UBCI 5
\

t

UBCM confirms receipt of the attached resolution(s) endorsed by your Council and
submitted directly to UBCM by the June 30 deadline.

The resolution(s) will be presented to the UBCM membership for their consideration at
the2079 UBCM Convention in September.

Please feel free to contact jamee ]ustason, Resolutions and Policy Analyst, if you have
any questions about this process.

Tel: 604.270.8226 ext. 1,00 Email: jjustason@ubcm.ca

Very Best Wishes,q-lZ
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Restoring Sustainable Provincial Library Funding Sidney
Levels

Whereas libraries in British Columbia are largely financed by levies paid by local governments, and where
Provincial library funding has remained virtually stagnant for-the past'30 yeãrs:

And whereas libraries in British Columbia provide open and equal public access to vital resources,
including the inte. rnet, public comp_uters, digital library tools and in-pdrson service from expert staff tó
provide opportunities for all British Columbians to access knowledge ánd information and incréase literacy
in our communities.and present informative programmes: including First Nations programmes and materiál
which advance public understanding and reconciliation:

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM strongly encourage the Government of British Columbia to give urgent
attention to funding. for BC public librarie_s by adding $20 million to the BC Provincial Budget Íor 202õ tor
allocation to public Iibraries throughout BC;

And be it further resolved that the Province be requested to ensure that BC Libraries will henceforth
receive Provincial Government financial support at a sustainable level in subsequent years following the
2020 Budget.

Convention Decision:
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To the Honourable Rob Fleming,

RE: Provincial Support for Libraries

At the Regular Council meeting of June 18, 2019, the District of Houston received correspondence from the
City of Victoria titled "Request for Provincial Support for Libraries" and dated May 29, 2019, At that time, the
District of Houston Council passed a resolution to support this provincial request.

The District of Houston Mayor and Council respectfully requests the Province of British Columbia's support
and consideration to increase support to restore Provincial funding for Libraries. Our Council strongly
advocates for the restoration of library funding to a level that reflects both inflationary cost increases since
2009 and the value of this system to the Province.

a

Honourable Rob Fleming
Ministry of Education
P.O. Box 9045 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC VBW 982
EDUC. Minister@gov. bc.ca

Sincerely, .,r .Á,
/ ,/\

l;(f .¡tll__\,'(t, +y' ., ,

Shane Brienen
Mayor

cc: PremierJohn Horgan premier@gov.bc.ca
MLA John Rustad, John. Rustad. MLA@leq. bc,ca
UBCM Member Municipalities

Attach correspondence'. City of VictorÌa "Provincial Support for Libraríes" dated May 29, 2019

3367 12th Street PO Bc¡x 370 Houston, BC VOJ 120 lT; 250,84.5,2238 lFr 250.846.3429lwww.houston.ea

Finance
IT

Parks
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i.|i4.ay 29,2019,

To The Union of Bdtish Columbia Municipalities,

I am writing on behalf of Victoria Cìty Council, requesling favourable consideration and resolutions of support to
restore Provincial support for libraries.

At the May 23,2019 Council Meeting, Council approved the following resolution

WI{EREAS VVHER_E,AS Librades arc a social justice equalizer that provide urúr¡ersal access to
information and learning materiais irrespective of income levels;

WHER-EAS libraries are now so much more than books, building community and a sense of inclusion;

WHEREAS restoring funding to libraries supports the BC Govenrment's agenda to elirninate poverty,
irnprove access to education, and address social justice in BC;

WHEREAS funding rates have been frozen since 2009 and ir flationary costs have increasingly been put
on municipal property tax payers which is a regressive approach to funding public libraries;

WHEREAS municipalities face downloading from upper levels of government and have few tools to r'âise

funds,

TIiEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council request the Mayor write to the Minister of Education, tåe
Premier, and all local MLAs strongly advocating for the restoration of library funcling to a level that
reflects both inflationâry cost increases since 2009 and the value of this systein to the Province.

BE IT FLIRTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be forwarded to other municipalities in the Capital
Regional Distdct and across BC requesting their favourable consideration.

We eagerþ look forward to your support on this matter

Sincerely,

Lisa Helps
Victoria Mayor

No.l Centennial Square Victoria British Columbia Canada V8\\/ 1P6
Telephone (250) 361-0200 Fax (250) 361-0348 Email mal,or@victorìa.ca
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Arts & Culture Support Service

625 Fisgard St., PO Box 1000

Victoria, BC VBW 256

T: 250.360-32'i5

www.crd.bc.ca

Fil¡

M¡ l.Mak¡ng a difference...together

June 20, 2019

Mayor I Council

Sidney Municipal Hall

2440 Sidney Ave.

Sidney, BC V8L 1Y7
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JUi\¡ 2 ¿t 

2019

TOWN OF SIDNEY

D

Dear Mayor I Council,

We are pleased to provide you with a copy of the 2018 Arts I Culture Progress Report, recently

published by the Capital Regional District (CRD) Arts Commission.

The report highlights how arts organizations are emerging as leaders in improving quality of life in the

region and building local economic development. The rep0rt offers a comprehensive look at progress

we've made since completing the Building our Arts Future strategic plan in 2016.

Highlights include:

. Every dollar invested by the CRD in arts generates an additional local return of 510.60.

. Operating grants supported 3579 jobs including full-time, part-time and temporary positions.

o The region as a whole accounts for 9.50/o of the total culture GDP in BC and B.3o/o of the BC

population. (STATISTICS CANADA, 201 6)

t 23010 of the public in the capital region report volunteering in the arts - the provincial average is

50/0. (CRD ARTS SERVICE GENERAL POPULATION SURVEY, 2016 IHILL STRATEGIES,20.13)

o 72010 of organizations that received a CRD arts grant premiered new, local work.

lf you would like fufther information, please contact the CRD Arts I Culture office

Kind regards,

Jen Nichols

Community 0utreach Coordinator

CRD Arts I Culture Support Service

250-360-3007

a rtsdevelopment@crd.bc.ca

Finance
IT
Dev Services

Parks

!qþl[c Works

RCMP
Comments:
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About Us
The Capital Regional District (CRD) is the regional government for 13 municipalities and three 
electoral areas on southern Vancouver Island and the Gulf Islands. The CRD works together to 
serve the public good and build a vibrant, livable and sustainable region. The Arts & Culture 
Support Service is one of over 200 services provided by the CRD. 

The CRD Arts & Culture Support Service is the regional arts funding body for not-for-profit 
organizations. CRD grants support exhibitions, performances, readings and programming by 
organizations for the benefit of residents and visitors. Through outreach, the Service fosters 
collaboration between arts organizations, funders and audiences.

Program Mission
The CRD Arts & Culture Support Service supports, promotes and celebrates the arts. 
 
Program Vision
The arts are central to life in our communities. 

The CRD Board acknowledges that the CRD 
operates within the Traditional Territories of 
Coast and Straits Salish and Nuu-chah-nulth 
peoples; and is committed to respectfully and 
appropriately engaging those First Nations 
communities in regional strategies and 
decision-making.

Arts Advisory Council
Taryn Craig
Bill Crook
Deborah Etsten
Carolyn Heiman
Michelle Heinz
Emmy Humber
Suzanne Ives
Bronwyn Mclean
Patti Sullivan
Diane Thorpe
Lara Tomaszewska
Joanna Verano

CRD Arts & Culture Staff
Heather Heywood
James Lam
Jennifer Nichols

Who We Are 
Arts Commission
Councillor Meagan Brame 
Esquimalt
Councillor Sharie Epp 
Metchosin
Wendy Gardner 
Southern Gulf Islands
Director Jeremy Loveday (Chair) 
Victoria
Councillor Tara Ney 
Oak Bay
Councillor Brenda Parkinson 
Sooke 
Councillor Colin Plant 
Saanich
Councillor Karel Roessingh 
Highlands
Councillor John Rogers 
View Royal

FeedtheArtsYYJ 
feedtheartsyyj 
crdartsdev

More Information
Learn more about arts funding:
www.crd.bc.ca/arts
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It is an honour to be the 
Chair of the CRD Arts 
Commission. Over the past 
three years that I’ve been a 
member of the Commission, 
I’ve seen an exciting 
acceleration in activities 
provided by the Arts & 
Culture Support Service. 
I commend our past 
Commission Chair, Colin 
Plant, and the other
Commissioners for 
championing arts and culture 
and beginning a new chapter 
in regional arts support.

We are now halfway 
through implementing the 
Building our Arts Future 
strategic plan. While 
developing the plan, we 
heard a need for more 
support for arts initiatives 
that offered greater diversity 
in programming to better 
represent our community. 
The Commission approved 
several actions to reduce 
barriers to accessing funding, 
address gaps in the service, 
and improve the capacity of 
arts organizations.

     I’ve seen 
an exciting 
acceleration 
in activities 
provided by 
CRD Arts & 
Culture. 

“
“

 In 2018 we added new funding programs and introduced 
community outreach initiatives to help reach groups that have 
been excluded or under-represented in arts funding programs. I 
encourage you to check out the details of these programs which 
we will share in the next few pages.

Increasing participation by municipalities and electoral 
areas in the Arts & Culture Support Service is integral to 
building a resilient arts sector. The Commission enthusiastically 
welcomed the Southern Gulf Islands as a new participant 
in 2018. This means that arts initiatives from Galiano, 
Mayne, North and South Pender Islands, Saturna, Piers and 
associated islands now have access to grants. All residents 
will further benefit from the unique arts and culture 
generated by these creative communities. We continue to 
seek full participation by all jurisdictions. 

In addition to providing rich artistic experiences and social 
benefits to citizens and communities, not-for-profit arts 
organizations continue to boost the local economy. We are 
seeing a $10.60 return for every dollar we invest in operating 
grant recipients. The region as a whole accounts for 9.5% of 
the total culture GDP in the province of BC.

There is still work to be done. The strategic plan noted the 
need for a shared understanding of the importance of key arts 
facilities. In our role as a convener we hope to play a part in 
this vital discussion. 

Our intention with this inaugural report is to help citizens 
learn more about the ways that regional arts and culture is 
building healthy, livable, vibrant communities. I look forward 
to seeing you at one of the thousands of affordable arts and 
culture events we support.

Jeremy Loveday, Chair, CRD Arts Commission

Message from 
the Chair 

CRD Arts & Culture Support Service Progress Report | 3



2018 was a remarkable year for the 
Arts & Culture Support Service. We 
held the Arts Champions Summit 
One Region – the Collaboration 
Effect, bringing together 140 
stakeholders from across the region 
to celebrate how the arts transcend 
and unite us across jurisdictional 
borders. With the help of many, we 
were able to take insights the public 
shared with us during that event and 
turn them into reality.

In 2018 the CRD launched two new pilot 
programs: Equity Grants and Incubator Grants. 
Through the Equity Grant program, we’re 
supporting organizations that have previously 
faced barriers to our funding. I’m particularly 
pleased that we had 11 applicants in the first 
year. Successful applicants are changing the way 
we think about art practices, and residents are 
experiencing a wider spectrum of work from a 
greater diversity of arts organizations.

The CRD introduced multi-year operating grant 
approval for eligible organizations. This initiative 
acknowledges and facilitates the sustainability of 
many organizations, reduces the administrative 
requirements of the annual application, and 
provides predictable support that encourages 
long-term planning. 

With increased outreach capacity and growing 
membership, we are now able to fully act on our 
mission to support, promote and celebrate the 
arts. We’re starting to see meaningful outcomes 
and are committed to long-term impacts.

This report has two purposes: to share 
our progress on the Building our Arts Future 
plan, and to show both the impact that arts 
and culture has in our communities and the 
important role it plays in supporting quality of 
life for residents.

Our sector is strong. We have an engaged 
community that champions the arts. I’m delighted 
to continue to work with members of the Arts 
Commission, Arts Advisory Council, CRD staff, our 
municipal roundtable and the many organizations, 
artists and members of the public who are 
committed to the transformative power of arts 
and culture to change and shape our world.

James Lam, Manager, CRD Arts & Culture

Foreword 

We are now able 
to fully act on 
our mission to 
support, promote 
and celebrate 
the arts.

“

“
IMPACT
HIGHLIGHTS

Arts and culture 
build livable, 
inclusive
communities.
730K+ 
attendees at 
funded events 
annually.

Arts and culture 
contributes to 
the regional 
economy.
There is a 
local return 
of $10.60 for 
every dollar 
invested

Our unique 
creative  
landscape 
expresses 
local identity.
72% of funded 
organizations 
created new,  
local work.

4 | CRD Arts & Culture Support Service Progress Report



What we did in 2018

$1.6M Multi-year Operating
$570K Annual Operating
$220K Project
$45K Equity
$5K Incubator

Program Funding

83 not-for-profit
organizations received a 
CRD Arts & Culture grant,   
20% more than 2017.

A total of $2.4M was 
distributed – an increase 
of 5% from 2017.

Nine jurisdictions 
participated in the 
service whereas six 
did not participate. 
One jurisdiction 
made a donation.

Number of Recipients

Participating Jurisdictions

Outreach Activities
9 info sessions 
with 39+ 
organizations

140 people 
attended the 
Arts Summit

3 social media 
channels: 2834 
total followers  

315K people live 
in jurisdictions 
that participate. 
Total population 
estimate: 413,406.

76%

2018 Programs Operating grants 
support organizations 
of regional significance 
whose mandate is 
public programming 
in the arts.

Project grants support 
arts organizations to 
produce or present one 
time, recurring, unique 
or developmental 
projects.

Incubator grants 
support organizations 
with access to startup 
funding or expertise 
that will help advance 
their practice.

Equity grants support 
arts initiatives by 
applicants from 
communities that are 
at-risk of exclusion.

1.6 570 220 45 5

CRD Arts & Culture Support Service Progress Report | 5

Impact Areas

Governance

Community 

Creativity

Inclusion

Economy



What impacts are we measuring?
In 2016 we asked residents to help build our arts future together and improve the way we deliver 
services. Now it’s time to find out what has changed. These impact areas reflect community priorities 
gathered through the Building our Arts Future engagement process. Here we share stories and  
metrics from our grant and outreach program databases. External data sources are listed on the 
Arts & Culture Support Service website in the Building our Arts Future section.

The topics in this report are pieces of a much larger arts ecosystem making an impact across the region. As this is the first Arts & Culture 
progress report, we do not have comparative data for new programs and impact areas. These will be built upon in future years.

Impact

6 | CRD Arts & Culture Support Service Progress Report

A thriving 
creative 
economy meets 
the needs of 
the arts sector

Arts funding 
contributes to 
an inclusive 
society

Arts and 
culture are 
central to 
life in our 
communities

Artists create a 
unique cultural 
landscape

Collaborative 
governance
benefits the 
arts sector

Community Creativity InclusionGovernance Economy
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There is one 
Arts Commission 
with a repre-
sentative from 
each participating 
jurisdiction.

Regional oversight of 
arts policies provides 
economies of scale with 
central administration 
and no duplication 
across jurisdictions.

The Pender Island Short 
Film Festival invites 
people of all ages and 
experience levels to share 
their stories in a 24-hour 
movie-making marathon 
and screening.

“One of the most 
rewarding aspects of the 
festival is the way in which 
digital media has become 
part of our everyday 
lives, and how easily and 
quickly the residents of 
the Southern Gulf Islands 
are able to share their art 
and stories,” says David 
Ohnona, festival director. 
“Our guest speakers have 
raised the bar of video 
production and storytelling 
in our mentorship 
programs. As a result, the 
films get better and better. 
Thanks to the CRD, we 
entertained our largest 
audience of filmmakers 
and film viewers at this 
year’s festival.” The grass-
roots festival celebrated 
its third year in 2018.GROUP 1

u Saanich
u Victoria
uOak Bay
u Esquimalt
u View Royal

WHAT WE HEARD FROM ARTS CHAMPIONS

GROUP 2
uMetchosin
uHighlands
u Sidney
(withdrew in 2018)
u Sooke
(joined 2019)
u Southern 

   Gulf Islands

One
Region

There is one 
Arts Advisory 
Council with 
12 volunteers 
that adjudicates 
regional arts 
funding.

There is one Arts 
& Culture Support 
Service office 
with three staff 
managing arts 
administration for 
nine jurisdictions.

The Arts & Culture Support Service provides funding to arts organizations 
with financial contributions from municipalities and electoral areas. There 
are two contribution levels for participants; Group 1 or Group 2.

The CRD convened the Arts Champions 
Summit: One Region – the Collaboration 
Effect in the spring of 2018. The celebratory 
event included a series of local speakers and 
facilitated discussions about issues in the arts 
sector. There was representation of residents 
from all participating jurisdictions and most 
non-participating areas. 

Collaborative governance
benefits the arts sector 
Encouraging municipalities to fully participate in the CRD 
Arts & Culture Support Service continues to be a priority for 
the Arts Commission. Full regional participation will increase 
efficiencies and community investments. This impact area is 
helping to bring more art to every part of the region. There 
are many reasons we are better together.

GOAL

The Southern Gulf Islands joined the Arts & 
Culture Support Service. The CRD hosted 
roundtable meetings to facilitate collaboration 
on the Arts Champions Summit.

WHAT 
WE DID 

Full participation through increased funding

Governance

CRD Arts & Culture Support Service Progress Report | 7

Progress to date

DONATION
uNorth Saanich 
donated $15,000  
in 2018.

         of 
financial 
contributions 
to the service is 
from Group 1.

98%

V a n c o u v e rVVVaaannncccooouuuvvveeerr
I s l a n ddI sss l aaannnddd

Juan de Fuca
Electoral Area

Saanich

Victoria 
Esquimalt

View Royal

Metchosin

Highlands

Sooke

Southern 
Gulf Islands

Oak Bay

PARTICIPANTS
in 2019



There is substantial evidence of 
a connection between arts and 
culture attendance and health 
and well-being. While difficult 
to provide evidence of a causal 
relationship, analysis shows a 
positive connection between 
participation in arts activities 
and health, volunteering and 
satisfaction with life. 
SOURCE: HILL STRATEGIES

93% OF THE 
PUBLIC IN THE 
CAPITAL REGION 
ATTEND ARTS EVENTS. 

93%93%

92% OF 
CANADIANS 
BELIEVE THAT ARTS 
AND CULTURE MAKE 
A COMMUNITY 
A BETTER PLACE 
TO LIVE.

 

90% OF 
CANADIANS SAY 
THAT PERFORMING 
ARTS FACILITIES ARE 
IMPORTANT TO 
QUALITY OF LIFE AND 
SENSE OF PRIDE.
SOURCE: CANADIAN ARTS 
PRESENTING ASSOCIATION 
(CAPACOA) / STRATEGIC MOVES

92%

90%

ARTS AND
CULTURE IN
COMMUNITIES

Arts Attendance
and Wellbeing

Benefits of Attending 

People who visit art galleries, 
music performances, theatres, 
cultural festivals and read 
books report better health 
and wellbeing.   

Arts and culture are central 
to life in our communities

Bringing the arts into our everyday lives fosters a 
greater sense of belonging and improved well-being. 
We know that nine out of 10 residents are interested 
or active in the arts and understand that the arts have 
a positive influence on communities. This impact area 
is intended to encourage people to participate in arts 
and culture, both as artists and audiences. 

GOAL

The CRD increased communication materials. 
The Arts Commission approved the re-launch of 
IDEA grants to encourage arts programming in 
non-arts mandated organizations (2019). 

WHAT 
WE DID 

Progress to date

Increase awareness & knowledge of regional arts

In 2018 there were 3,884 events and workshops produced by 
organizations receiving CRD grants. A 4% increase from 2017.

ATTENDEES AT CRD-FUNDED 
ARTS EVENTS IN 2017/18. 
(population 413K)

83% OF OPERATING 
GRANT RECIPIENTS 
PROGRAM FREE, 
PARTICIPATORY 
ACTIVITIES FOR 
THE PUBLIC.

40K+
HIGHEST TWITTER
IMPRESSIONS 
73% INCREASE 
FROM LAST YEAR.

2.4K
HIGHEST 
FACEBOOK 
POST REACH

SOCIAL MEDIA 
@FEEDTHEARTSYYJ

Community

8 | CRD Arts & Culture Support Service Progress Report
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MORE LIKELY 
TO VOLUNTEER

LOWER STRESS 
IN DAILY LIFE

STRONGER 
SATISFACTION 
WITH LIFE

GOOD MENTAL 
HEALTH

KNOWLEDGE OF 
NEIGHBOURS

BETTER GENERAL 
HEALTH



Benefits of Attending 
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23% OF THE 
PUBLIC IN THE 
CAPITAL REGION 
REPORTED 
VOLUNTEERING 
IN THE ARTS. 

Arts in the Park
The Greater Victoria 
Shakespeare Festival partners 
with the Township Community 
Arts Council to bring plays 
to Esquimalt. “We now have 
shows in Saxe Point Park 
in addition to the Saanich 
Camosun College site,” says 
artistic director Karen Lee 
Pickett. “We are reaching a 
new part of the region and 
new audiences. I think it may 
be the first time some people 
had seen theatre outdoors, we 
even had a dog run on stage 
one night! Our Macbeth stared 
the dog down until he turned 
around and ran off the stage.”

All Welcome 
The Victoria Arts Council 
encourages everyone to 
participate and welcomes 
artists in a variety of disciplines 
and levels. With a mandate to 
increase public awareness of 
arts and culture, they exhibit art 
around the region including public 
libraries and in the airport. 

MediaNet tripled their 
attendance in 2018.
They saw over 6,600 
annual attendees at their 
media arts programs. 

The India Mela promotes local cultural understanding with the 
help of 200 volunteers. The annual three-day event produced 
by the India Canada Cultural Association features hundreds 
of professional and emerging artists. Volunteer support is 
integral to Mela’s success, and also benefits the volunteers 
themselves. “Many past volunteers have expressed how 
the experience increased their general life satisfaction,” 
says president and volunteer coordinator Surjit Kaur Bedi. 
“I have a dedicated person who helps with photography; he 
always calls and make sure that he is on my list. Last year 
he brought his teenage daughter who spent lots of volunteer 
hours with children face painting and at the bouncy castle.”

Attendance at 
Media Arts EventsMargaret August performs a Raven 

dance at the opening of the VAC’s 
new gallery space.

Volunteers in the Region

ph
ot

os
: G

re
ate

r V
ict

or
ia 

Sh
ak

es
pe

are
 Fe

sti
va

l: L
ara

 Ei
ch

ho
rn

;  
Ind

ia 
M

ela
: T

ar
sa

m
 B

as
si,

 M
ed

iaN
et

 &
 VA

C; 
Kir

k S
ch

wa
rtz

 

Paul Wong collaborated with 
Jeffrey Chong on The Chinese 
Bone Collector sharing archival 
footage of the area at the Chinese 
Cemetery in Oak Bay.

Wendy Magahay plays Prospera in 
the Tempest at Saxe Point Park.
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The capital region is home to a remarkable variety 
of arts and cultural organizations with an ever wider 
range of offerings. Whether comedic, contemplative, 
sublime or shocking, the arts help us to make sense 
of our experiences. Through this impact area, we 
support the region’s unique cultural landscape.

24,800
ARTISTS IN BRITISH COLUMBIA  

BC has the highest number 
of artists per capita than any 
other province in Canada.
SOURCE: STATISTICS CANADA

Pacific Opera Victoria 
designs and builds 
costumes and sets 
from scratch for their 
original productions.

Intrepid Theatre 
launched BC’s first 
dedicated queer 
theatre festival, 
OUTstages, in 2015. 
Photo of local drag 
performer Vivian 
Vanderpuss & festival 
curator Sean Guist.

Open Space is one of 
the few organizations 
in Canada supporting 
an aboriginal curator 
position. Photo of 
interim curator, 
Lindsay Delaronde.

The number of artists in 
BC grew by 74% between 
1989 and 2013.
SOURCE: STATISTICS CANADA

Engaged Arts Sector
The many artists and not-for-profit organizations based 
here form a cultural landscape unique to the region.

One Incubator grant of $5,000 was distributed.

not-for-profit 
organizations 
were funded by 
the CRD Arts & 
Culture Support 
Service in 2018.

83

GOAL

The Arts Commission introduced the Incubator 
Grant program to support innovative practice. 
New community outreach activities were offered 
to build capacity within the arts community.

WHAT 
WE DID 

Progress to date

Sustained growth of the arts and arts organizations

The CRD hosted two free 
capacity-building events 
for arts organizations 
about marketing and 
audience development 
led by sector leaders.

Creativity

1989
1989

2013

2013
1989

2013

2013 2013
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72% created
new work

Organizations that received 
CRD arts grants premiered 
or created new local work.

Artists create a unique
cultural landscape
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Exhibiting Resilience 
Ground Zero Printmakers Society 
has an active membership but 
they struggled to keep up on 
the administrative side. “One 
thing we always face is that 
there are not enough hands to 
do the administrative work,” 
says Victoria Edgarr, Ground Zero 
instructor and co-director with 
Alain Costaz. Ground Zero is a 
creative hub for printmaking. 
Members produce etching, 
lithography, silkscreen, intaglio 
and more from their studio in 
Chinatown. “We saw a need 
to build in more not-for-profit 
expertise,” said Edgarr. Ground 
Zero successfully applied for 
a CRD Incubator Grant, which 
enabled them to improve 
their governance systems. 
They joined Volunteer Victoria, 
who facilitated a workshop 
on procedures, protocols, and 
internal communications. The 
printmakers then recruited a 
volunteer project manager 
to keep them on track. “The 
project manager is helping 
us organize an off-site exhibit 
showcasing the huge variety 
of work by our members – it 
is how we will celebrate our 
30-year anniversary in 2020,” 
says Edgarr. “It is nice to know 
that Alain and I are not doing 
this alone.”

Literary Adventures in 
the Highlands 
The Victoria Festival of Authors 
offered a new way to experience 
the region’s distinct geography 
with a Forest to Poet – Tree Walk 
workshop. The workshop was 
held at the Mary Lake Sanctuary 
with local authors giving readings 
and facilitating dialogue outdoors.

“For a region this size we 
have an exceptionally high 
number of people involved 
in the arts, especially 
musicians of high caliber, 
graciously willing to share 
their experience and passion 
through performance,” 
says Brian Wismath, the 
conductor of Civic Orchestra 
of Victoria, Linden Singers 
of Victoria, Victoria Choral 
Society, Victoria Conservatory 
of Music Chorale, and Vox 
Humana Chamber Choir. “The 
versatility and commitment 
of local musicians allow us 
to be creative, premiere new 
work and perform unique 
collaborations. The Civic 
Orchestra has played with 
internationally recognized 

A Commitment to Creativity
The membership of Ground Zero 
Printmakers reinvented their 
organization while continuing to 
practice an ancient art form.

professional musicians who choose Victoria as 
their base such as pianist, Shoko Inoue, bassist, 
Gary Karr, and guitarist, Alexander Dunn.”

The Civic Orchestra is made up of about 55 
classically trained musicians with different 
musical backgrounds. Together they perform 
a wide repertoire of orchestral music from 
standards to newly composed works. “One of 
our mandates is to provide an opportunity for 
musicians around the region to play. It’s a core 
component of what we do,” says Jon O’Riordan, 
president of the Civic Orchestra. “We also want 
to give people a chance to hear the music.”

The performances at Dave Dunnet 
Theatre in Oak Bay draw friends, families 
and fans from several municipalities. From 
the purposeful volunteers selling tickets 
and ushering people in the door, to the 
curious children plunked in theatre seats, 
a Civic Orchestra concert is a popular way 
to experience exquisite music in a friendly, 
accessible setting.
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The Forest to Poet Tree Walk featured 
authors Katerina Vermette, Yvonne 
Blomer, Beth Kope, Wendy Donawa, 
and Dan McIsaac. 
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Brian Wismath conducts the Civic Orchestra of Victoria at the Dave Dunnet Theatre in Oak Bay.



21 organizations 
applied to the 
Equity grant 
program. All met 
basic eligibility 
requirements. 
11 grants were 
distributed – a 
52% success rate.

Of the 11 successful applicants  
82% were accessing CRD Arts & 
Culture grants for the first time.

82%

$45K 

11
EQUITY 
GRANTS

The total amount of Equity funding distributed in 2018.

SPONSOR SOCIETY
To support arts 
groups unable to 
meet statutory 
requirements we 
created the ability to 
apply in collaboration 
with a not-for-profit 
sponsor society. 
45% of Equity grant 
recipients used the 
option to partner 
with a sponsor.

During the Building our Arts Future consultation, people 
asked for better ways to represent the diversity of 
artforms and art communities in the region. This impact 
area is about adjusting the way we provide services to 
foster a more inclusive region and diverse arts sector.

GOAL

The Arts Commission created a dedicated Equity 
Grant program. The adjudication committee was 
expanded to include a broader representation of 
people in the region.

WHAT 
WE DID 

Progress to date

Increase access and reduce barriers to participation

Reducing 
Barriers to 
Funding
The Equity grant 
application is 
different from our 
other program 
applications. We 
created options for 
self-identification 
and sponsorship to 
be inclusive of more 
people and arts 
practices.

SELF
IDENTIFICATION 
To put aside our 
own pre-conceptions 
we created a 
self-identification 
form. This gave arts 
groups the oppor-
tunity to self-define 
their art practice and 
community.

EQUITY FUNDING 
RECIPIENTS 2018 
u	Awkward Art Show 
Arts & Alzheimer’s 
Art by those with dementia. 

u	Concussion Dance 
Dance and theatre performance. 
u	Healing Drums
Drum making and singing.
u	Lived Experiences of 
People Who Use Drugs
Storytelling, artwork and photos.
u	Mediated Natures
Multi-media art creation about 
bats and their habitats.
p	Mixed-Abilities Dance 
Performance by dancers with 
diverse ways of moving.
u	Revitalizing Indigenous 
Arts & Culture Practice
Workshop on creating regalia 
and painting cedar paddles.
u	6th Annual Artists with 
Disabilities Showcase
Art by people with disabilities.
u	The Existence Project
Storytelling workshops for 
marginalized people and 
community members.
u	Traditional Drum Making   
Craft and painting workshop.
u	Women’s Ceramics Circle 
Ceramics by survivors of  
domestic abuse. ph
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FIRST TIME APPLICANTS

Inclusion

Arts funding contributes
to an inclusive society
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Karl Smith and Shirley Coon participate in the Oasis Society ‘Healing 
Drums’ program – a traditional circle for creating drums. 

Arts Groups Strengthen 
Community

       It started with just a 
few artists. Now we have 
over 100 submissions. 
 – Ami Gordon, Sixth Annual 
Disability Showcase

“
”

DISABILITY SHOWCASE 
Artists with disabilities from 
Southern Vancouver Island 
exhibit their visual art on 
the UN International Day for 
Persons with Disabilities. The 
Victoria Disability Resource 
Centre – a not-for-profit, 
run by and for persons with 
disabilities – coordinated 
the Sixth Annual Artists with 
Disabilities Showcase on 
December 3, 2018. “It started 
with just a few artists,” Ami 
Gordon, one of the showcase 
coordinators, told the Times 
Colonist. “Now we jury over 
100 submissions by nearly 40 
artists.” The showcase, held at 
the Flux Gallery on Fort Street, 
exhibited a range of the works 
from large scale prints and 
sculpture to video art and 
comic books. “We featured 
around 20 to 25 artists, and 
30 to 40 pieces,” says Gordon, 
who coordinates the show 
with Les Chan. “The centre 
encompasses all people with 
varying disabilities,” adds Chan, 
“creating an art show enables 
so many people to participate. 
It’s all about inclusion and for 
people to showcase their art, 
that’s what it’s all about!” 

MEDIATED NATURES 
Mediated Natures partnered 
with CFUV, a community 
radio station, to engage 
LGBTQIA2S+ people in sound 
art workshops. “We made 
bat detectors – a device that 
shifts the frequency of bat 
echolocation. They can be 
used to identify bats as part of 
nature conservation efforts,” 
says project lead Estraven 
Lupino-Smith. The sound art 
workshop integrated science 
research with art creation and 
brought together a commu-
nity of people that frequently 
experience rejection by 
families and society. “Crafting 
the devices helped create 
a safe space for artists to 
share stories and feel 
included – which is necessary 
to combat the discrimination 
that transgender and 
non-binary people face.”

HEALING DRUMS
“The Equity grant we received supported us in making 
drums – a rite of passage,” says Jenna Burke, Interim 
Executive Director of the Oasis Society, an Indigenous 
service provider working with individuals who have 
experiences with homelessness. “We were able to get 
materials and bring in the leadership of a local drum maker 
and First Nation Elder to pass on teachings and songs to 
our participants.” The Society created the Healing Drums 
program for vulnerable Indigenous people experiencing 
homelessness and those involved in street life. “What I 
loved so much about the day was the light-hearted feeling 
and support that was in the room,” says participant Kecia 
Larkin, “Music is so universal and has a way of healing. 
I knew I wanted to sing and now I have what I need to 
make it happen.”

Les Chan and Ami Gordon at the 
6th Annual Showcase of Artists  
with Disabilities.

Mediated Natures soundscape project 
presented at Metchosin Community 
Hall’s ‘Big Bat Bash’ celebration.
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91.6%
Total 
Revenues

8.4%
CRD 
Investment

$25M
GRANT RECIPIENTS

REVENUES

CRD operating 
grants provided  

3579  
JOBS FOR 
CULTURE 
WORKERS (2017).

Operating grant recipients 
generated $25 million in revenues 
of which CRD provided 8.4%.

GDP
Regional vs. Provincial
The capital region accounts 
for 9.5% of the total 
culture GDP in British 
Columbia and 8.3% of 
the provincial population.
SOURCE: STATISTICS CANADA

Total culture 
GDP in BC

$7.8B

9.5% The proportion 
of the provincial 
culture GDP 
contributed by 
the region.

$177M
Generated in GDP 
activity by arts and 
culture sector in the 
Greater Victoria region.
SOURCE: GREATER VICTORIA ARTS AND 
CULTURE SECTOR ECONOMIC ACTIVITY STUDY

JOBS
BC’s cultural 
workforce is 
growing faster 
than any other 
province. 
SOURCE: STATISTICS CANADA

10,567  
CULTURE JOBS 
IN BC. 
SOURCE:STATISTICS CANADA

1 in every 
109 Canadian 
workers 
is an artist. 
SOURCE: HILL STRATEGIES

Local arts organizations contribute to the regional 
economy. This is a benefit of public sector investment 
in the arts beyond the social and cultural ones. 
Behind the scenes, arts administrators balance 
complicated schedules with staffing and operational 
plans, often while facing financial uncertainty. 
They rely on public-sector funding to diversify budgets 
and provide jobs. The intention behind this impact 
area is to stimulate a healthy creative economy.

GOAL

The Arts Commission introduced multi-year 
operating grants. The multi-year funding cycle 
is intended to reduce administrative costs and 
help groups plan further ahead. 

WHAT 
WE DID 

Progress to date

Grant programs are responsive to community needs

10% 
Project 

87.7%
Operating

2.3% 
Equity & Incubator

GRANTS
DISTRIBUTION

$2.4M The total amount of arts and culture funding 
distributed by the CRD in 2018.

2018 CRD Investment

$2.1M

2017 Revenues of 
Funded Organizations

Economy

EVERY $1 INVESTED IN 
CRD ARTS AND CULTURE 
GRANTS GENERATES AN 
ADDITIONAL $10.60

=
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A thriving creative economy 
meets needs of the arts sector
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“Intrepid has slowly managed 
to build our operational 
stability,” says Intrepid 
Theatre’s Executive Director 
Heather Lindsay. “We now see 
about 24,000 attendees at our 
productions each year.”

Intrepid was founded to 
produce the Victoria Fringe 
Theatre Festival in 1986. Over 
30 years later, they have 
added UNO Fest, OUTstages, 
a presenting series, two 
community cabarets and two 
annual fundraisers to their 
production calendar. 

“We are able to employ 57 
seasonal and casual workers, 
and have five full-time staff,” 
says Lindsay. “Last year we paid 
275 artists and coordinated 
400 volunteers. Our staff 
live in different areas of the 
region including View Royal,  
Esquimalt and Victoria.” 

Returning Performance
 Last year we 

paid 275 artists 
and coordinated 
400 volunteers.

“
”The Society also runs the 

180-seat Metro Studio Theatre 
and the 50-seat Intrepid 
Theatre Club, providing two 
popular performance spaces 
for arts groups. 

“Public sector funding has 
been crucial to Intrepid’s 
long history of innovation, 
incremental growth and 
artistic achievement. When 
multi-year funding from the 
CRD became available we 
were thankful that we could 
become more strategic in our 
long term budgeting. This is 
a game changer.”

Pointe Tango’s Production of ‘Para Dos’ at the annual Fringe Theatre Festival.
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Community Investment
“We enrich lives through music and help 
communities thrive,” says The Victoria 
Conservatory of Music (VCM) CEO, Jane Butler 
McGregor. The VCM employs 159 staff and 
increased the number of paid artists from 
97 to 174 between 2016 and 2018. They see 
over 27,000 people attend their programs 
each year. “We believe music should be 
accessible to all. This would not be possible 
without financial support.”

Photo of Lexie Krakowski in the Spark to Flame concert in 
Alix Goolden Performance Hall courtesy VCM.

Art Works
The Art Gallery of Greater Victoria’s (AGGV) 
41 staff and 420 volunteers curate exhibitions, 
community days, performances and art tours 
for 100,000 attendees each year. They pay 
approximately $250,000 to artists in commis-
sions, fellowships and guest curator positions. 
They also offer professional development for 
cultural workers. Over the past 60 years the 
AGGV has grown to be the second largest 
public gallery in the province, in part, because 
of an annual operating grant through the CRD.

Kelly Richardson; The Erudition 2010; HD video with sound. 
Courtesy of the artist and Birch Contemporary
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Let’s Celebrate 
These organizations received funding through the Arts & Culture Support Service in 2018. 

ArtSea
Salish Sea Lantern Festival

Atomic Vaudeville

Broken Rhythms
Thyself / Internal Rhythms

Coastline Fiddle 
New Canadian Fiddle

AIDS Vancouver Island 
Lived Experiences of 
People Who Use Drugs

Aventa Ensemble 

CapriCCio Vocal Ensemble
Schubertiade 

Cridge Centre
Concussion Dance

Ancient Music Society of 
Victoria
The Evolution of Music

Ballet Victoria

CFUV 101.9 FM
Mediated Natures 

Deluge Contemporary Art 

arc.hive arts society
MAKESHIFT: Textiles in 
Contemporary Art Festival

Belfry Theatre

CineVic

Dance Victoria

Art Gallery of Greater 
Victoria

Blue Bridge Repertory 
Theatre
Swan Song & Other Farces

Civic Orchestra of Victoria
Concert with Accordion 
Soloists

Downtown Blanchard 
Advisory Committee  
Traditional Drum Making
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Early Music Society

Fifty Fifty Arts Collective 
Multi-disciplinary exhibits 

Greater Victoria Youth 
Orchestra

Integrate Art Society
Integrate Arts Festival

Eine Kleine Summer Music
Stefan Jackiw Trio

Flamenco de la Isla Society 
Victoria Flamenco Festival 

Ground Zero Printmaking 
Society

Intrepid Theatre 

Embrace Arts Foundation
Bloom

Garden City Electronic 
Music Society 
Wonderment

Hispanic Film Society 
Latin American & Spanish 
Film Festival

Kaleidoscope Theatre

Emily Carr String Quartet
Music in a Time of War

Greater Victoria 
Performing Arts Festival

Impulse Theatre Society 
The Soft Spaces

MediaNet

The Existence Project 
Storytelling and dialogue

Greater Victoria 
Shakespeare Society
 

India Canada Cultural Assn
India Mela

Ministry of Casual Living 
Exploring Place 

Grant programs: 

Operating Grant
Project Grant
Equity Grant
Incubator Grant



Oak Bay Community Artists
Bowker Creek Mural 

Puente Theatre

Story Theatre

Township Community 
Arts Council
Aeriosa

Victoria Children’s Choir

Oasis Society for Spiritual 
Health
Healing Drums

Raven Baroque 
Summer Celebrations

Suddenly Dance
26th Season

Via Choralis
Love Songs & Madrigals

Victoria Choral Society 
Magnificat & 
Adam’s Lament

Open Space Arts Society 

Sidney & Peninsula 
Literary Society
Literary Festival 

The Other Guys Theatre 
Company 
I Walked the Line

Victoria Arts Council

Victoria Conservatory of 
Music Presents

Pacific Opera Victoria

Sidney Concert Society
Duelling Pianos & 
Big Beethoven 

Theatre Inconnu

Victoria Baroque Players
Joy, Passion, Metamorphosis
& Collaboration

Victoria Disability 
Resource Centre 
Artists with Disabilities 
Showcase

Ptarmigan Arts Society
Pender Island Short 
Film Festival

Snafu Dance Theatre
Kitt & Jane 

Theatre SKAM

Victoria BC SKA Society 
Ska & Reggae Festival

Victoria Disability 
Resource Centre 
Mixed-Abilities Dance 
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Victoria Festival of Authors Victoria Jazz Society
 

Victoria Poetry Project
Victorious Voices Festival

Victoria Women’s 
Transition House  
Creativity for Healing

William Head on Stage 
The Crossroads, 
A Prison Cabaret

Victoria Film Festival 
 

Victoria Native Friendship
Centre Revitalizing 
Indigenous Arts & Culture 

Victoria Pretty 
Good Society
Pretty Good Not Bad

Viva Youth Voices Choir 
Winter Carols 

Xchanges Artists’ Gallery 

Victoria Gilbert & Sullivan 
Society 
The Mikado

Victoria Operatic Society
 

Victoria Summer Music 
Festival

Vox Humana 
Chamber Choir
The Salvage Men

Victoria Good News Choir 
All Ages Together in Song

Victoria Philharmonic 
Choir
Bach St. Matthew Passion

Victoria Symphony
 

We Rage We Weep 
Alzheimer’s Foundation 
Awkward Art Show

Photo Credits
Atomic Vaudeville Nathan Speller 
Art Gallery of Greater Victoria 
Colin Davison Aventa Ensemble 
Alexander Banck-Petersen 
Ballet BC Barbara Burns 
Belfry Theatre David Cooper 
Blue Bridge Repertory Theatre 
Jam Hamidi Broken Rhythms 
Hélène Cyr CapprCio Vocal 
Ensemble Catherine Allen Whale 

Concussion Dance Gillian Davidson 
CIvic Orchestra Jon-Mark Wiltshire 
Cridge Centre Gillian Davidson 
Early Music Society Irvin Rubincam 
Dance Victoria Sharen Bradford 
Embrace Arts Noah E. Miller 
Emily Carr String Quartet Jon-Mark 
Wiltshire The Existence Project 
Gillian Mansonhing Staples 
Flamenco de la Isla Amity Skala 
Garden City Electronic Music 
David Bodrug Greater Victoria 

Performing Arts Festival 
Hermilo Granados Greater Victoria 
Shakespeare Society Lara Eichhorn 
Greater Victoria Youth Orchestra 
Barb McDougall Hispanic Film 
Society Dan Russek Impulse 
Theatre Victoria Simpson India 
Canada Cultural Assn Tarsam Bassi 
Integrate Arts Camille O’Sullivan 
Intrepid Theatre Derek Ford 
Kaleidoscope Theatre Andrea Cross 
MediaNet Kirk Schwartz 

Ministry of Casual Living Doug 
Jarvis Pacific Opera Victoria David 
Cooper Ptarmigan Arts Society 
Rachel Lenkowski Puente Theatre 
Jam Hamidi Raven Baroque Peter 
Bruce SNAFU Theatre Jam Hamidi 
Theatre Inconnu Clayton Jevne 
Victoria Baroque Players Jon-Mark 
Wiltshire Victoria BC SKA Society 
Rob Porter Victoria Children’s Choir 
Carla Unger Victoria Disability 
Resource Centre Michelle Burrage 

Victoria Festival of Authors 
Matthew Miller Gilbert & Sullivan 
Society Steve Benson Victoria 
Good News Choir Clarke Wright 
Victoria Jazz Society Victoria Percy 
Hebert Victoria Operatic Society 
Jesse Polito Victoria Philharmonic 
Choir Aldridge St. Print and Media  
Victoria Native Friendship Centre 
Ryan Pielle Victoria Poetry Project 
Victoria Lillie Louise Major

Artwork attribution 
arc.hive arts society Hollis Blaine Roberts; SOMETIMES 
Art Gallery of Greater Victoria Kelly Richardson; The Erudition 2010; 
HD video with sound. Courtesy of the artist and Birch Contemporary 
CFUV Estraven Lupino-Smith; Bat Detector Deluge Contemporary Art 
Colton Hash; Resonant Disintegration Fifty Fifty Arts Collective 
Corrie Peters & Jennifer van de Pol; Profound Feats Integrate Arts 
Society Gabrielle Odowichuk and Marie Specht; Love Begets Love 
Media Net Paul Wong and Jeffrey Chong; invocations Ministry of 
Casual Living Matthis Grunsky; Imperfect Parallels Open Space 
Hyang Cho; At Random Victoria Native Friendship Centre Facilitator: 
Wilson Tutube Victoria Women’s Transition House Unknown 
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Connect with us
Sign up for updates, subscribe to our videos, and join the CRD community  
on social media. 

Join us: www.crd.bc.ca  |        Capital Regional District  |        crd_bc  

Capital Regional District 
625 Fisgard Street
Victoria, BC V8W 2S6

        Capital Regional District  |        crd_bc  
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Office of the Møyor

June 20, 2019

Honoura ble Catherine McKenna

M¡nister of Environment and Climate Change

House of Commons

Ottawa, ON K1A 046

Dear Minister McKenna:

Re: €limate Emergency

The Distr¡ct of North Saaních has declared a climate emergency and has committed to working
jointfy within the region towards carbon neutral¡ty by 2030.

The District of North Saanich belíeves that, together with actions across the world, we can help
mítigate global climate change and slow global warming. Since the District's corporate operations
contr¡bute a small fraction of North Saanich's GHG emissíons and energy consumption, meeting
the climate goals must be a communíty-wide effort.

Like provincial and federal governments, local governments have a responsibility and an
opportunity to respond to the causes and impacts of climate change, and we assert the District's
support to help the Nationally Determined Contribution target made in the Paris Agreement. To
effectively reach these goals, we request that your ministry provides the powers and resources to
local governments to make our region's 2030 target possible, as outlined in the enclosed
document drafted by the Capital Regional District, when it declared a climate emergency and a

commitment to achíeving carbon neutrality in the Capital region by 2030.

Thank you for your consideration of our request to ensure local government partic¡pation in
mitigating global climate change.

Since

Geoff Orr
North Saanich Mayor

Mayors and Councils of Municipalities ín the Capital Regional District
Colin Plant, CRD Board Chair

Cc

Mayor
Counc¡llor(s)
Agenda
CAO
Administration
Finance
IT
Dev Services
Enqineerinq
Parks
Public Works
Fire Dept
RCMP
Commenls:

Districtof NorthSaanich 1620 Milìs Road, North Saanich, BC VBL 5S9 . 250-656-0/81 . adnrin@northsaaních.ca
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Ofiíce of the Møyor

June 19,2019

Honourable George Heyman

Minister of Environment and Climate Change Strategy

Parliament Buildíng

Victoria, BC V8V 1X4

Dear Minister Heyman:

Re: Climate Emergency

The District of North Saanich has declared a climate emergency and has committed to working
joíntly within the region towards carbon neutrality by 2030.

The District of North Saanich believes that, together with actions across the world, we can help
mitigate global climate change and slow global warming. Since the District's corporate operations
contribute a small fraction of North Saanich's GHG emissíons and energy consumption, meeting
the climate goals must be a community-wide effort.

Like provincial and federal governments, local governments have a responsibility and an

opportunity to respond to the causes and impacts of climate change, and we assert the District's
support to help the Province close the 25% emissions gap in the CleanBC Plan. To effectively reach

these goals, we request that your mínistry provides the powers and resources to local
governments to make our region's 2030 target possible, as outlined in the enclosed document
drafted by the Capital Regional Distr¡ct, when it declared a climate emergency and a commitment
to achíeving carbon neutrality in the Capital region by 2030.

Thank you for your consideration of our reguest to ensure local government participation in

mitigating global climate change.

Sincere[v.

&,r/A;/-'-l4r -vL
Geoff Orr ' t

North Saanich Mayor

Cc Mayors and Councils of Municipalities in the Capital Regional District
Colin Plant, CRD Board Chair

Districtof NorthSaanich 1620 Mills Road, North Saanich, BC VBL 5s9 . 250-656--0781 . admin@norrhsaanich.ca
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Maklng a difference,..together

Executive Services

625 Fisgard Street, PO Box 1000

Victoria, BC V8W 2So

T: 250.360.3125

F: 250.360.3076

www.crd.bc.ca

February 26,2019

Fllel.522ù20
Climate Emergency Declaraüon

0400-50
Conespondencey'Meetln gs/General

Mayor Orr and Council
District of North Saanich
Via email : admin@noúhsaanich.ca

Dear Mayor Orr and Council:

RE: GLIMATE EMERGENCY DECLARANON

At its February 13, 2019 meeting, the Capital Regional District (CRD) Board unanimousfy passed
a motion to declare a climate emergency and assume a leadership role to work towards ach¡eving
carbon neutrality in the regíon by 2030. The Board also acknowledged that efforts to accelerate
climate adaptation efiorts are imperative.

To show a cohesive voice and further support a regional collaborative approach to climate action,
the CRD Board is ask¡ng that all local governments within the capital region declare a climate
emergency and work towards achieving carbon neutrality in their municipalities and electoral
areas by 2030.

An October 2018 report from the lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change noted that limiting
global emissions to 1.SoC is required to avoid catastrophic impacts and is possible with ambitious
action from all parts of society, including local governments. The CRD acknowledges the
leadership and astions within the region to date, but that local governments need to continue to
inform, influence and lead accelerate climate action efforts.

ln response to the Board's declaration, the CRD:

¡ has embedded the declaration and leadership intentions to greatly accelerate greenhouse
gas emissions reductions in the 2019-2022 CRD Board strategic priorities;

¡ submitted a proposalto the $l million Pacific lnstitute Climate Solutions Theme Partnership
Program to better understand how to achieve regionalcarbon neutrality by 2030;

o is in the process of advocating to the federal and provinc¡algovernments to assertthe CRD's
support for accelerated climate action and asking for additional support for the region and
its local govemments; and

r is considering immediate opportunities within existing services.

Using the Board priorities as a guide, the CRD will now develop a corporate plan that will inform
individual service and budget plans for the next four years (including forthcoming strategies
related to the climate emergency declaration).

ÉXE?-210nß4æ5.W2



Mayor Orr and Council- February 26,2019
Glimate Emergency Declaration

Elected officials participating on the CRD Climate Action lnter-Municipal Task Force, and staff on
the CRD Climate Action lnter-Municipal Working Group, will discuss the climate emergency
declaration, opportunities and next steps in further detail at their upcoming meetings. ThoCRD
Climate Action Program will continue to work with municipalities and electoral areas to support
regional collaboration on climate action.

The CRD appreciates your consideration and continued leadership on climate action.

Sincerely,

2

iltffi
Colin Plant
Chair, Capital Regional District Board

cc: CRD Board
Robert Lapham, Chief Administrative Officer, CRD
Larisa Hutcheson, General Manager, Parks & Environmental Services, CRD
Glenn Hanis, Senior Manager, Environmental Protection, CRD
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Re

June 21 ,2019
File:6500-20

By Email

Mayors and Juan de Fuca Land Use Committee:

Capital Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Amendment for Population,
Dwelling Unit and Employment Projections

This letter is to inform you that on June 12,2019 the Capital Regional District (CRD) Board initiated an
amendment to the 2018 Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) to update regional population, dwelling unit
and employment projections.

The projections were prepared by BC Statistics based on 2016 census information which became
available in early 2019. The proposed amendment would replace Table 1 on page 7 of the Reqional
Growth Strateqv with updated information, including sub-reqional proiections. The projections have
been independently prepared by BC Statistics. They represent one possible interpretation of how future
growth may end up being distributed across the region. Local governments are not required to adopt
the RGS projections. Each jurisdiction can develop their own projections. The RGS population
projections do not bind RGS participants. The impact of including the projections in the RGS is simply
that Regional Context Statements submitted to the CRD for approval would identify how municipal
projections align with the sub-regional projections and explain any variation.

lnput on the amendment or requests for further information can be directed to Jeff Weightman, Planner,
Regional and Strategic Planning at iweiqhtman@crd.bc.ca or 250-360-3162. The consultation period
on the RGS amendment will end on July 31, 2019.

Once the consultation period has ended, staff will advise the Board of input received. The Board will
then determine whether to further advance the RGS amendment. At that point, there will be another
opportunity to provide input by either sending a letter or emailto the Committee/Board or by presenting
in person at a Committee or Board meeting. The final step to amend the RGS to include updated
population projections would be a formal municipal referral for RGS acceptance. Amendment of the
RGS will require unanimous agreement of all thirteen municipalities covered by the RGS. That
agreement would be sought through formal referral of an amending bylaw following the consultation
period

Sincerely,

Colin Plant
Chair, Capital Regional District Board

cc: Robert Lapham, Chief Administrative Officer
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Christa Baxter llo
From:
Sent:
lo:
Subject:

Attachments:

admin
Monday, June 24,2019 8:33 AM
Christa Baxter

FW: Serious Health Concerns of 5G Networks in our Communities 8¿ Safe
SolutÍons,with,Dr. Maftin Pall, PhD. & Dr. Timothy Schoechle, PhD.

Health-Department-Reps-4-Lunch-lnvitation-Dr.-Pall-Presentation-July-03-201-9-1.pdf;
Shifting-Paradigms-Victoría-Flyer-July-03-2019.pdf

From:Normr-¡
Sent: Monday, June 24,2079 8:13 AM
To: admin
Subject: Serious Health Concerns of 5G Networks in our Commun¡t¡es & Safe Solutions,wíth,Dr. Martin Pall, PhD. & Dr.
Tímothy Schoechle, PhD.

Dear Mayor and councilors
For far too long I have been attempting to communicate the known problems with exposure to EMR this is an
opportunity for you to meet with some of the intentionaf ly known experts on the subject.
I have attached an invitation to have lunch wíth one of the foremost experts on Electromagnetic Radiation.
Later in the day these same Drs will be speaking at a public session - notice also attached

Norm Ryder

-¡,

Adding highway lanes to deal with traffic congestion ís like loosening your belt to cure obesity. -Lewis Mumford, i.955

*

File No. \ôt o9- o1_
Mayor
õounc-lto(s) 7.
Administration
F¡nance
IT
Dev Services . .-
ñffieering
Parks
Public Workq-

Comments:

I



C¡t¡zens For Safe Technology
818 Bexhill Place
Victoria BC VgC 3V5 Tuesda¡ June 18,2019

Dear

You Are lnvited

A Special Infoåation Sess¡on

for Local Politicians & Health Care Leaders.
about

Serious Health Concerns of 5G Networks in our Communities & Safe Solutions
with

Dr. Martin Pall, PhD. & Dr. Timothy Schoechle, PhD.

Wednesday, July 3rd, 11:30 -1pm
at

The London Chel 953 Fort Street
Light Refreshments Served.

Space is Limited, Please RSVP by Monday, June 24th

As elected officials and health care administrators, you are confronted daily with issues that affect the
health and well-being of the public. A new challenge is heading your way: 5G technology - and it currently
is being rolled out to every community in British Columbia. This technology involves a new type of antenna
that emits radiation very close to homes at levels which are very concerning to experts. Citizens are
concerned because they have no way to avoid these devices and their effects.

Countries, cities and municipalities around the world, are working to stop 5G rollouts due to concerns
about the health hazards for their citizens. Those who have succeeded in stopping it include: Brussels,
Belgium; Portland, Oregon; Faux, France; Florence, ltaly; major areas of Switzerland and many places in the
USA.

Hundreds of peer reviewed studies, by independent scientists (i.e, not paid by telecom and wifi lndustry,) have
found that prolonged exposure to even low levels of wireless radiation, is dangerous -damaging cells, DNA,
immune function and causing damage to the heart, kidneys and neurological systems. The new 5G

milliwave radiation will mean exponentially greater exposure!

We are very fortunate to have 2 world-renowned scientists, available to meet with you to explain this new
health-care concern; offer ideas to confront this issue and to answer your questions.

Dr. Martin L. Pall, PhD., is Professor Emeritus of Biochemistry and Basic Medical Sciences at Washington
State University. He is an internationally-recognized expert on the sc¡ence behind 5G. His groundbreaking
review aÉicles, show the mechanism by which human-generated electromagnetic frequencies cause serious
biological and health effects.

Dr Timothy Schoechle, PhD., ¡s author oÍ Re-lnventingWires. He is the global expert on wired fiber networks.
He sits on the standards board of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE), is a former faculty
member of the University of Colorado, College of Engineering and Applied Science, and is Senior Research
Fellow, at the National Institute for Science, Law and Public Policy.

We Look Forward To Your Presence.
Please NOTE: Due to space limitations, we have space only for 2 members from your Health Department.

To RSVP or ask questions please email: safetech@shaw.ca
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Wednesday, July 3
Doors open at 6:30pm

Presentations 7-8:30
foilowed by QgA
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Proþssor Erneriü¡s of Biochernbüy and Basic Medical Sciences in the Schoolof lriolecular
Biæciences atWashington State University. Dr. Pall is an internationally recognized expert on
the science behind 5G. His groundbreaking review articles slmvr¡ üre mechanism by which
humanaenerated eleclromagnetic frequencies cause biologicaland healûr efrecs.

Auhor of Re-lruenting Wires. Dr. Schoechle is trc globalexpert on wired fü¡€r neùrr¡orks.
He sits on lhe standards board ol üre lnsüaite of Electrical and Elecfonics Engineers
(IEEE). is a lsrner faculty member of the University of Cobrado, College of Engineering
and Applied Science. and b Senior Research Fellor¡r. at he National lnstiùte lor Science.
Law & Public Poliry.
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Wireless Tech: WiHfires? Skyrocketing Cancer Raæs? Vanishing Pollinarors?
Dda Breaches? Climate Change?

Cærnunltycwæd

Two world-renoyúnsd experts speak abaut the blologlcal effects of s6
and the beneflts of bullc!lng e communtty-wlred flber network.



I
District of Sicamous
446 Main Street
PO Box 2L9
Sicamous, BC
VOE 2VO

T: 25O 8362477
F: 25O A364314
E: info@sicamous.ca
sicamous.ca

*

LIVE MORE

EGEIVE
JUF.: ? 6 2019

TO$N OF SIDNËY

D

File No. OLLOJune 26,201.9

Honourable Rob Fleming
Ministry of Education
P.O. Box 9045 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC VBW 9E2
E DUC. M inister(ôoov.bc.ca

Re: Provincial Support for Libraries

Dear Honourable Rob Fleming,

At the Regular Council meeting of June L2, 2019, the District of Sicamous received
correspondence from the City of Victoria dated May 29, 2019 regarding a request for
Provincial support for libraries.

The District of Sicamous Mayor and Council, by way of resolution, supports advocating for
the restoration of library funding to a level that reflects both inflationary cost increases since
2OO9 and the value of this system to the Province.

Regards,
DISTRICT OF SICAMOUS

/*/uv
Terry Rysz

Mayor

Cc Premier John Horgan (Premier@gov.bc.ca)

MLA Greg Kyllo (Creg.Kyllo.MLA@leg.bc.ca)

UBCM Member Municipalities

File No.O23.:-}p
Mayor
Councillor(s)
Aqenda
CAO
Administration
Finance
IT
Dev Services
Engineering
Parks
Public Works
Fire Dept
RCMP
Comments:
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

WHrrr Roct<, BC CRneon

June 26,2019

To the Union of British Columbia Municipalities:

RE: PROPOSED VACANCY TAX

On June 24,2019, White Rock City Council considered a corporate report from the D¡rector of Financial
Services titled "Proposed Vacancy Tax" (attached). Discussions stemmíng from this report reinforce the
need for local governments to address this matter directly.

I am writing on behalf of White Rock City Council, to canvass your support of our resolution requesting
UBCM work with the Province in amending lhe Community Charter.lf supported, the amendment would
permit municipalities the authority to impose, by bylaw, an annual vacancy tax on taxable residential and
commercial properties. The City of Vancouver has set a precedent for this authority through the
Vancouver Chorter. Our resolution reads as follows;

WHEREAS The City of Vancouver has authority through lhe Vancouver Chqrter to implement an
Annual Vacancy Tax

WHEREAS The City of White Rock is governed through the Community Charter where there is no
current authority to implement a Vacancy Tax and it is believed that there are a number of vacant
residential and commercial properties in the City of White Rock

THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED THAT the City of White Rock request that UBCM work with the Provínce
of British Columbia to amend the authority given to Local Governments through the Community
Charter permitting municipalities the authority to impose, by bylaw, an annualvacancy tax on taxable
residential and commercial properties, and that the criteria and administrative requirements be
similar to those of the Vancouver Charter.

We believe that providing local governments this authority is one step closer towards addressing BC's

affordable housing crisis.

A copy of the resolution has been included with this correspondence for inclusion in your agenda
packages.

We appreciate your time in considering our request, and look forward to connecting at the UBCM

Convention this Fall.

Sincerely,

DarrylWalker
Mayor

City Hall, 15322Buena Vista Avenue, llhite Rock, British Columbia, Canada V4B lY6

Tel: (604) 541 2131 Fax: (604) 541-9348 Email: dwalker@whiterockcity.ca Website: www.whiterockcity.ca

D

TEGEI]V

TOWN OF ,stDlSEY

iuN ? 6 20t9 tl-

Dev Services
:nqlneeflng
Parks
Public Works
Fire Dept
RCMP

Comments:



THE CORPORATION OF THE

CITYOFWHITE ROCK
CORPORATE REPORT

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT

June24,2019

Governance and Legislation Committee

Sandra Kurylo, Director of Financial Services

Proposed Vacancy Tax

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Governance and Legislation Committee receive for information the corporate report
dated June 24,2019 from the Director of Financial Services, titled "Proposed Vacancy Tax".

INTRODUCTION

This corporate report is in follow-up to Council's resolution of January 28,2019, that directed

staff to prepare a corporate report on a proposal that the City of White Rock implement a
vacancy tax, similar to the City of Vancouver, with certain considerations. The motion states

that the proposed vacancy tax be 5Yo of the tax assessed level of the property municipal levy on

commercial and residential properties and include a2.SYo municipal levy on the sale of
assignments ("flipping"). As well the motion states that all such receipts be earmarked for the

acquisition and construction of affordable (or below market rate) housing in White Rock.

ANALYSIS

The first step in considering a plan for a vacancy tax is to determine if the City has the legal
authority to impose it. The City has confirmed that, with the exception of the City of Vancouver
who have their own Charter, local governments in British Columbia do not have the authority to
impose a vacancy tax.

Section I 93 ( I ) of the Community Charter states that a municipality may not impose a tax unless

it is expressly authorized to do so by statute. The Community Charter provides the City with the

authority to impose certain types of taxes, such as property value taxes, parcel taxes and local
services taxes. However, there is no express authority in the Community Charter to impose a
vacancy tax.

Unlike other municipalities in the province, the City of Vancouver is governed by the Vancouver
Charter, rather than the Community Charter. Prior to imposing a vacancy tax, it was first
necessary for them to work with the Province, to amend the Vancouver Charter granting them
the authorify to impose a vacancy tax. This was done as of July 201 6.

If White Rock Council wanted to pursue a similar amendment to the Community Charter, an

appropriate process would be through a UBCM resolution. The deadline for submitting



Proposed Vacancy Tax
Page No. 2

resolutions to the UBCM for debate at their fall conference is June 30, 2019. There are specific
requirements for the drafting of such resolutions, and they must be adopted by the respective
municipal councils before being submitted.

UBCM staff have advised that if resolutions are received past the June 30 deadline, they will be

reported to the "Resolutions Committee" but not necessarily recommended to go forward for
debate at the conference. All late resolutions are published and distributed to conference
attendees, for information.

Another option is to submit a Council endorsed resolution to the LMLGA 2020 spring
conference, which if supported, will be forwarded to the 2020 UBCM conference for
consideration, if the City wishes.

CONCLUSION

It is recommended that the information contained in this corporate report be received.

Respectful ly subm itted,

An
Sandra Kurylo
Director of Financial Services

Comments from the Chief Administrative Officer:

This corporate report is provided for information.

Dan Bottrill
Chief Administrative Offi cer



RESOLUTION FOR UBCM FOR CONSIDERATION

WHEREAS The City of Vancouver has authority through
the Vancouver Charter to implement an Annual Vacancy

Tax

WHEREAS The City of White Rock is governed through
the Com munity Charter where there is no current
authority to implement a Vacancy Tax and it is believed
that there are a number of vacant residential and

commercial properties in the City of White Rock

THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED THAT the City of White Rock

request that UBCM work with the Province of British
Columbia to amend the authority given to Local

Governments through lhe Community Charter permitting
municipalities the authority to impose, by bylaw, an

annual vacancy tax on taxable residential and

commercial properties, and that the criteria and

administrative requirements be similar to those of the
Vancouver Charter .


